
CITYOFSHOREWOOD 5755COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITYCOUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, MARCH 27, 2023 7:00P.M.  

Forthosewishing tolisten livetothemeeting, please gotoci.shorewood.mn.us/current_meeting for
themeeting link. Contact thecityat952.960.7900during regular business hourswithquestions.  

AGENDA

1. CONVENE CITYCOUNCIL MEETING

A. Pledge ofAllegiance

B. RollCall
Mayor Labadie___  

Johnson___  
Callies___  
Maddy___  

Sanschagrin___  

C. Review andAdopt Agenda
Attachments

2. CONSENT AGENDA TheConsent Agenda isaseriesofactions whicharebeingconsidered for
adoption thisevening underasinglemotion.  These items havebeen reviewed bycitycouncil andcity
staffandthereshallbenofurther discussion bythecouncil tonight ontheConsent Agenda items.    
Anycouncil member ormember ofcitystaffmayrequest thatanitemberemoved fromtheConsent
Agenda forseparate consideration ordiscussion.  Ifthereareanybrief concerns orquestions by
council, wecananswer thosenow.  

Motion toapprove itemsontheConsent Agenda & Adopt Resolutions Therein:  

A. CityCouncil WorkSession Minutes ofMarch 13, 2023 Minutes

B. CityCouncil Regular Meeting Minutes ofMarch 13, 2023 Minutes

C. Approval oftheVerified Claims List Claims List

D. Approve Professional Services Contract forGarden Care Public Works Director Memo
withMangold Horticulture

E. Approve Change Order forStrawberry LaneReconstruction, CityEngineer Memo
CityProject 19-05 Resolution 23-031

F. Approve Change Order forBirchBluffStreet andUtility CityEngineer Memo
Improvements, CityProject 21-01 Resolution 23-032



CITYCOUNCIL REGULARMEETING AGENDA
Page2

G. Approve Permanent Appointment ofJeremy Moe,  CityClerk/HRDirector Memo
LightEquipment Operator – ShopTech

H. Accept Resignation ofCommunity Center Attendant CityClerk/HRDirector Memo
andApprove Recruitment forPosition

3. MATTERS FROM THEFLOOR This isanopportunity formembers ofthepublic tobringanitem,  
which isnotontonight'sagenda, totheattention oftheCouncil. Anyone wishing toaddress the
Council should raise theirhand, orifattending remotely please usethe “raisehand” function onyour
screen andwait tobecalledon. Please makeyourcomments fromthepodium andidentify yourself
byyourfirstand lastnameandyouraddress fortherecord.  Please limityourcomments tothree
minutes.  Nodiscussion oractionwillbetakenbytheCouncil onthismatter. Ifrequested bythe
Council, Citystaffwillprepare areport fortheCouncil regarding thematter andplace itonthenext
agenda.  

4. REPORTS ANDPRESENTATIONS

5. PARKS

A.  Report byCommissioner Levyon3/14/23Parks Commission Meeting Minutes

B. 2023ParkCommission WorkProgram Parks/RecDirector Memo

6. PLANNING

A. Report byCommissioner Holker on3/7/23Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

B. Variance toSide-yardsetback Planning Director Memo
Location:  28170 Woodside Road Resolution 23-033
Applicant:  KyleHunt & Partners, Inc.  

C. FinalPlatandDevelopment Agreement forMapleShores Planning Director Memo
Location: 20430 Radisson Road Resolution 23-034
Applicant:  Chamberlain Capital, LLC.  

D. 2023Planning Commission WorkProgram Planning Technician Memo

7. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

8. GENERAL/ NEWBUSINESS



CITYCOUNCIL REGULARMEETING AGENDA
Page3

9. STAFF ANDCOUNCIL REPORTS

A. Staff

1. MillStreet TrailUpdate Planning Director Memo

B. Mayor andCityCouncil

10. ADJOURN



2A

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, MARCH 13, 2023 6:15P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat6:17P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  Mayor Labadie; Councilmembers Callies, Maddy, andSanschagrin; andCity
Administrator Nevinski

Absent: Councilmember Johnson

B. Review Agenda

Maddy moved, Sanschagrin seconded, approving theagenda aspresented. Motion passed
4/0.   

2. INTERVIEW FOR COMMISSIONERS

CityAdministrator Nevinski explained thattherearetwointerviews scheduled foropenpositions
withtheLakeMinnetonka Communications Commission (LMCC) andtheLakeMinnetonka
Conservation District (LMCD).    

6:15p.m. – Tom Lesser

TheCouncil interviewed Mr. Lesser, viaZoom, andaskedhimtoshare information aboutwhyhe
wasinterested incontinuing ontheLMCC.  

Mr. Lessershared information onhisbackground, experience, andreasons hewasinterested in
continuing toserveontheLMCC.  Hegavesomeinputonthechanging business model forthe
LMCC andwaystopromote theirprogramming andservices abitbetter.   

6:30p.m. – Deborah Zorn

TheCouncil interviewed Ms. Zornfortheopening ontheLMCDandaskedhertoshare
information onherservice inthisroleandwhyshewouldbeinterested incontinuing toserve.    

Ms. Zornshared information onherbackground, experience andreasons for hercontinuing
interest inservingontheLMCD.  Shegaveanoverviewofsomeofthelistening sessions they
haveheldandexplained thattheLMCDregulates anything thathappens onthewater.    

3. ADJOURN

Sanschagrin moved, Maddy seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Work Session Meeting
ofMarch 13, 2023, at6:45P.M. Motion passed 4/0.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 13, 2023
Page 2of2

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2B

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, MARCH 13, 2023 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat7:00P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Callies, Maddy, andSanschagrin; CityAttorney
Shepherd; CityAdministrator Nevinski; CityClerk/HRDirector Thone; Finance
Director Rigdon; Planning Director Darling; ParkandRecreation Director
Crossfield; Director ofPublicWorksMorreim; and, CityEngineer Budde

Absent: Councilmember Johnson

B. Review Agenda

CityAdministrator Nevinski, notedthat twoerrorswere foundinitem2.C., VerifiedClaimsList,  
butnotedthattheyhadbeenadjusted.  Heexplained thatstaffhadputtogether amemooutlining
thosechanges.   

Maddy moved, Sanschagrin seconded, approving theagenda, asamended.  Motion
passed.   

2. CONSENT AGENDA

MayorLabadie reviewed theitemsontheConsent Agenda.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedtoremove item2.D. forfurther discussion.  

Callies moved, Maddy seconded, Approving theMotions Contained onthe Consent
Agenda and Adopting theResolutions Therein.    

A. City Council Retreat Minutes ofFebruary 27, 2023

B. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes ofFebruary 27, 2023

C. Approval of theVerified Claims List

D. Approve Agreement and Proposal from Davey Resource Group, Adopting
RESOLUTION NO. 23-026, - (Moved toitem 8.E.)  

E. Approve Sweeper Repair Estimate

F. Accept Quote and Award Contract forLawn Mower



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 13, 2023
Page 2of8

G. Accept Quote and Award Contract forCaterpillar Skid Steer, Cold Planer, and
Attachments

H. Approve Request forReimbursement from MetCouncil, Adopting
RESOLUTION NO. 23-027, “AResolution Approving 2020 I/IGrant Program
Funds Reimbursement Participation from Metropolitan Council
Environmental Services.”  

I. Approve Permanent Appointment ofRyan Brant, Public Works Light
Equipment Operator

J. Approve Permanent Appointment ofTodd Roden, Public Works Light
Equipment Operator

Motion passed.  

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

Nooneappeared forMatters fromtheFloor.  

4. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

A. Deborah Zorn, Director – Lake Minnetonka Conservation District Report

Deborah Zorn, LakeMinnetonka Conservation District, gaveabriefupdateandoverview onthe
LMCD. Sheexplained thatthepurpose oftheLMCDwastohelpensure thatallofthecities
around thelakehavesimilarapproaches tohowactivities thatareregulated onthelakehappen.   
Shegaveanoverview ofsomeoftheiractivities andprograms andnotedthattheyaresearching
foranewExecutive Director.  Shegaveasneakpeakofthespring/summer brochure andnoted
thatbecause ofthenewspeed limit, itwillbemailed toevery household onthelakeshore.    

B. Dan Narr, Executive Director – ICA Food Shelf

DanNarr, ICEFoodShelf, gaveanoverview onwhat ishappening withtheICA.  Heexplained
thatthereareanumber offamilies whoarestruggling tomakeendsmeet intoday’seconomy.   
HenotedthatShorewood accounts forsixpercentofthepeopletheyserve.  Hegaveanoverview
onICAandexplained thattheirservices gobeyond justbeingafoodshelfandalsoassistwith
housing, andjobs.  Heexplained thattheirusagenumbers havebeenshowing asignificant
increase andshared someofthebudget constraints thathavearisenbecauseofwhattheyhave
seenwiththeincreased usage.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin thankedMr. Narrforallthegreatworkthat theICAFoodShelf is
doing inthecommunity.  Heaskedwhatthetopthreethings thatareacommunities coulddoto
helpsupport thismission.    

Mr. Narrstated thathehasdiligently beenworking intheaffordable housing arenatotrytogetit
toalevelofhelping withthings liketenant rights.  Hestated thatitisreallyaboutmaking
connections andgettingsomebody tochampion realchange whichwill takesomecourage.  He
explained thatitcomesdowntobeingacompetition between what isrightforthemarketand
what isright fortheothersideoftheequation.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 13, 2023
Page 3of8

C. Jim Flattum, Excelsior Lions’ Club Overview

JimFlattum, Community Liaison Officer, Excelsior Lions’ Club, gaveanoverview oftheLions’  
Cluborganization andsomeofthecauses theysupport.  Henotedthattheirclubisrelatively new
andcurrently hasabout thirty-twomembers.  Hestated thattheywanted tojustletthecommunity
knowthattheyexistandnotedthattheyarecurrently working ontheirphilanthropic goals forthe
clubsmissionandvision.  HenotedthattheirExcelsior Lions’ GolfClassicheldlastSeptember
helpedraised around $17,000andexplained thatone-hundred percentoftheproceeds were
distributed tosupport needswithin thecommunity.  Henotedthattheyarelooking toincrease the
numberoffundraising events theyhostin2023 andshared someoftheprograms inthe
community thattheysupport.  Heinvited interested members tocomecheckouttheirmeetings
andencouraged people tocontact himiftheywould liketogetinvolved.     

5. PARKS

6. PLANNING

7. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

A. Approve Plans and Specifications and Authorize Bidding forLift Station No.  
11, City Project 22-07

CityEngineer Buddeexplained thattheCity isplanning torehabilitate LiftStation #11thatis
located onRadisson Road andhadbudgeted forthisworkwithin theCapital Improvement Plan
CIP).  Hestated thatstaff islooking forapproval offinalplansandspecifications andauthorization
togooutforbids.  Heexplained thattheCity’scurrent practice istogetcertain equipment froma
trusted vendor separate fromthecontract.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askediftherewasasense fromstaffabouthowthiswoulddoin
thebudget compared toactualcosts.   

CityEngineer Buddestated thatstaff thinks thattheyareintheballpark withthisproject.    

Councilmember Calliesasked about thetimingofconstruction andnoted thatthereisalarge
townhome project thatwillbegoing intothesamearea.   

CityEngineer Buddestated thattheyhavelookedatwhatwillneedtobedoneintheroadway
andexplained thatbothprojects willneedtocutupaportionoftheroadway tomake
improvements.  Hestated thattheyhavelookedatthepossibility ofthemhappening inthesame
spot, buttheycannot.  Hestated thattheyhavebeencoordinating andcommunicating withthe
otherproject, butnotedthatwouldbeeasieroncetheyknowthe
schedules inorder tominimize theroadimpacts orclosures.    

Councilmember Callies askedwhatwouldhappen attheliftstation withthematerial while itis
underconstruction.   

CityEngineer Buddeexplained thattheliftstation would essentially stayfunctioning most likely
withbypass pumping.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 13, 2023
Page 4of8

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedabout warranty coverage.   

CityEngineer Budde stated thattypically thereisatwoyearwarranty.   

Callies moved, Maddy seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-028, “AResolution
Approving Plans and Specifications and Authorize Bidding for the LiftStation #11
Rehabilitation Project, City Project 22-07.”  Motion passed.  

8. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Appointment ofCommissioner toLake Minnetonka Communications
Commission ( LMCC)  

B. Appointment ofCommissioner toLake Minnetonka Conservation District
LMCD)  

CityClerk/HRDirector Thoneexplained theCityCouncil hadinterviewed interested candidates
earlier thisevening.  ShenotedthatthetermfortheLMCCisoneyearandfortheLMCDisa
threeyearterm.    

Maddy moved, Labadie seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-029, “AResolution
Making anAppointment ofTom Lesser totheLake Minnetonka Communications
Commission.” Motion passed.  

Maddy moved, Labadie seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-030, “AResolution
Making anAppointment ofDeborah Zorn totheLake Minnetonka Conservation District.”   
Motion passed.  

C. Hybrid/Virtual Meetings

MayorLabadie notedthatsheandCityAdministrator Nevinski hadattended aconference puton
bytheLeagueofMinnesota CitiescalledCityDayontheHill.  Shestated thatthereiscurrent a
billrelated tohybridmeetings (HF-198andSF-455) andgaveanoverview ofthelanguage that
isproposed toberemoved.  Shestated thatbecause thereisabillcurrently infrontoftheSenate
andtheHouseofRepresentatives, shewould recommend that theCityholdoffonchanging its
currentpolicyuntilafterthebillhaseitherpassedorfailedattheState legislature level.  She
stated thatforthetimebeingthatwouldmeancontinuing toholdmeetings inthehybrid/Zoom
format.  

Councilmember Callies notedthatshehadnotyetreadtheproposed billsbutbelieves thatwhile
holding hybridmeetings maybepermitted, shedidnotthinkitwasmandated thateveryCityhave
hybridavailability.    

CityAttorney Shepherd stated thathewouldagree,  aslongasitdidnotsay “shall” or “must”.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatwouldmeanthateveryCitycouldhandle thingsdifferently.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin explained thathewasastrongproponent ofhaving thehybrid
meeting capabilities butwouldsupport theCouncil nottakinganyactiononthistonight.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 13, 2023
Page 5of8

TheCouncil discussed hybridmeetings, othercommunities practices, staffexpectations and
burdens, andtechnology issueswithhybridmeetings.    

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thatbefore thiscomesbackbefore theCouncil staffwilldo
someresearch onwhatsimilar sizedcitiesaredoingandalsotakealookatstepsofwhatcould
bedonetotrytobetter insure reliability, including language orstatements thatmaybehelpful in
casethesystem goesdowntoclarify theCity’sexpectations forproviding avirtual option.  He
stated thatstaffcanbringthattotheCouncil following thelegislative session oncethereisabit
moreclarity fromthelawmakers.  

MayorLabadie notedthatshethinks itisimportant toseeiftherewillbeanybudgetary impacts
orcostforanupdate.    

There was aconsensus oftheCouncil toindefinitely continue discussion onhybrid/virtual
meetings and direct staff toplace itonafuture agenda, following rulings ontheproposed
bills.   

D. Approve Travel Reimbursement Request

MayorLabadie explained thatshehadrecently traveled toWashington D.C. attheinvitation of
Congressman DeanPhillips andexplained thatthecurrent policy requires Council approval of
thistypeofexpense.  Shestated thatshehaddecided torescind herrequest forreimbursement
ofairfareandhotelexpense andwillinstead payitoutofpocketasapersonal expense.  She
stated thatshewould likethosefundstoremain intheCity’s2023Travel, Conference andSchool
budget inorder togivetheentireCouncil theopportunity tofurther theireducation.    

E. Approve Agreement and Proposal from Davey Resource Group (formerly
item2.D.)   

PublicWorksDirector Morreim explained thattheDaveyResource Groupserves astheCity’s
forester andhandles anumberofservices related totheCity’streecanopy.  Hestated thatthe
Citysolicited fortheseservices inyearspastandthisagreement isarenewal oftheagreement
withDaveyResource Group.  Hestatedthatthetermsoftheagreement havebeenupdated and
staff recommended approval.    

Councilmember Maddy askedhowitworked ifahomeowner would reachoutforatreeconsult
andhowpayment washandled.    

PublicWorks Director Morreim stated thattothebestofhisknowledge, theconsultations are
informational anddonotinvolve quotesontakingdowntrees.  Hestated that hebelieves that
theywill providealistofcontractors thatthehomeowner cancontact togopriceouttheiroptions
forremoval.    

Planning Director Darling statedthatDaveyResource Groupexplained thatbecause theyare
providing theevaluation services, theydonotgivequotes fortreeremoval themselves, but instead
direct themtoothercertified arborists inorder toavoidanyconflictofinterest.    

Councilmember CalliesaskedifDaveyResource Group getsinvolved when thereisa
development.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 13, 2023
Page 6of8

Planning Director Darling explained thatworkisdonebyPlanning andBuilding staffbutnoted
thatthedeveloper needs toprovide thecorrect information fromanarborist.  Shestated that
Planning andBuildingstaff looksoverthetreepreservation plansforconsistency withCityCode.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin asked iftherehadbeenanyinteraction between theParks
Commission andDaveyResources Group.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatshedidnotthinktherehasbeenmuchcontact andexplained
thatmostoftheworkthatDaveyhasdonehasbeenunder themaintenance umbrella where they
aredoing things likeremoving deadtrees.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin suggested thatanagenda itembeaddedtotheupcoming Park
Commission meeting toensure thattheyareawareoftherelationship between theCityandDavey
Resource Group.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatshedidnotthinktherewasalotofinputthatthePark
Commission canhaveontheirwork.  ShenotedthattheCitygivesDaveyResources Groupalist
oftreesthatneedtoberemoved andtheyputtheminpriority orderbased onthecondition ofthe
tree.  Sheclarified thatitismoreofamaintenance issueandnotreallypolicy related withthat
particular service.    

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thatwhentheParkCommission getsintosomeofthedetails
withthings liketheIPMplan, Daveycouldcertainly bearesource fortheminanswering questions
andproviding some guidance around policybecause thatistheirroleastheCity’sarborist.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askediftheproposed agreement waswrittenbyDavey Resource
Groupandthen alignedwiththeCity’slanguage.  Heaskedabout item #2, Services, andthe
statement, ‘Cityshallnotberesponsible fordiscovering deficiencies intheaccuracy of
Consultant’sservices.’  Heaskedifthisstatement wassomehow protecting theCityandexplained
thathisconcern wasthatitsortofcommunicates thattheCity isabdicating responsibility for
overseeing theconsultant services andhefeels thatshouldbekeptwiththeCity.    

CityAttorney Shepherd stated thatheunderstands the concern raisedbyCouncilmember
Sanschagrin, buthebelieved thisstatement wasclarifying thatDaveywasnotabdicating their
responsibility toberesponsible formeeting therequirements ofthecontract.  Hestated thathe
feltthislanguage should remain intheagreement.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin notedthatitem3.2anddidnotalignwith3.1intermsofthenumber
ofdaysandsuggested thattheybealigned witheachothersotherearenotlatefees.    

CityAttorney Shepherd stated thatwasagoodcatchandaneditcanbemadesothose items
alignwitheachother.         

Maddy moved, Sanschagrin seconded, toApprove Agreement and Proposal from Davey
Resource Group, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-026, “AResolution toAccept Proposal
from Davey Resource Group forProfessional Arborist Services”, with the language
amendment to3.2, tothirty-five days, instead ofthirty days, asdiscussed.   

9. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 13, 2023
Page 7of8

A. Staff

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thatlastweek, fourmembers ofthePublicWorks
department attended theMinnesota RuralWaterConference inSt. Cloud.    

CityEngineer Buddestated that treetrimming andremoval should continue onStrawberry Lane
over thenextfewweeks.    

Finance Director Rigdon statedthattheCitywillbereceiving theannual financial statement audit
thisweek.    

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield explained thatLucky theLeprechaun went through the
Cityparksanddropped afewpotsofgoldthroughout theparks.  Shestated thatifpeoplearein
theparksandseeagreenpotofgoldhanging inatreeorsomewhere aboveeyelevel, theycan
contact CityHallortheParksandRecreation Department andsubmitaphoto.  Sheexplained
thattheywill thenbeabletocomeinfortheirownlittlepotofgoldtotakehomeandeat.  She
stated thatthiswilltakeplacethrough March20, 2023.    

CityAttorney Shepherd reminded theCouncil thathewillnotbeabletoattendthenextCity
Council meeting andhisassociate, JackBrooksbank, wouldbehere instead.    

B. Mayor and City Council

Councilmember Sanschagrin askediftheCitycantakealookattheMatters fromtheFloor
segment ofthemeeting andseeiftheremaybeanother format thatcouldbeused.  Hestated
thathewould liketoseeifthereisawayfortheretobemore interaction between theCouncil and
thosewhocometospeak.  Hestated thathewould liketofindawaytofindthistobeamore
positive experience foreveryone.  Hesuggested thattheyevenconsider changing thenameto
something likeOpenForum.  

MayorLabadiestated thatshefelt thatOpen ForumandMatters fromtheFloorweretwodifferent
beasts’.  Shestated thatunlesssomething hasbeennoticed tothepublic, shedidnotthinkitwas
appropriate fortheCouncil tohaveadialogue onthose items.  Shestatedwaswhy, when
appropriate, theCouncil directsstafftoputthoseitemsonafutureagenda, soitcanbeproperly
noticed.  Shestatedthatshebelieves thissectionofthemeeting hasbeencalledMatters from
theFloor fordecades.  Shenoted thatshehasaskedothermayors howthey handled thisportion
oftheirmeetingandgotfeedback fromabout forty-fivemayors andfoundthatShorewood ismuch
lessrestrictive thenmanyothercities.  Shestated thatshethinksMatters fromtheFloorgives
theopportunity forresidents tobringtotheCouncil’sattention something thattheydidnotknow
aboutandreiterated thatitwouldnotbeproper tostartupadialogue whenotherresidents are
notnoticed.    

Councilmember Callies stated thattheCityCouncilmeeting isessentially abusiness meeting and
notacommunity meeting.  

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thathewasjustwondering iftheCitycouldlookatwhatother
practices maybeandconsider thosemoving forward.  Hegaveexamples fromExcelsior and
Chanhassen whohavedifferent formats.  Hestated thathewaslooking forsomething thatmay
bemoreconnecting fortheresidents thanthecurrent format.  Hestated thathewouldlikethe
Citytotakealookatwhat isoutthereandtakethemintoconsideration.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 13, 2023
Page 8of8

Councilmember Callies stated thattherearepublichearings andcommunity meetings onmany
different issues.  Shestated thatshedoesnotthinkthereneeds tobesomething ontheagenda
thatresults inhavingabackandforthdiscussion with thecitizens.  Shestated thattheCouncil
wouldnotknowwhatwouldbebrought upsoitwouldbetrulybeproductive orfair.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin asked ifsomeone brings upatopicinMatters fromtheFloorifthe
Council canaskclarifying questions.    

MayorLabadie explained thatthewaythecurrently policy is, theanswerwouldbe, no.  She
reiterated thattheycandirectstaff toresearch theissueorplaceitonafutureagenda.     

MayorLabadie stated thatsheattended theseminar inWashington D.C. andnotedthatthere
wereabout forty-fivedelegates fromMinnesota inattendance.  Shegaveanoverview ofother
attendees andthespeakers/topics.  Shestated thatshealsoattended theRegional Council of
Mayorsmeeting earlier todaywheretheydiscussed water.  ShenotedthatsheandCity
Administrator Nevinski attended CityDayonCapital Hill.  Shestated thatshewillhostingaCoffee
withtheMayoreventonMarch17, 2023atthePillarsofShorewood Landings.  Shenotedthat
theyareconsidering opening theseupagaintothegeneral publicandencouraged anyone who
maybeinterested inattending toreachouttoShorewood Landings toreserveaspot.   

10. ADJOURN

Maddy moved, Sanschagrin seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Regular Meeting of
March 13, 2023, at8:30P.M. Motion passed.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



































CityCouncil Meeting Item

2DTitle/Subject:   Mangold Group, LLCContract Renewal
MEETINGTYPEMeeting Date:  March 27, 2023 Regular

MeetingPrepared by:   MattMorreim, Public Works Director
Reviewed by:   MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   Professional Service Agreement

Mangold Group Quotes-CityHallandShorewood Community Center

Background inRecommendation:  
TheCityutilizes Mangold Group, LLCtoprovide landscaping services fortheCityofShorewood
atCityHallandtheShorewood Community Center. These services include:  

Landscape bedmaintenance
Shrubandtreepruning
General cleanup
Mulch topdressing

Financial orBudget Considerations:    
Thecitybudget accounts andprograms landscaping services aspartofthebuilding
maintenance operating budget (Fund19-Municipal Buildings)  

Action Requested:   
Motion toapprove theproposal fromMangold Group, LLCforservices in2023.  

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents quality publicservices, a
healthy environment, asustainable taxbase, andsound financial management through
effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.       

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR
LANDSCAPING SERVICES

THISAGREEMENT ismadethisMarch13, 2023 (“EffectiveDate”) byandbetweenMangoldGroup,  
LLC, aMinnesota limitedliabilitycompany, d/b/aMangoldHorticulture, withitsprincipalofficelocatedin
Excelsior, MN55331 (“Contractor”), andtheCityofShorewood, Minnesota, aMinnesota municipal
corporation locatedat5755Country ClubRoad, Shorewood, MN55331 (the “City”):  

RECITALS

A. Contractor isengaged inthebusinessoflandscape installation andmanagement services.  

B. TheCitydesirestohireContractor toprovide landscape management services.  

C. Contractor represents thatithastheprofessional expertiseandcapabilities toprovidetheCity
withtherequested services.   

D. TheCitydesirestoengageContractor toprovidetheservicesdescribed inthisAgreement and
Contractor iswillingtoprovidesuchservicesonthetermsandconditions inthisAgreement.  

NOW, THEREFORE, inconsideration ofthetermsandconditions expressed inthisAgreement, theCityand
Contractor agreeasfollows:  

AGREEMENT

1. Services. Contractor agreestoprovide the Citywiththe servicesasdescribed intheattached
ExhibitA (the “Services”). ExhibitAshallbeincorporated intothisAgreementbyreference. AllServices
shallbeprovided inamannerconsistentwiththelevelofcareandskillordinarily exercisedby
professionals currentlyprovidingsimilarservices.  

2. TimeforCompletion. TheServicesshallbecompleted onorbeforeMarch31, 2024, provided that
thepartiesmayextendthestateddeadlines uponmutualwrittenagreement. ThisAgreement shallremain
inforceandeffectcommencing fromtheeffectivedateandcontinuing untilthecompletion oftheproject,  
unlessterminated bytheCityoramended pursuant totheAgreement.   

3. Consideration. TheCityshallpayContractor fortheServices according tothetermsonthe
attachedheretoasExhibitA. Theconsideration shallbeforboththeServicesperformed byContractor
andanyexpenses incurredbyContractor inperforming theServices. Contractor shallsubmitstatements
totheCityuponcompletion oftheServices. TheCityshallpayContractorwithinthirty-five (35) daysafter
Contractor’sstatements aresubmitted.  

4. Termination. Notwithstanding anyotherprovisionhereoftothecontrary, thisAgreement may
beterminated asfollows:  

A. Theparties, bymutualwrittenagreement, mayterminate thisAgreement atanytime;  

1
225407v1



B. Contractor mayterminate thisAgreement intheeventofabreachoftheAgreementbytheCity
uponproviding thirty (30) days’ writtennoticetotheCity;   

C. TheCitymayterminate thisAgreement atanytimeatitsoption, foranyreasonornoreasonat
all; or

D. TheCitymayterminate thisAgreement immediately uponContractor’sfailuretohaveinforce
anyinsurancerequiredbythisAgreement.  

Intheeventofatermination, theCityshallpayContractor forServicesperformed tothedateof
termination andforallcostsorotherexpenses incurredpriortothedateoftermination.  

7. Amendments. Noamendments maybemadetothisAgreement exceptinawritingsignedby
bothparties.  

8. Remedies.  IntheeventofaterminationofthisAgreement bytheCitybecauseofabreachby
Contractor, theCitymaycomplete theServiceseitherbyitselforbycontractwithotherpersonsor
entities, oranycombination thereof. TheseremediesprovidedtotheCityforbreachofthisAgreement
byContractor shallnotbeexclusive. TheCityshallbeentitledtoexerciseanyoneormoreotherlegalor
equitable remedies availablebecauseofContractor’sbreach.  

9. Records/Inspection. Pursuant toMinnesota Statutes § 16C.05, subd. 5, Contractor agreesthat
thebooks, records, documents, andaccounting procedures andpracticesofContractor, thatarerelevant
tothecontractortransaction, aresubjecttoexamination bytheCityandthestateauditororlegislative
auditorforaminimumofsixyears. Contractorshallmaintainsuchrecords foraminimum ofsixyearsafter
finalpayment. Thepartiesagreethatthisobligationwillsurvivethecompletion ortermination ofthis
Agreement.   

10. Insurance Requirements. TheContractor, atitsexpense, shallprocureandmaintain inforcefor
thedurationofthisAgreement thefollowingminimum insurancecoverages:   

A. GeneralLiability. TheContractor agreestomaintaincommercial generalliability insurance in
aminimumamountof $1,000,000peroccurrence; $2,000,000annualaggregate. Thepolicy
shallcover liabilityarisingfrompremises, operations, productscompleted operations,  
personal injury, advertising injury, andcontractually assumed liability. TheCityshallbe
endorsedasadditional insured.  

B.  Automobile Liability. IftheContractor operatesamotorvehicleinperforming theServices
underthisAgreement, theContractor shallmaintaincommercial automobile liability
insurance, includingowned, hired, andnon-ownedautomobiles, withaminimumliability limit
of $1,000,000combined singlelimit.   

C.  Workers’ Compensation. TheContractor agreestoprovideworkers’ compensation insurance
forallitsemployees inaccordance withthestatutory requirements oftheStateofMinnesota.  
TheContractor shallalsocarryemployers liabilitycoveragewithminimumlimitsareas
follows:  

500,000 – BodilyInjurybyDiseaseperemployee
500,000 – BodilyInjurybyDiseaseaggregate

2
225407v1



500,000 – BodilyInjurybyAccident

TheContractor shall, priortocommencing theServices, delivertotheCityaCertificateof
Insurance asevidence thattheabovecoverages areinfullforceandeffect.   

Theinsurancerequirements maybemetthroughanycombination ofprimaryand
umbrella/excess insurance.  

TheContractor’spoliciesshallbetheprimary insurance toanyothervalidandcollectible
insurance available totheCitywithrespecttoanyclaimarisingoutofContractor’s
performance underthisAgreement.   

TheContractor’spoliciesandCertificateofInsurance shallcontainaprovision thatcoverage
affordedunderthepoliciesshallnotbecancelled withoutatleastthirty (30) daysadvanced
writtennoticetotheCity.  

11. Independent Contractor. Contractor isanindependent contractor. Contractor’sdutiesshall be
performed withthe understanding thatContractor hasspecialexpertiseastotheserviceswhich
Contractor istoperformandiscustomarily engaged in theindependent performance ofthesameor
similarservicesforothers. Contractorshallprovideorcontract forallrequiredequipment andpersonnel.  
Contractor shallcontrol themanner inwhichthe services areperformed; however, thenatureofthe
Services andtheresultstobeachieved shallbespecifiedbytheCity. Thepartiesagreethatthisisnota
jointventureandthepartiesarenotco-partners. Contractor isnotanemployeeoragentoftheCityand
hasnoauthority tomakeanybindingcommitments orobligations onbehalfoftheCityexcepttothe
extentexpressly providedinthisAgreement. AllservicesprovidedbyContractor pursuant tothis
Agreement shallbeprovided byContractor asanindependent contractor andnotasanemployeeofthe
Cityforanypurpose, includingbutnotlimitedto: incometaxwithholding, workers' compensation,  
unemployment compensation, FICAtaxes, liabilityfortortsandeligibility foremployeebenefits.   

12. Indemnification.  Tothefullestextentpermittedbylaw, theContractor agreestodefend,  
indemnify, andholdharmless theCityanditsemployees, officials, andagentsfromandagainstall
claims, actions, damages, losses, andexpenses, including reasonable attorney fees, arisingoutofthe
Contractor’snegligence ortheContractor’sperformance orfailuretoperform itsobligations underthis
Agreement. TheContractor’sindemnification obligation shallapplytotheContractor’ssubcontractor(s),  
oranyonedirectlyorindirectlyemployed orhiredbytheContractor, oranyoneforwhoseactsthe
Contractor maybeliable. TheContractoragreesthisindemnity obligationshallsurvivethecompletion
ortermination ofthisAgreement.  

13. Compliance withLaws. Contractor shallexercisedueprofessional caretocomplywithapplicable
federal, stateandlocallaws, rules, ordinances andregulations ineffectasofthedateContractor agrees
toprovidetheServices. Contractor’sguests, invitees, members, officers, officials, agents, employees,  
volunteers, representatives, andsubcontractors shallabidebytheCity’spolicies prohibiting sexual
harassment andtobacco, drug, andalcoholuseasdefinedontheCity’sTobacco, Drug, andAlcoholPolicy,  
aswellasallotherreasonableworkrules, safetyrules, orpolicies, andprocedures regulating theconduct
ofpersonsonCityproperty, atalltimeswhileperforming dutiespursuant tothisAgreement. Contractor
agreesandunderstands thataviolationofanyofthesepolicies, procedures, orrulesconstitutes abreach
oftheAgreement andsufficientgroundsforimmediate termination oftheAgreement bytheCity.  

3
225407v1



14. EntireAgreement. ThisAgreement, anyattached exhibits, andanyaddendasignedbytheparties
shallconstitute theentireagreement betweentheCityandContractor, andsupersedes anyotherwritten
ororalagreements betweentheCityandContractor. ThisAgreement mayonlybemodified inawriting
signedbytheCityandContractor. IfthereisanyconflictbetweenthetermsofthisAgreement andthe
referenced orattached items, thetermsofthisAgreement shallprevail.   

15. ThirdPartyRights. ThepartiestothisAgreement donotintendtoconferanyrightsunderthis
Agreement onanythirdparty.  

16. ChoiceofLawandVenue. ThisAgreement shallbegovernedbyandconstrued inaccordance with
thelawsofthestateofMinnesota. Anydisputes, controversies, orclaimsarisingoutofthisAgreement
shallbeheardinthestateorfederalcourtsofHennepin County, Minnesota, andallpartiestothis
Agreement waiveanyobjection tothejurisdiction ofthesecourts, whetherbasedonconvenience or
otherwise.   

17. ConflictofInterest. Contractor shallusereasonable caretoavoidconflictsofinterestand
appearances ofimpropriety inrepresentation oftheCity. Intheeventofaconflictofinterest, Contractor
shalladvisetheCityand, eithersecureawaiveroftheconflict, oradvisetheCitythatitwillbeunableto
providetherequested Services.   

18. Agreement NotExclusive. TheCityretainstherighttohireotherprofessional landscape
maintenance serviceproviders forthisorothermatters, intheCity’ssolediscretion.  

19. DataPracticesActCompliance. AnyandalldataprovidedtoContractor, received fromContractor,  
created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained, ordisseminated byContractor pursuant tothis
Agreement shallbeadministered inaccordance with, andissubjecttotherequirements oftheMinnesota
Government DataPracticesAct, Minnesota Statutes, Chapter13. Contractor agreestonotifytheCitywithin
threebusinessdaysifitreceivesadatarequest fromathirdparty. Thisparagraph doesnotcreateaduty
onthepartofContractor toprovideaccesstopublicdatatothepublicifthepublicdataareavailable from
theCity, exceptasrequiredbythetermsofthisAgreement. Theseobligations shallsurvivethetermination
orcompletion ofthisAgreement.   

20. NoDiscrimination. Contractor agreesnottodiscriminate inprovidingproductsandservices under
thisAgreement onthebasisofrace, color, sex, creed, nationalorigin, disability, age, sexualorientation, status
withregardtopublicassistance, orreligion. Violationofanypartofthisprovisionmayleadtoimmediate
termination ofthisAgreement. Contractor agreestocomplywiththeAmericans withDisabilities Actas
amended (“ADA”), section504oftheRehabilitation Actof1973, andtheMinnesota HumanRightsAct,  
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter363A. Contractoragreestoholdharmlessandindemnify theCityfromcosts,  
includingbutnotlimitedtodamages, attorneys’ feesandstafftime, inanyactionorproceeding brought
allegingaviolationoftheselawsbyContractor oritsguests, invitees, members, officers, officials, agents,  
employees, volunteers, representatives andsubcontractors. Uponrequest, Contractor shallprovide
accommodation toallowindividuals withdisabilities toparticipate inallServicesunderthisAgreement.  
Contractor agreestoutilizeitsownauxiliaryaidorserviceinordertocomplywithADArequirements for
effectivecommunication withindividuals withdisabilities.  

21. Authorized Agents. TheCity’sauthorized agentforpurposesofadministration ofthiscontract is
theCityAdministrator oftheCity, ordesignee. Contractor’sauthorized agentforpurposesof

4
225407v1



administration ofthiscontract is __________________, ordesignee whoshallperformorsupervise the
performance ofallServices.  

22. Notices. AnynoticespermittedorrequiredbythisAgreement shallbedeemedgivenwhen
personally deliveredorupondeposit intheUnitedStatesmail, postagefullyprepaid, certified, return
receiptrequested, addressed to:  

Contractor TheCity
MangoldHorticulture CityAdministrator
P.O. Box250 5755CountryClubRoad
Excelsior, MN555331 Shorewood, MN55331

orsuchothercontact information aseitherpartymayprovidetotheotherbynoticegiveninaccordance
withthisprovision.  

26. Waiver. NowaiverofanyprovisionorofanybreachofthisAgreement shallconstituteawaiver
ofanyotherprovisionsoranyotherorfurtherbreach, andnosuchwaivershallbeeffectiveunlessmade
inwritingandsignedbyanauthorized representative ofthepartytobechargedwithsuchawaiver.  

27. Headings. Theheadingscontained inthisAgreement havebeeninsertedforconvenience of
referenceonlyandshall innowaydefine, limitoraffectthescopeandintentofthisAgreement.  

28. Severability. Intheeventthat anyprovisionofthisAgreement shallbeillegalorotherwise
unenforceable, suchprovisionshallbesevered, andthebalanceoftheAgreement shallcontinue infull
forceandeffect.  

29. Signatory. Eachpersonexecuting thisAgreement (“Signatory”) represents andwarrants thatthey
are dulyauthorized tosignonbehalfoftheirrespective organization. IntheeventContractor didnot
authorize theSignatory tosignonitsbehalf, theSignatory agreestoassume responsibility fortheduties
andliabilityofContractor, described inthisAgreement, personally.   

30. Counterparts andElectronic Signatures. ThisAgreement maybeexecutedintwoormore
counterparts, eachofwhichshallbedeemedanoriginal, butallofwhichtakentogethershallconstitute
oneandthesameinstrument. ThisAgreement maybetransmitted byelectronic mailinportable
document format (“pdf”) andsignaturesappearingonelectronicmailinstruments shallbetreatedas
originalsignatures.  

31. Recitals. TheCityandContractor agreethattheRecitalsaretrueandcorrectandarefully
incorporated intothisAgreement.  

Remainder ofpageleftblankintentionally. Signature pagefollows.\]  

5
225407v1



INWITNESS WHEREOF, theCityandContractor havecausedthisProfessional ServicesAgreement tobe
executedbytheirdulyauthorized representatives induplicateontherespective datesindicatedbelow.  

MangoldGroup, LLC CityofShorewood:  

By: _________________________________ By: _________________________________  
Name: ______________________________     JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Title: _______________________________   

By: _________________________________  
SandieThone, CityClerk

6
225407v1



EXHIBITA
SCOPEOFSERVICES & FEESCHEDULE

225407v1



















CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item
2ETitle/Subject:  ApproveChangeOrderforStrawberryLaneStreet MEETING

ImprovementsProject; CityProject19-05 TYPE
RegularMeeting Date: Monday, March27, 2023
MeetingPrepared by:  Andrew Budde, CityEngineer

Attachments:  ChangeOrder #1, Resolution

Background:  Staffhasdiscussed andconcluded thatrevising watermain pipe
materials fortheprojectwillprovide highqualitymaterials atalowercost totheproject
andongoing maintenance.  Theproposed change inmaterials istoreplace the
proposed ductile ironpipe (DIP) withpolyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe, andtoreplace the
proposed copper waterservices withCTSpolyethylene services. These materials are
regularly usedonmanycity, state, andfederal projects withgoodresults formany
years. PVCwatermain pipeisthepreferred material tobeinstalled onfutureprojects by
citystaff toreduce short- andlong-termcosts.  

FinancialConsiderations: Costs forthisworkwould reduce thebidcontract costsbya
totalof $37,989.00.    

Recommendation/ActionRequested: Staff recommends approving theChange Order
1intheamountof - $37,989.00toKuechle Underground, Inc. fortheStrawberry Lane
Street Improvements Project, CityProject 19-05.  

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1







CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION23-031

ARESOLUTIONTOAPPROVECHANGEORDERNO. 1
FORSTRAWBERRYLANE; CITYPROJECT19-05

WHEREAS, theCitywillbereconstructing Strawberry Lane, Peach Circle, and
ndStrawberry Court fromW62 Street totheSmithtown Lanein2023; and

WHEREAS, thecitystandard forwatermain hadpreviously beenductile ironpipeand
copper waterservices whentheprojects werebidinthefallof2022; and

WHEREAS, staffhashaddiscussions withpublicworks, engineering, finance, and
contractors andhavedetermined thatPVCwatermain andplastic water services are
equivalent totheprevious standard ofDIPandcopperandthatutilizing plastic
watermain andservices cansavethecitymoney; and

NOWTHEREFORE, ITRESOLVED: bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby approve theresolution toapprove Change OrderNo1whichwillsavethecity
37,989.00ontheStrawberry Laneproject.  

thADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this27 dayofMarch,  
2023.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item
2F

Title/Subject:  ApproveChangeOrderforBirchBluffRoad MEETINGTYPE
Project; CityProject21-01 Regular

MeetingMeeting Date: Monday, March27, 2023
Prepared by:  Andrew Budde, CityEngineer
Attachments:  ChangeOrder #1, Resolution

Background:  Staffhasdiscussed andconcluded thatrevising watermain pipe
materials fortheproject willcontinue toprovide highquality materials atalowercostto
theproject andongoing maintenance.  Theproposed change inmaterials istoreplace
theproposed ductile ironpipe (DIP) withpolyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe. PVCpipe
materials areregularly usedonmanycity, state, andfederal projects withgood results
formanyyears. PVCwatermain pipeisthepreferred material tobeinstalled onfuture
projects bycitystaff toreduce short- andlong-termcosts.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations: Costs forthisworkwould reduce thebidcontract
costsbyatotalof $12,950.00.    

Recommendation/ActionRequested: Staff recommends approving theChange Order
1intheamountof - $12,950.00toNewLookContracting, Inc. fortheBirchBluffStreet

Improvements Project, CityProject 21-01.  

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1







CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION23-032

ARESOLUTIONTOAPPROVECHANGEORDERNO. 1
FORBIRCHBLUFFROAD; CITYPROJECT21-01

WHEREAS, theCitywillbereconstructing BirchBluffRoadandGrantLorenz Road
fromEdgewood RoadtotheTonka BayCity limits in2023; and

WHEREAS, thecitystandard forwatermain hadpreviously beenductile ironpipeand
copper waterservices whentheprojects werebidinthefallof2022; and

WHEREAS, staffhashaddiscussions withpublicworks, engineering, finance, and
contractors andhavedetermined thatPVCwatermain andplastic water services are
equivalent totheprevious standard ofDIPandcopperandthatutilizing plastic
watermain andservices cansavethecitymoney; and

NOWTHEREFORE, ITRESOLVED: bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby approve theresolution toapprove Change OrderNo1whichwillsavethecity
12,950.00ontheBirchBluffRoadproject.  

thADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this27 dayofMarch,  
2023.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



CityCouncilMeetingItem

ItemTitle/Subject:   ApprovePermanent Appointment ofLEO/ShopTechJeremyMoe
2GMeetingDate:  March27, 2023

Preparedby:   SandieThone, CityClerk/HumanResources Director
Reviewedby:   MattMorreim, PublicWorksDirector
Attachments:   None

PolicyConsideration:  Pursuant toShorewood PersonnelPolicySection3.08Allnew, rehired,  
promoted orreassigned employees shallcompleteasix (6) monthprobationary periodupon
assuming theirnewpositions.  Thisperiodshallbeusedtoobservetheemployee’sworkhabits
andabilitytoperformtheworktheyarerequiredtodo.     

Background:  OnAugust22, 2022, JeremyMoebeganhisemployment withtheCityof
Shorewood asaLightEquipment Operator/ShopTechwiththePublicWorksdepartment.   
Jeremyhasprovedtobeavaluablememberoftheteamandhasalreadymadepositive
contributions inhisfirstsixmonthsofemployment.  Jeremy isprofessional andgetsalongwell
withteammembers.  Heexudes theCity’scorevaluesofRespect, Integrity, Communication,  
PositiveAttitude, TeamWork, andResponsiveness inallhedoes.  Jeremyhasbeenfully
successful inhisworkresponsibilities andhasmetorexceeded manyoftheCity’sexpectations
inhisfirstsixmonthsofemployment .  Heisbeingrecommended forpermanent appointment
inthecapacityofLightEquipment Operator/ShopTechfortheCityofShorewood.     

FinancialConsiderations: Asdelineated below.    

ActionRequested: Staffrespectfully recommends thecitycouncilapprove JeremyMoe’s
permanent appointment andnon-exempthourly ratebeadvanced fromtheAFSCME “After2
Years” rateof $32.40tothe “After3Years” rateof $33.40perhoureffectiveatthecompletion
ofhis6-monthanniversary whichbecameeffectiveFebruary 22, 2023anduponapprovalofhis
permanent appointment basedonhisexcellentperformance todateandhisdemonstration of
theCity’sdesiredcorevaluesandattributes.    
Motion, secondandsimplemajorityvoterequired.    

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
sustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancialmanagement througheffective, efficient, and
visionary leadership.       

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CityCouncilMeetingItem

ItemTitle/Subject:   AcceptResignation ofCommunity CenterAttendant
2HandApprove Recruitment forPosition

MeetingDate:  March27, 2023
Preparedby:   SandieThone, CityClerk/HumanResources Director
Reviewedby:   JanelleCrossfield, Park/Recreation Director

MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   None

Background:  Staffreceived theresignation ofPart-TimeCommunity CenterattendantSandi
LarsonwhichwillbecomeeffectiveMarch28, 2023.  Ms. Larsonhasworkedinthecapacityof
Community CenterAttendant sinceApril26, 2015.  Shecurrentlyworksapproximately 12-15
hoursperweekandherrateofpayis $14.33perhour.  TheCommunity Centerhistorically has
employed approximately 3-4community centerattendants whoperformvariusduties including
receptionist duties, openingandclosingthecenter, andadministrative responsibilities.  The
hoursforthepositionvarydepending onthecenter’sscheduled activities, anddoinclude
eveningsandweekends.  WithMs. Larson’sdeparture, thecentercurrentlyhastwopart-time
attendants andonerecreationspecialist.  Staffseeksapproval torecruitforandtoreplaceMs.  
Larson’spart-timepositionof12-15hoursperweek.  Theposition isclassifiedonthecity’s
compensation scheduleasGrade1withapayrangeof $13.23to $19.84perhour.    

FinancialConsiderations: Nochangeexpected.    

ActionRequested: Staffrespectfully recommends thecitycouncilacceptSandiLarson’s
resignation andapproverecruitment forreplacement ofherpositionaspart-timeCommunity
CenterAttendant fortheShorewood Community andEventCenter.    

Motion, secondandsimplemajorityvoterequired.    

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
varietofattractiveamenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancialmanagement through
effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.       

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



5A

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB RD
PARK COMMISSION MEETING SHOREWOOD CITY HALL
TUESDAY, MARCH 14, 2022 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE PARK COMMISSION MEETING

ChairHirnerconvened themeeting at7:01p.m.  

A. Roll Call
Present:  ChairHirner, Commissioners Levy, Garske, Wenner, Czerwonka

CityCouncil Liaison Sanschagrin; ParksandRecreation Director
Crossfield; Planning Director Darling; andCityEngineer Budde

Absent: None

B. Review Agenda

ChairHirner notedthathewould liketoaddelection ofChairandVice-Chair totheagenda asitem
5.C.    

Levy moved toapprove theagenda, asamended.  Garske seconded themotion.  Motion
carried 5-0.  

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. Park Commission Meeting Minutes ofFebruary 14, 2023

Garske moved toapprove theminutes oftheFebruary 14, 2023 meeting, aswritten.  Levy
seconded themotion.  Motion carried 5-0.  

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

Therewerenone.    

4. NEW BUSINESS

A. Mill Street Trail Project

Planning Director Darling gavebackground information ontheMillStreet trailprojectandnoted
thattheCityhadbeenworking withtheCounty sinceabout2018.  Shestated thatplansbecame
abitstalledduetoCOVID-19, buthavebegunmoving forward onceagain.  Shestatedthat there
areplansforright-of-wayacquisition tomoveforward beginning in2024andconstruction in2025.   
Shestated thattheCitycompleted afeasibility reportwhichwasessentially thefirst lookatwhere
toputthetrail inanditsimpact.  Sheintroduced LukeSandstrom whoistheproject manager who
hasbeenassigned tothisproject fromHennepin County.    

LukeSandstrom stated thattheconversation about thisprojecthasbeenhappening foroverten
years, soheishappy thatithasfinallymoved itswayintothe County’sCIPandbudget.  Hegave
abriefpresentation about thelocation oftheMillStreet TrailProject thatwillgofromdowntown



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, MARCH14, 2022
PAGE2OF8

Excelsior through Shorewood to, andpossible abitpast theCounty line.  Heexplained thatthe
intention istoconnect totheregional trail thatcomesupthroughChanhassen alongtheeastside
ofMillStreet. Hereviewed someofthedesigndetailsandfeatures andnotedthat therewillneed
tobeaccommodations madeforthings likeutilities, mailboxes, garbage cans, andsnowremoval.   
Hestated thattheirplanscalltoshiftthecenterline oftheroadway tothewestabitinorderto
provide morespaceontheeastsideforthetrailandreviewed twoofthedesign possibilities.  He
stated thatbeginning inApril, theywillbeginpublic engagement andwillhostaseriesofopen
houses andpop-upevents inaddition toanon-lineopenhouse thatwillbelivefortheentire
month.  Hestated thatthefinallayoutanddesignwillbecompiled basedonallthefeedback they
receive.  Hereviewed theproposed schedule andtimeline forconstruction andexplained that
theyarelooking tobuild thisproject inthesummer of2025.  Hehighlighted somethings thatwere
included intheCity’s feasibility report thatimpacted 17treesandexplained thatintheir two
alternates, theyarelookingatimpacting upto10treeswithOption1 (noshoulders), orupto20- 
24treeswithOption2 (withshoulders) butnotedthattheCounty forestry department willbe
completing atreeinventory ofthecorridor.  Heencouraged people tocontact himiftheyhadany
comments orquestions about theproject.    

ChairHirnerstated thathehasdrivendownthisroadway quiteabitandontheChanhassen side
theshoulders areabitwider.  Heaskedaboutthenumbers ofpeople usingtheshoulders versus
thepathway thatisalongside theroadway.   

Mr. Sandstrom explained thattheyhavesomepedestrian/bikecounts thatbothcounties have
done, buttheyweredoneinthemidstofthepandemic.  Heexplained thattheyplantodosome
morecounts thisspring thattheyhopewillbehelpful.   Hestatedthattheywillalsodocounts
oncethetrail isopentoseethemostcommon crossing points todetermine iftheyneedtobe
upgraded orenhanced.    

Commissioner Levystated thatshedrivesthrough thisareafrequently.  Shestated thatthereis
aspeedchange thatgoesfrom45mphto30mphwhich issometimes hardtoremember.  She
askediftherewasaplantomakethismoreconsistent through thearea.  

Mr. Sandstrom stated thattheCityofShorewood already restricts parking ontheirshoulders and
Excelsior doesnot.  Hestated thattheywouldbelooking toperhaps remove parking inExcelsior
andnotedthathebelieves atthatpoint theCounty wouldbesupportive oflowering thespeed
limittomakeitconsistent, butitwould havetobedoneinagreement withthecities.    

Commissioner Levystated thatthebridgehasnoleeway andaskediftheplanswere foritto
remain thesame.   

Mr. Sandstrom explained thattheyarelimitedbythecurrent bridgeofHighway7buthavemade
anoteaboutwidening itwhen theremaybere-decking inthefuture.    

Commissioner Levystated thatthere isasection wherepeoplehaveputinstoneretaining walls
andaskedhowthosewouldbenavigated.   

rdMr. Sandstrom stated thattherearetwoblockwalls inExcelsior justsouthof3 andexplained
that thecurrent planwastolookatnarrowing downtheroadway tojustthetravel lanes, because
inthisarea, theyareessentially stuckbetween thetwowalls.  



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, MARCH14, 2022
PAGE3OF8

Commissioner Garske askedifthiswastheonlylocation where thebikelaneswouldhave tobe
restricted inthismanner.   

Mr. Sandstrom stated thatbecause ofsiteconstraints, theonlylocations itwouldberestricted in
thismanner wouldbethisareaaswellasthebridge.  

Commissioner Garske askedifthetwooptions wereessentially thesamecost forconstruction.   

Mr. Sandstrom stated thattheyhaveacostparticipation policywiththepartner cities.  He
explained thatfromthecitiespointofview, theoptionwiththenon-bikeable shoulders wouldbe
abitcheaper.  Heexplained thatifthereisanarrower roadsection, lessright-of-wayacquisition
isneeded.        

Commissioner Wenner askedabout thewestsideandiftherewouldbeanyright-of-wayor
infringement onproperties.   

Mr. Sandstrom stated thatitwouldallbeontheeastside.    

CityEngineer BuddestatedthattheCityistryingtoaddwatermain inandalongthiscorridor in
conjunction with thisproject.  Hestated thattheideaistogetinwhile theCounty isdoing their
worksotheareaisonlydisturbed once.  Hestated thatinorder todothis, theCitymayneed
somepermanent easements andmaypotentially havewatermain onthewestside.    

ChairHirneraskediftherewasadesireonthisproject tocontinue bikeable shoulders asfaras
theycan.   

Mr. Sandstrom stated thatwaswhytheyaretryingtogetinput fromthecitiesandthepublic to
seewhattheirpreference is.  

Commissioner Wenner askedifthe11foottravel lanewasaminimum width.   

Mr. Sandstrom explained thatforthespeedandforthetypeofroad, because itisone-way, both
ways, theywouldnotgobelow11feet.    

ChairHirner askedCityEngineer Buddeabout theadditional trafficneartheCatholic churchand
iftheCityhadanythoughts onwhattheimpactofatrailmaybe, withorwithout bikelanes.   

CityEngineer Buddestated thattherehavebeenafewmeetings andtheyhavegivensomeinitial
feedback butdoesnotthinktheyhavebeenabletodiveintosomeoftheveryspecific detailsat
thispoint.  Hestated thathisperspective isthatwhenyouthinkabout thelargercontext,  alotof
Chanhassen roadways aregenerally prettyhealthy, withwideshoulders, sohewould envision a
fairamountofpeople wanting tousebikeable shoulders.  Hestated thatiftheygettotheCityand
neckitdownwithnobikelanes, itwillbeaveryabruptchange andfeel.  Hestated thathe
understands thateverybody, intheory, wants lesspavement, however itwillbeimportant tothink
abouthowitwillbeusedandthepotential consequences ofreallynarrowing itupto11footlanes.  

Commissioner Wenner askedhowmuchcontact therehadbeenwiththeresidents whowillbe
impacted.   



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, MARCH14, 2022
PAGE4OF8

CityEngineer Buddestated thatwhen thefeasibility studywasdone, therewassomepublic
engagement butthinks thatMr. Sandstrom andhisteamarereally tryingtopushalotmoreof
thatcontact withthings liketheopenhouses andotherpublicengagement.   

Mr. Sandstrom referenced thefeasibility leadbytheCityandnotedthatitwas justexclusively
within theCitylimitsandthe2020study thattheCityofExcelsior ledwasinconjunction with
Hennepin County whichshowed theentire section.   

Commissioner Levyaskedwhatwouldbeplanted within the6footboulevard space.   

Ms. Sandstrom statedthatatthispoint theyarejustplanning forgrassbuttherehasbeensome
discussion aboutputting intrees.  Hestatedthattheyareopentooptions other thangrassbutit
wouldhavetobeconfirmed withthepowerauthorities toseewhatwouldbeallowed.    

Commissioner Garskeasked ifthistrailwouldeventually connect tothearboretumoriftherewere
planstoconnect ittootherpartsofthetrailsystem.   

Mr. Sandstrom stated thatwiththenorthendoftheproject itcouldbetakenallthewaytothefive
cornerarea, butifyougoablockshortandtakealeft, youcangettotheMinnetonka Regional
Trailaswell.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatsheknows thatitalsogoesallthewaydowntoHighway 5.    

ChairHirner thanked Mr. Sandstrom forattending andnotedthattoday’spresentation hasbeen
veryinformative.    

There was aconsensus oftheCommission that their initial preference forbike lanes tobe
incorporated into theproject.  

B. Movie inthePark

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield stated thatbecause lastyear’seventwasarainout,  
thiswouldbeareschedule ofthesamemovie.  Shestated thatthemoviewillbeJungleBook
andnotedthattheyareworking toschedule adate.   

5. OLD BUSINESS

A. Freeman Concessionaire

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield reviewed theoptions forconcessions atFreeman Park.   
Sheexplained thatthefirstoptionwouldbefortheAthletic Association tooperate aninitialpilot
phasebetween AprilandJune, Monday through Thursdays, 5:00p.m. to8:30p.m.  Shestated
thattheywouldplantohiretheirownsitecoordinator tobethepointperson between theCityand
theconcession stand.  Sheexplained thattheywereproposing a $500building usage feeand
notedthattheywouldalsoneedtoenter intoanagreement withtheCitythatwouldneedtobe
approved bytheCityCouncil.  Shenotedthat theremaybetheneedforupdated refrigerators
andfreezers.  Thereviewed theotherpossible options andnotedthatstaffwasrecommending
thattheCityenter intoanagreement withtheAthleticAssociation.      

ChairHirneraskedwhichAthletic Association thiswouldbewith.   



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, MARCH14, 2022
PAGE5OF8

Parks andRecreation Director Crossfield explained thatitwouldbeTonkaUnited.    

ChairHirneraskediftheCitywould alsogivethemrights toofferconcessions forweekends when
therearetournaments sincetheyonlymentioned operating Monday through Thursday evenings.   

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield explained thattheyhadonlyexpressed interest in
running itfromMonday through Thursday andnotedthattheymayhavedifferent plansfor
tournaments.    

Commissioner Levyaskedwhattypesofevents therewouldbe wheretherewouldbeno
concessions available.   

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield stated thattherewouldnotbeconcessions forbaseball
because theyruntheirownconcessions outofthesouthpartofthepark.  Shestated thatTonka
Unitedbelieves thattheirbiggest demand forconcessions willbeontheweekdays.    

ChairHirneraskedabout the $500buildingusage feeandhowitcompared towhatwascharged
fortheprevious user.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatshebelieves itisaslightly morethanwhatwascharged in
thepast.    

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield notedthatthe $500feewasproposed bytheAthletic
Association.  Shereminded theCommission thatthisisaproposed pilotprogram sotheAthletic
Association would evaluate whether ornottheywanted tocontinue running itfortheremainder
ofthesummerattheendoftheinitialperiod.     

ChairHirnersuggested thattheCitylookintothepossibility ofcoming toanagreement withPepsi
orCokeinordertohelppayforsomeofthenecessary equipment, butoffer theirproducts for
sale.    

Commissioner Levyaskedifthereweregeneral rulesfortheuseofthefacility, suchasnotplaying
loudmusic.   

Planning Director Darlingstated that theycouldmakesuretheyhaveacopyofChapter 902that
contains therulesforthepark.    

Garske moved torecommend approval oftheCity entering into anagreement with the
Athletic Association (Tonka United) with payment of a $500 building use fee, tooffer
concessions through apilot program Monday through Thursday from 5:00p.m. to8:30
p.m. from April through June.  Wenner seconded themotion.  Motion carried 5-0.  

B. IPM Plan Phase 2

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield stated thatbecause therewasalackofquorum onthe
ParksCommission, Phase IIoftheIPMwentstraight totheCityCouncil fordiscussion buthad
wanted toformally sharetheinformation withtheCommission.  ShenotedthattheCouncil
discussed thisattheirrecent retreatandsheanticipates that theywillbegiving furtherdirection
totheParksCommission atsomepoint inthefuture.   



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, MARCH14, 2022
PAGE6OF8

Planning Director Darling suggested thattheParkCommission become familiarwith theplanand
whattheconsultant hassuggested.  ShenotedthattheCity’sbudget doesnotallowforeverything
tobeimplemented allatoncesotheCityCouncil mayaskthemtoweigh inonpossible
alternatives.    

ChairHirnerasked ifSilverwood wouldnowbeaddedintotheIPMsincetheconstruction had
beencompleted.    

Planning Director Darlingstated thatshebelieves thattheylumpedsomeofthesmaller parks
together soshedidnotknowiftheywouldre-evaluate Silverwood atthispoint.    

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield notedthatshewasdisappointed thattheyhadnotdone
soilstudies liketheydidatotherparks, atSilverwood, because itwouldhavebeennicetoget
their input.  Shenotedthatinheropinion, Silverwood isnot liketheparks thatithasbeengrouped
with.  Shestated thatitwouldbeniceiftheconsultants wouldgooutanddoasoilstudyandtake
alookatthegrasssinceitwasn’tdonesimplybecause theparkwasunderconstruction.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatshewilltalktotheconsultants andseewhatthatmayinvolve.    

ChairHirnersuggested thattheParksCommission makesurethattheyhavealsoreadythe
Phase1information aswell.    

C. Election ofChair and Vice-Chair for2023

Garske moved toappoint Mike Hirner toserve asChair.  Levy seconded the motion.  Motion
carried 5-0.  

Levy moved toappoint Commissioner Wenner toserve as Vice-Chair.  Garske seconded
themotion.  Motion carried 5-0.   

D. 2023 Work Program and Schedule

ChairHirner reviewed theproposed 2023WorkProgram andschedule puttogether bystaff.    

Commissioner Wenner notedthatsheisaMinnesota Master Naturalist andTreeCareAdvisor
andstated thatshewould liketoseetheParkCommission become moreacquainted withCity
policies withregard totrees.  Shenotedthatwouldalsooverlap withtheIPMandthings like
Buckthorn removal.  Shestated thatitmayalsobeagoodideafortheCommission totakea
closer lookattheCity’streesurveysotheyhaveabetterunderstanding ofwhattheCity’stree
make-upactually looks like.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatitmaybepossible tobringsomeofthisinformation tothe
ParkCommission butnotedthattheprivate development sideoftreepreservation washandled
bythePlanning Commission.  Shestated thattheycouldbring information totheCommission for
thosethatareonpublicproperty.  

Commissioner Wenner stated thatshecould takeonworking withtheParkssurveyandthetree
surveyandlettheCommission knowwhatshefinds.    



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, MARCH14, 2022
PAGE7OF8

Planning Director Darling statedthatmaybepossible.    

Commissioner Wenner askedwhatkindofresources theCityhasforresidents whoaredealing
ashtreesorbuckthorn.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattheCityhasaprogram fordisease evaluation through Davey
Resource Group.  Shestated that theCitycontracts withthemtoprovideacertain numberof
evaluations onprivate properties.  Sheexplained thattheywouldnotprovideaquote forremoval
ofthetrees.  ShestatedCitydoesnotrequire buckthorn removal andnotedthatperStaterules
itisnotsupposed tobetransported orplanted new. Shestated thatifpeoplewanttoremove it
fromtheirprivate property, theCityhassomewrenches available, thatrequire submitting a
deposit and thentheycankeeptheequipment foraweekatatime.  Shestatedthat theyare
prettyeffective, butitishardwork.    

ChairHirnerstatedthattheCityhashadgoats inFreeman Parkforafewyearstohelpwiththe
buckthorn issueandaskediftheywereonceagainconsidering thatasanoption.    

Planning Director Darling stated that theCityactually hadreceived agrant fromtheMinnesota
DNRfor $50,000torestore partoftheforest inFreeman Park.  Shestated thatshebelieved the
followupplanfollowing themechanized removal anddaubing wastomaintain itwithnon- 
chemical meanssuchasthegoats, however, thisiscurrently onholdpending details related to
theIPMplan.    

Commissioner Wenner askedwhether thisgrantwould expireandifpausing theprogram could
meantheCitylosesthosegrant funds.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatitdoesexpire in2024andnotedthattheCitycould losethe
fundsdepending onhowlongthingsareputonhold.    

Commissioner Wenner stated thatshewould liketoseetheCommission takealookattree
information andpolicies nextwinter.  Shenotedthat theycould also takealookatbecoming a
TreeCityU.S.A. andnotedthatthereareprograms where theCitycouldhavecollege interns
comeandtakeoversomeofthistypeofwork.  ShestatedthattheCitycouldalsotakealookat
holding ArborDayevents, treesales, andfindotherwaystobemoreproactive.  Shereiterated
thatshewould liketoseetheParkCommission takeacloser lookatthecurrent treepreservation
policy.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatthePlanning Commission discusses treeremoval whenthey
consider mostprojects.    

Commissioner Levystated thatsherecently readthrough thebeeresolution implementation plan
andnoticed twothings thatshedidnotthinktheCitywasreallydoing.  Shestated thatonewas
efforts toplantpollinator plantsandaskedifthatwassomething thatParksCommission would
lookfor.  Shestated thatshewonders ifthereshouldbesignsattheparkssoresidents canlook
andseethingsandfindoutthenamesofthings thattheycouldgrowintheirownbackyard.  She
askedifthistypeofcommunication fellunder theresponsibilities oftheParksCommission.    

Planning Director Darling stated that itwoulddependonwhat theCityCouncil decides isthePark
Commission roleandnotedthatshethinks thattheyarestillawaiting moredirection fromthem
onthatissue.    



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, MARCH14, 2022
PAGE8OF8

Wenner moved to add anitem tothe2023 Work Program and Schedule forthemonth of
December regarding trees intheparks.  Hirner seconded themotion.  Motion carried 5-0.   

Garske moved toapprove the2023 Work Program and Schedule, asrevised.  Levy
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  

6. STAFF AND LIAISON REPORTS / UPDATES

A. City Council

Councilmember Sanschagrin introduced himself andgaveanoverview ofrecentCouncil
discussion andactions.    

B. Staff

A. Silverwood Park Grand Opening

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield stated thatshehadsentoutapollanditlookslikethe
majority ofthevotesweretoholdtheGrandOpening onTuesday, June20, 2023.  Shestated
thatstaffwillmoveforward planning fortheGrand Opening forthatdate.   

Commissioner Wenner noted thatshehadlooked intothepossibility ofBen & Jerry’s, butthey
willbetooexpensive.  Shenotedthattheyhaddirected hertoBigBellwhomaybeabetteroption
fortheCity.    

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield stated that Recreation Specialist Vassar hasbeen
researching local icecreamvendors totrytofindanoption thatwouldwork, butwillpassalong
thisinformation toher.   

Planning Director Darling stated thattheCityCouncil willbelookingmoreindepthattheIPMplan
andwaystomove forwardattheirMarch27, 2023WorkSession meeting.    

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield notedthatShoreReport isintheworksandtherewill
besomeParksandRecreation programs andservices thatwillbepromoted.    

7. ADJOURN

Garske moved toadjourn the Park Commission Meeting of March 14, 2023 at 8:33 p.m.   
Levy seconded themotion.  Motion carried 5-0.  



CityCouncilMeetingItem

ItemTitle/Subject:   ParkCommission WorkProgram2023
5BMeetingDate:  March27, 2023

Preparedby:   JanelleCrossfield, ParksandRecreation Director
Reviewedby:   MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator

Background: TheParksCommissionreviewedandacceptedtheattachedworkprogramfor2023.   
Pleasereviewtheattachedworkprogram.  TheCityCouncilmayadd, amendordeleteanyoftheitems
intheworkprogram.  

Tentative2023WorkProgram

Aprilof2023
ConcessionsAgreement

o TonkaUnitedisseekingtheopportunitytooperateconcessionsatEddy’sStation

Summerof2023 (May - July)  
ParkTours

o ParkCommissionandCitystaffwilltourShorewoodParksandnoteany
observationsforfutureneeds

MillStreetTrailDesignReview
o ParkCommissionwillreviewthedesignoptionsandmakearecommendation

Fallof2023 (August – December)  
ShorewoodParksandRecreationInclusionPolicy

o TheParkCommissionwillreviewthelawsandcommonpracticesregardingadaptive
andinclusionrecreationandmakerecommendationsonpoliciesandpractices

SCECRentalFeePolicies
o TheParkCommissionwillreviewcurrentfeetypes

ReviewParksCIP
o ParkCommissionwillrecommendprojectsprioritiesfortheprojectedCIP

ReviewPublicTreeInventory
o ParkCommissionwillreviewpublictreeinventory, publictreepoliciesandtheTree

CityUSAprogram

IntegratedPestManagementPlan
TheParksCommissionwillreviewprogressontheIntegratedPestManagementPlanneartheendofthe
year.   

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CITY OF SHOREWOOD COUNCIL CHAMBERS
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
TUESDAY, MARCH 7, 2023 7:00P.M.  

DRAFT MINUTES

CALL TOORDER

Vice-ChairEggenberger called themeeting toorderat7:00P.M.  

ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioners Eggenberger, Holker, Gorham, Johnson; Planning Director
Darling; Planning Technician Carlson, and, Council Liaison Maddy

Absent: Commissioner Huskins

1. NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF OFFICERS

Holker moved,   Gorham seconded, toelect Commissioner Eggenberger toserve asChair.  
Motion passed 4/0.  

Johnson moved,   Holker seconded, toelect Commissioner Gorham toserve asVice-chair.   
Motion passed 4/0.    

2. APPROVAL OFAGENDA

Holker moved, Gorham seconded, approving theagenda forMarch 7, 2022, aspresented.  
Motion passed 4/0.   

3. APPROVAL OFMINUTES

February 7, 2022

Holker moved, Gorham seconded, approving the Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
ofFebruary 7, 2023, aspresented. Motion passed 4/0.    

4. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR – NONE

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS
ChairEggenberger explained thePlanning Commission iscomprised ofresidents ofthe
CityofShorewood whoareserving asvolunteers ontheCommission. TheCommissioners
areappointed bytheCityCouncil. TheCommission’sroleistohelptheCityCouncil in
determining zoningandplanning issues. OneoftheCommission’sresponsibilities isto
holdpublichearings andtohelpdevelop thefactual record foranapplication andtomake
anon-binding recommendation totheCityCouncil. Therecommendation isadvisory only.  

A. PUBLIC HEARING – Rezoning and PUD Concept Plan foraTwin Home
Development
Applicant: TSML Properties LLC
Location: 24250 Smithtown Road

BRENDA
6A



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 7, 2023
Page2of7

Planning Director Darling explained the request fromTSMLProperties, LLCtorezone the
property at24250Smithtown RoadandforaPUDconcept planfor8townhomes whichwouldbe
individually owned.  Shenotedthat thisitemrelates toonlytheportionoftheproject thatwould
belocated inShorewood andnotedthattherearecomponents oftheproject thatareinTonka
Bay.  Shestated thatstaff feelsthat theyareproposing toomanyunitsonthesitetobeableto
offeradequate bufferandtransition between theproposed homesandthePublicWorks facility.   
Shestated thatstaff findsthisinconsistent with thedirection intheComprehensive Planandfeels
thattheconflict between useswouldbeproblematic withoutatleasthavingvisualprotection of
thisactivity.  Sheexplained thatstaffwasrecommending denialoftheapplication ofboththe
rezoning andthePUDconcept plan.   ShenotedthattheCityreceived oneletter thatexpressed
concern about thedevelopment.    

Commissioner Gorham asked whatthenextstepintheprocesswouldbeifthePlanning
Commission decided toactually recommend approval.   

Planning Director Darling explained thatiftheapplication moves forward totheCityCouncil and
theyfinditshouldbeapproved, theapplicant wouldneedtocomeback foraPUDdevelopment
planandPreliminary Plat, aPUDfinalplatandFinalPlat.    

Commissioner Holkerstated thatthisproposal hasalsonotbeen formally presented totheCity
ofTonkaBayeither.    

Commissioner Gorham stated thatheremembered that theCommission hadheardadifferent
proposal forthesesitesandatthattimetherewassomepreliminary discussions withTonkaBay
ontheoverall process.  Heaskediftherewasanyinsight intohowthismayplayout.  

Planning Director Darling stated thattheprevious proposal gottothesketchplanphaseof
development andbelieves bothcitieswouldsupport reviewoftheapplication separately.  She
stated thatthethought wasthattheydidnotwanttoadjust theboundary between thetwocities
sothedevelopment would fullybeinonecityoftheother.    

Commissioner Holker askediftheprevious applicant hadformally walked awayfromtheproject.   

Planning Director Darlingstated thatthiswascorrectandexplained thattheprevious applicant
hadanoptionontheproperty andhadwalked away.    

ChairEggenberger askedifthePlanning Commission votedtorecommend denial ifthatwould
gobefore theCityCouncil withoutadelay.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatwascorrect.     

ToddSimning, AdorHomes, introduced RyanLundgren withTSML Properties.  Hestated that
theyheldameeting withthecitiesofShorewood andTonkaBayandhistakeawayfromwasthat
TonkaBaywanted toensure thattheunitswithineachrespective Citywereclearlywithin the
boundaries ofoneortheother andexplained thattheywereawareofthePublicWorks facility.   
Henoted thattheyalsohavehadconversations withtheCountyabout thepossibility ofchanging
theintersection inthislocation inordertomakeitmoresafe.  Hestatedthat theyappliedalittle
overtwoweeksagowithTonkaBayforthisapplication andstated thattheapplications withthe
twocitiesarerunning concurrently.  Henotedthattwoofthebiggest objections fromstaffrelated
tothenorthproperty lineandthenoise fromthePublicWorks facility.  Hestated thatmoving the
houseabitfurtherawaywould reallynothelpcontrol thenoise level thatmuchandstated that
thiswasoneofthereasons behind their fencedesign andexplained theirplansforarborvitae



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 7, 2023
Page3of7

because itwould reduce thedecibel levelbyabout10points.  Hegaveanoverview ofSTCratings
whichareratingsofdecibels astheygothrough structures andnotedthatatownhouse project
involves STCratings because peopledon’twanttoheareachother, sotheyputtogether agood
structure thatassists withhelping thenoisenottotravelsofreely.  Hestated thathecanprovide
moredetailed documents totheCitytoshowwhattheycanutilize inthistypeofsituation. He
stated thattheCitydoesnothavealotofmulti-family housing options available andtheywould
liketoprovide thisoption totheresidents.  Hestatedthatbyusingqualityconstruction methods
theywillnotdowngrade theneighborhood andpeoplewillreallyenjoy livingtheredespite what is
nearby.  Hestated thattheyareplanning for12feetbetween unitsandreviewed theirplansfor
water runoffplans.  Hestated thatback in2019 theCityapproved twostructures thatwereputin
withaPUDthatareonly10feetapart, butinside theroofoverhangs, thestructures areonlyabout
8feetapart.  Hereferenced Barrington thathassideyardsetbacks of4feetandnotedthathe
feelsthisisareallynicedevelopment.  Hestated thatforthefenceonthenorthside, thereis
currently achain linkfence, however, theyareproposing an8foothighwhite fenceandwould
suggest thattheir fencereplace thechain linkfence. Henotedthat theyarewilling tomaintain it,  
iftheCitydidnotwanttotakeoveritsmaintenance.  Heexplained thattheyfeltthiswouldbe
better thanhaving twodifferent fences rightnexttoeachother.  Heasked thatthePlanning
Commission movetheirrequest ontotheCityCouncil.  Heexplained that theirgoalistogono
morethanabout the $1-1.2millionpricerangefortheunits.    

Commissioner Gorham stated thathewouldagree thattheCityneedsmoremulti-familyhousing
optionsbutnotedthatoneofthebigconstraints onthissite, inhisopinion, istheelevation.  

Mr. Simning stated thattheroadgoesupprettygradually andtheyareplanning tousemostof
thelandasnatural grade.    

KevinTeppen, CivilSiteGroup, explained thatcurrently, withthedriveway coming in, itis
relatively flatandyounotice thebighillandtheexisting wall.  Hestated thatwiththeCounty
agreeing toremove thewall, theyhavebeenabletogiveitanicerresidential feelalongSmithtown
Road.  Hestated thatitwillalsoallowthemtodosomethingsupalongtheroadthatwouldbe
beneficial toaresidential development.  Hestatedthat fortheexisting grade, the ‘T’ intersection
intothecommercial arearemains atthesamegradeasitwasbuttheyareworking withtheslope
andgoingupplantoshaveabout1.5feetoffwhichwillrequire someexport ofmaterial.  He
reminded theCommission thatthisisstill intheconcept level, buttheyfeelitwillworkoutpretty
well.     

Commissioner Gorham askedwhatwouldhappen onthenorthsidenearbuilding #12.    

Mr. Teppen explained that thewayitiscurrently shown, theyaresloping downtotheproperty
line.    

Commissioner Gorham askedtoseethelandscaping plansandexplained thathewanted tosee
howthegradewouldworkwiththelandscape plans.    

Mr. Teppen stated thatthebuilding finished floor for #12isapproximately 1,004andatthe
property lineitis997or996sothere issomegradechange buttheydohavetheplantmaterial
about8feetin.  Hestated that theywerethinking toputupanopaque fenceandputsometall,  
skinny arborvitaeinthere tohelpwithvisual andaudible screening.    

Commissioner Gorham askedifthethought wasthataretaining wallwouldnotbeneededonthis
edge.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 7, 2023
Page4of7

Mr. Simning stated thattheyhavetalkedabout thatandtheycouldeasilyhavearetaining wall in
thatareawhichwouldkeep thefenceupandallowthearborvitaetobehigheraswell.    

Commissioner Holkeraskedifherunderstanding wascorrect thatMr. Simning wassayingthatit
wouldnotbefinancially feasible tohaveonelessbuilding.  

Mr. Simning stated thatiscorrectandeverything hastobethereforittobefeasible.   

Commissioner Holkeraskedaboutthesideelevation forawalk-outwiththiskindofslope.   

Mr. Simning reviewed thegrading plansandtheegress window wells.    

Commissioner Holker askedhowmuchspace therewouldbebetween theegress window and
thefence/arborvitae.    

Mr. Teppen stated thatthereare16.4feetfromedgeofstructure toproperty lineandtheegress
windows are3, which brings itdownto13.4feet.  Heexplained thatthearborvitaeareabout5
or6feetwide, whichmeans theywillbeabout7feetfromthearborvitae, atmaturity, totheface
ofthebuilding.    

ChairEggenberger stated thattheyareproposing an8footprivacy fenceandaskediftheywould
liketogohigherwithit.  

Mr. Simning stated thathehasdonealotoffencing andfeels6feetfencesarethebest, but8
footfencesarealsookay.  Hestated thatonceitgoeshigher thanthat, therecanbeproblems
withsheer fromthewindswhichmakes itdifficult togohigher.    

Chair Eggenberger askedabout thewater run-offroutes.    

Mr. Teppen reviewed thewater run-offandplansforcatchbasins.    

Commissioner Johnson askedifshewascorrect thattheplansforthefencing onthenorthside
wouldnotevenbeclosetohitting themain levelatsomeparts.     

Mr. Simning stated thathebelieves itwillbeabout5feetabovewhere thefirstfloor islocated.    

ChairEggenberger opened thePublicHearing at7:51P.M. noting theprocedures usedinaPublic
Hearing. Therebeingnocomments, ChairEggenberger closed thepublic hearingat7:52P.M.  

ChairEggenberger askedabout theroadway andaskedifTonkaBaywouldownthefirstportion
andShorewood wouldowntherest.  Heaskedhowthiswouldworkformaintenance purposes
andiftherewereotherroadshandled thissameway.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatitwillbeaprivate streetsoneither ofthecitieswillownit
andwouldactually beownedbytheHOA.  ShestatedthattheHOAwouldalsoberesponsible
forperforming allthemaintenance foritaswell.   Sheexplained thattheutilities wouldbepublic
andwould require somesortofencroachment agreement because theirroadway willbeoverthe
topofthecitiesutility lines.    

Commissioner Gorham stated thatoneofthethings thatresonated withhimduring the
presentation wastheideaofotherdevelopments thathaveapproached thelevelofvariance
needs.  Hestated thathedidnotwanttobeinthebusiness ofshoehorning properties intoasite



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 7, 2023
Page5of7

andthenlookingatnoisemitigation tooffset theallowances thatweremade.  Hestated thatthe
STCdataismost likely true, butthatdoesnotspeaktotheconsistency thattheComprehensive
Plantriestoprovide.  Hestated thattheirplansmayworkindifferent cities inanother location,  
butthissiteisonahillonaverybusystreet.  Hestated thathefeelsthatthisisahighlyvisible
siteandtheapplicants areasking foralotofPUDforgiveness fromtheCity.  Heexplained that
hewasunwilling todothatforthissitebecause therearetoomanyunitscrammed in.  Hestated
thathewantsmoremulti-familyoptions forresidents butthinks thatthisplanistoomuchand
would require toomuch ‘shoe-horning’.    

Commissioner Holkerstated thatsheconcurred withCommissioner Gorham andexplained that
shewould feelbetterabout theproject iftherewasonelessbuilding, however sheunderstands
thatisnotfinancially feasible.  Sheagreedthatitfeelsasthoughthisisstuffed intotheareaand
whenthetreesarecleared offthevisibility andadjacency tothePublicWorks justwouldnotfeel
right.  Shestated thatshelikesthedensityofthisproposal morethantheprevious proposal, but
shestill feelsasthoughtheyaretryingtodotoomuchonthisparcel.    

Commissioner Johnson statedthatsheisalsoconcerned thattheplansaretoodense forthe
property andexplained thatsheworries about thetraffic.  Shestated thatshehasconcerns about
howaprivateroadandapublicroadwillbeabletodoagoodjobworkingtogether.  Sheexplained
thatthenorthsidejustfeelstootightandthinks theentiredevelopment feelstootight forthis
parcel.  Shestated thatshewould recommend thatthePlanning Commission followthe
recommendation madebystafftorecommend denial.   

ChairEggenberger stated thatheagreeswithwhathasalreadybeenstated.  Hestated thatthe
Commission couldvotetorecommend approval because thatwouldmeanthateverything gets
further fleshed outingreater detail, butheisnotsurethatwouldchange the Commissioners
minds.      

Gorham moved, Holker seconded, recommending denial ofthe Rezoning and PUD
Concept Plan foratownhouse development byTSML Properties, LLC, located at24250
Smithtown Road . Motion passed 4/0.  

Planning Director Darling stated thatthisitemwouldcomebefore theCityCouncil attheMarch
27, 2023meeting.    

6. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Variance toSide-YardSetback
Applicant: KyleHunt & Partners, Inc.                                 
Location: 28170Woodside

Planning Director Darling gaveanoverview ofthevariance requests forproperty locatedat
28170Woodside Roadtoallowanewhometobeconstructed.  Sheexplained thattheyare
asking fortwovariances foraside-yardsetback of27feetratherthan30andforanoverhang
thatprojects four feetintotheside-yardsetback where twofeet isallowed. Shestatedthat
staff foundthevariance proposals meet thecriteriaandrecommends approval, subject tothe
conditions listed inthestaffreport.  Shestated thattheCityreceived oneletter froman
adjacent property ownerstating theirsupport forthevariance requests.    

KyleHunt, KyleHunt & Partners, 18324 Minnetonka Boulevard, Deephaven, stated thathe
washererepresenting theproperty owners sincetheywereunable toattend tonight.  He
stated thathewashopingthattheCommission hashadachance toreadtheirnarrative and



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 7, 2023
Page6of7

explained thatpartofthechallenge isthathishomeowners areemptynesters withalarge
immediate familywhohavetheexpectation ofsomeday having grandchildren.  Heexplained
thedesire forthemaster bedroom onthemainlevelandthenaccomplishing therestofthe
house inwaystoaccommodate theirlarge family.  Hestated thatevery inchproposed onthe
main levelmakessense tothemandnoted thattheyarenotlookingathavingasecond floor
because thisissomething thattheyplantoutilize fortheremainder oftheiryears.  Hestated
thattheydohavesomefuture space thattheycould finishinthelowerlevel, butaretryingto
keepthisfairlysmall.  Hestated thatwhensetbacks wereestablished, theywereunder the
assumption thattheremaybeneighboring properties onbothsides, butinthiscase, thereis
asubdivision thathasa33footsidereverse flaglotthatistothenorth.  Henotedthatabout
10-12yearsagotheybuilt thehometothesouthandthathasa15footsetbackontheirnorth
side.  Heexplained thattheletter theCityreceived insupportoftheirrequest isfromthe
property owner tothenorth.    

Commissioner Johnson askedifshewascorrect thattherewerenoplanstoputasecond
storyonthehomeandaskedifthatwouldevenbepossible withthewaythishomewillbe
constructed.    

Mr. Huntstatedthatwithoutavariance someone couldbuildwithin10feetanditcouldbea
fulltwo-storyhome.    

Planning Director Darling reminded theCommission thatwhentheyapprove avariance, the
approval istiedtotheplanssoiftheapplicant wouldwanttocomebackandaddanother
story, theywouldneedtomodify theresolution ormeetallthesetback requirements.    

Commissioner Holkerstated thatshehadthesamequestion because sheassumes thisis
nottheirprimary residence sincetheyhave6children.   

Mr. Huntstated thatthisistheirprimary residence andexplained thattheysoldtheirverylarge
homeinMedinaandaremoving hereforthetwoofthemtolivebutwanttohavepossible
accommodations fortheirchildren, whentheycomehome.    

Commissioner Gorham asked about theoverhang variance request.    

Mr. Huntgaveanoverview oftheoverhang designandthevariance request.   

ChairEggenberger notedthatMr. Hunthadsenthimane-mailover theweekend asking to
meetanddiscuss theproperty, butexplained thathedeclined todothat.    

Gorham moved, Johnson seconded, torecommend approval ofthevariance requests
at28170 Woodside Road, subject totheconditions included thestaff report.  Motion
passed 4/0.      

Planning Director Darlingstated thatthis itemwouldcomebefore theCityCouncil onMarch
27, 2023.   

B. 2023WorkProgram andSchedule

Planning Director Darling explained thatshehadputtogether atentative WorkProgram for
theCommission toconsider.  Shestated thattheCommission couldchoose toaddother



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MARCH 7, 2023
Page7of7

projects toitorremove itemsthattheydonotfeelarenecessary.  Shereviewed theproposed
WorkProgram andaskedforfeedback fromtheCommission.   

TheCommission reviewed anddiscussed theproposed WorkProgram andschedule.    

Holker moved, Gorham seconded, approving the2023 Work Program and Schedule as
presented.  Motion carried 4/0.    

C. Liaisons forUpcoming Council Meetings

March -  Commissioner Holker
April – Commissioner Johnson
May – Commissioner Gorham
June – Chair Eggenberger
July – Commissioner Huskins (tentatively)  
August – ChairEggenberger

D. REPORTS

Council Meeting Report

Council Liaison Maddy reported onmatters considered andactions takenduring theCouncil’s
recentmeetings.   

Draft Next Meeting Agenda

Planning Director Darling stated therewerenotanynewdevelopment applications slated forthe
nextmeeting butnotedthattherearestillafewouttherethatareincomplete.  Shenoted thatat
thispoint theplanwillbetodiscuss thesignregulations atthenextmeeting.  

E. ADJOURNMENT

Holker moved, Johnson seconded, adjourning thePlanning Commission Meeting ofMarch
7, 2023, at8:42P.M. Motion passed 4/0.  





































MarieDarling

From: mikegiebenhain <mikegiebenhain@hotmail. com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 28, 20237:32PM
To: MarieDarling
Subject: Carney variance

Marie,  
KyleHuntaskedmetocontactyouregardingmypositionontheCarneyvariance request. WhileIcompletely disagree
withtheirlogicinthesubmitted requestasitsuggestsmypropertyshouldbetreatedmorelikedeeded accessin
regardstosetbacksandtheyshowabsolutely noneed, Idothinkgranting thevarianceofa12ftsetback (vs15ft) inthis
instancemakessenseastheyarebuildingahomethatwillnotbeoverlyobstructive tomylakeviewcompared towhat
couldpotentiallybebuilt.  
Pleasefeelfreetocontactmeifyouhaveanyfurtherquestions.  
Thanks
MikeGiebenhain
28110Woodside Rd
Shorewood, mn55331
612-816-8429

SentfrommyVerizon, Samsung Galaxysmartphone
GetOutlookforAndroid

1



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-033

ARESOLUTION APPROVING ASIDE-YARD SETBACK VARIANCE FOR
PROPERTY LOCATED AT28170 WOODSIDE ROAD

WHEREAS, KyleHunt & Partners, Inc., (the “Applicant”) proposed toconstructanewhomethatwould
beacombined27feetfromthesideproperty lineswhere30feetisrequiredandthehomehasafour- 
footoverhang encroaching intothesetbackwheretwofeetisallowedonpropertyaddressed as28170
Woodside Roadandlegallydescribed asshowninExhibitA;  (the “SubjectProperty”) and,  

WHEREAS, theApplicant’srequestwasreviewedbytheplanningstaff, whoserecommendation is
included inamemorandum fortheMarch7, 2023PlanningCommission meeting, acopyofwhichison
fileatCityHall; and

WHEREAS, thePlanningCommission heldapublicmeetingonMarch7, 2023toreviewtheapplication,  
theminutesofthemeetingsareonfileatCityHall; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncilconsidered theapplication atitsregularmeetingonMarch27, 2023, at
whichtimetheplanningstaffmemorandum andthePlanningCommission’srecommendations were
reviewedandcomments wereheardbytheCityCouncil fromtheApplicant, staffandpublic.  

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA AS
FOLLOWS:  

FINDINGS OFFACT

1. TheSubjectProperty islocated intheR-1A/S zoningdistrict, whichrequiresallbuildings tobe
setbackacombined 30feetfromtheside-yardproperty linesandroofencroachments toprojectno
morethantwofeetintoaside-yardsetback.  

2. Section1201.05ofthezoningregulations provides thatthepurposeofavariance istoallowa
processtodeviate fromthestrictprovisionofthezoningregulations whentherearepractical
difficulties, andtheactionistheminimumtoalleviate thepracticaldifficulties.  

4. Section1201.05ofthezoningregulations includes criteriaformakingtheabovedetermination.    

5. TheApplicant’sproposal isidentifiedontheapplication materialsandplanssubmittedon
January24andFebruary24and27, 2023 (the “Plans”).  



CONCLUSIONS

A. Basedupontheforegoing, andtherecordsreferenced herein, theCityCouncil herebyapproves
theApplicant'srequesttoconstructahomewithacombined side-yardsetbackof27feetwhere30feet
isrequiredandincludeafour-footoverhang intotherequired setbackwheretwofeetisallowed
consistent withthePlans.  

B. TheCityCouncil findsthevariancerequest foranewhomeanditsresultingconstruction and
use, isconsistent withtheintentofthecomprehensive planandinharmonywiththegeneral purposes
andintentofthezoningregulations.    

C. TheCityCouncil findsthattherequestspecifically demonstrates practicaldifficulties basedon
thereasonable proposed useoftheSubjectProperty, theuniquelotsituationtothenorthwhich
includesaneighboring property thatistoonarrowtobebuilton, andtheessential characterofthearea
wouldbepreserved becausethehomeisproposedwithasinglelevelabovegradeandneighborhood
haslackofuniformity intheneighborhood property lines.     

D. TheCityCouncil findsthattheimprovements proposedarenotsolelybasedoneconomic
considerations, buttoenhancethelivabilityofthehome.  

E. TheCityCouncil findsthatthedeckwouldnotimpairanadequate supplyoflightandairtoan
adjacentproperty, increasetheriskoffireorincreasetheimpactonadjacentstreets.    

F. TheCityCouncil findsthatthedeckwouldnotbedetrimental tothepublicwelfarenorwouldit
beinjurioustoother landsorimprovements intheneighborhood.    

G. Thevariance istheminimum variancenecessary toaddressoralleviate thepracticaldifficulties.    

H. Thevarianceapprovalshallbesubject tothefollowingconditions:  

1. Priortobeginning anyconstruction ontheSubjectProperty, theapplicantshallacquireall
necessary permits.  

2. Thebuildingpermitapplication must includeallrequiredmaterials foranewhome
including, butnotlimitedto, astormwater management plan, andtheotherrequirements
indicated intheengineer’smemodatedFebruary 17, 2023.  

3. Priortothefinalinspection ofthehome, theportionofthedrivewayconnecting theexisting
hometotheshareddriveon28180Woodside Roadmustberemoved.    

I. Thevarianceshallexpireoneyearafterapprovalunlesstheapplicanthascompleted the
project, oranextension hasbeenrequested inaccordance withSection1201.05Subd. 3ofCityCode.  

J. TheCityClerkisherebyauthorized anddirectedtoprovideacertifiedcopyofthisresolution for
filingwiththeHennepin CountyRecorderorRegistrarofTitles.  



THAdoptedbytheCityCouncilofShorewood, Minnesota this27 dayofMarch, 2023.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Attest:  

Sandie Thone, CityClerk



EXHIBITA

LegalDescription ofSubjectProperty



CityCouncilMeetingItem

ItemTitle/Subject:   FinalPlatandPUDFinalPlanforMapleShores
6CMeetingDate:  March27, 2023

Preparedby:   MarieDarling, PlanningDirector
Attachments:   Applicant’sNarrative andplans

Development andPUDAgreement
HOAdocuments (Electronic CopyofPacketOnly)  
Resolution

Background:  
Location:  20430RadissonRoad
Applicant: ChamberlainCapital, LLC
ReviewDeadline: April10, 2023

Theapplicanthassubmitted theirrequest forfinalplatforMapleShores.  Priortorecording the
plat, theapplicantwouldberequiredtorevisetheirplanstobeconsistentwithCityCode.  The
conditions arelistedinthefinalplatresolution.  Additionally, adevelopment andPUD
agreement hasbeenprovided forCouncil reviewwiththetermsofconstruction forthe
subdivision, includingfinancial guarantees andperformance criteria.    

Theapplicant’srequestisverysimilartotheapprovedConcept/Development Stageplanand
preliminary plat, withthefollowing changes:  

Fill:  Theapplicantwasoriginallyplannedtoexportabout5,800cubicyardsofmaterial fromthe
site. Theyarenowproposingtoexportabout3,400cubicyardsofmaterial, whichwillmean
manyfewertruckhaulingmaterial fromthesite.    

Ashtrees:  Duringthepreliminary platphase, thePlanningCommission/Councilsuggested
removingalltheashtreesinsteadofthestaffcondition thattheirconditionbeevaluated.  As
onlyfivesignificant ashtreesremainedonthesiteaftertreeclearing, theapplicanthasopted
toremove theremainderofthesignificant ashtreesatthistime.    

Private lighting:  Theapplicanthasproposed toinstallninebollardstoprovidewayfinding
lightingthroughout nearthefrontsidewalks intothehomesandneartheguestparkingareain
lieuofanystreetlightsandwouldpayfortheirinstallation, electricity andmaintenance.   

Retainingwalllandscaping:  Theapplicant’splanwasinitiallytoprovidevinestoobscure
visibilityoftheretainingwall, however, theirlandscaper advisedagainst thatandsuggested
providingdogwoods instead.    

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.    
C:\\Users\\bpricco\\Desktop\\6CMemo.docx



Lowmaintenance lawn:  Theapplicant isproposing toprovide abee-friendly, low-maintenance
lawnformuchofthedevelopment, although propose traditional lawnneartheunits.  

Summary ofPublic Engagement: There isnopublic notice required witheither afinalplator
aPUDfinalplan.  However, theapplication waspreviously reviewed withtwopublichearings
onAugust 2and22, 2022. Notice forthepublic hearings weremailed toallproperties within
750feetofthedevelopment andpublished intheofficial newspaper.  Sixpeople spokeatthe
public hearing onAugust 2, 2022andtwopeople spokeattheAugust 22, 2022hearings.   
Several letterswere alsosubmitted.       

Financial orBudget Considerations:  Developers arerequired topayutility connection fees
andparkdedication andpayforconstructing thestreets, stormwater facilities andother
utilities.  Thedeveloper canrequest reimbursement ofexpenses toextend thewatermain up
to, butnotover, thetotalamount ofconnection feescollected.  Forthisdevelopment, the
proposed expenses (about $200,000) exceed thefeestobecollected ($55,000).  Asaresult,  
thedeveloper isnotrequired topayawater connection fee.  Other feesarelisted inthe
Development Agreement.  

Action Requested: Staff recommends approval oftherequest forafinalplatandagreement
forMaple Shores.  

Proposed motion:  Movetoapprove arequest forfinalplatforMaple Shores forChamberlain
Capital, LLC. subject tothefindings andconditions intheattached resolution andthe
execution oftheDevelopment andPUDAgreement.    

Anyactiononthisrequest would require amajority ofCouncilmembers.  

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents quality public services
through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.       





















































































MEMORANDUM

Date: March 16, 2023

To: Marie Darling, Planning Director

From: MattBauman, PE, Andrew Budde, PE

Subject: 20430 Radisson Road/Maple Shores FinalPlat
CityofShorewood
Project No.: 0C1.123603

Thefollowing documents were submitted forreview ofcompliance Local
Surface Water Management Planand Engineering Standards: 

Certificate ofSurvey dated12/19/2021
CivilPlansrevised dated1/13/2023
Stormwater Drainage Reportrevised dated 10/28/2022
Infiltration Report dated9/22/2022
Stormwater Maintenance Plandated10/17/2022
Landscape Planrevised dated1/5/2023
Response letter toBolton & Menk8/17/2022 comments

This review included thedocuments listed above andadditional priorPUDPreliminary PlatApplication
materials, primarily dealing withgrading, modelling andstormwater management.  Amarked-up
construction planisincluded withthisreview toclarify some comments. 

General

1.Public infrastructure shall beconstructed inaccordance withCityStandard Details and
Specifications.   

a.Replace sanitarysewer andwater details andaddnotefortousesection ofRDW-2for
Radisson Roadpatch inaccordance withCityStandard Details provided. 

2.Prior tothestartofanyconstruction, permits shallbesecured withthefollowing ataminimum: 
a.MnDOT rightofwayanddrainage
b.Minnehaha Creek Watershed District conditional approval noted
c.MPCA Construction General Permit
d.Minnesota Department ofHealth
e.Metropolitan Council Environmental Servicesapproved

3.Update andcomplete theencroachment agreement forcoordination between thedevelopment and
Cityforfuture roadway andutility repairs. 

4.Sendupdated construction costestimates. 
5.Include STOP signandprivate street signatintersection. 

Utilities

3(7$ 4® /³§¤±²3§®±¤²&¨0«2¤µ¨¤¶ ,¤³³¤±



Name:20430RadissonRoad/MapleShores
Date: March16, 2023
Page:2

6.Update utilities onnorth sideofhighway 7based onasbuilts provided andadditional fieldshots
asrequired. 

7.Opencutwatermain shallbeC900PVC DR18.  Hydrant leads toremain DIP.  Water services to
bePE.Hydrants shall have4STORZ pumper nozzles. 

8.Southern termination ofthenewwatermainalong Radisson Roadshall beminimum of8-feet
fromtheedgeofthebackofcurbso afuture connection willnotneedtodisturb theroadway. 

9.Thehighpointofthewatermain along theprivate roadshould beatthenorthern hydrant inorder
tonottrapairordirectairintoahouse; shift thehighpoint tothehydrant. 

10.Modify thetermination atthenorth endalong Radisson Road toinclude ateeandgatevalve,  
moving thehydrant closer totheroad. 

11.Addadditional gatevalves forcontrols. 

Storm Sewer andSWPPP

12.Incorporate comments fromSWPPP checklist including: 
a.Listperson whowilloversee implementation onceContractor isselected. 
b.Provide training documentation forperson toconduct inspections. 

13.Recommend toinclude profile viewsof thestorm sewer runs: 
a.CB-6toCB-5
b.MH3toFES-1

14.Insulation shallbeprovided between watermain andstorm sewer ifthereislessthan3-feetof
separation. 

15.Provide erosion control around areathatwillbedisturbed toinstall FES-2
16.Owners ofprivate stormwater facilities shall enter intoanagreement with theCitydescribing

responsibility forthelong-termoperation andmaintenance ofthestormwater facilities andshall
beexecuted andrecorded with thefinalplat.   

a.Update andcomplete theincluded stormwater management agreement

Notes/comments tobeaddressed prior toconstruction: 
1. registered professional engineer. 

a.Ensure adequate fallprotection fortheretaining walls. 
2.Irrigation mains arenotallowed inCityRightofWaywithout anencroachment agreement and

subject totheapproval oftheCityEngineer. 
3.TheNWLofLakeComo isunknown, only theOHWislistedontheplans.  



January23,2023

MarieDarling,PlanningDirector
CityofShorewood
ShorewoodCityHall
5755CountryClubRoad
Shorewood,MN55331

Re:MapleShoresFinalPlatApplication

DearMsDarling

TodaywearesubmittingthefinalplatapplicationforMapleShoreslocatedat20430RadissonRoadand
certainadjacentparcelsforyourreview. Theapplicationandsupportingdocumentsareincludedinthe
finalplatapplicationsubmittalpackagelocatedthroughthefollowingdropboxlink. 

https://www.dropbox.com/sh/p1ju3p8sv2b9rvf/AABKaXj7aFBuXG9huVSTIlHta? dl=0

The24x36printedcopiesasnotedbelowanda$ 3,200checkfortheapplicationsfeeswillbedroppedat
yourofficetoday. 

1. MapleShoresCurrentConditionsCertificateofSurvey12. 19.21
2. MapleShoresFullCivilPlans01. 13.23(printed24x36copyincluded) 
3. MapleShoresFinalPlatSheets10. 10.22(printed24x36copyincluded) 
4. MapleShoresLandscapingPlan01. 05.23(printed24x36copyincluded) 
5. MapleShoresDrainageReport10. 18.22
6. MapleShoresStormWaterPondInfiltrationReport09. 22.22
7. MapleShoresStormWaterMaintenancePlan10. 17.22
8. MapleShoresMCWDConditionalPermitApproval# 2250712.13.22
9. MapleShoresCityEngineeringCommentResponses10. 11.22
10. MapleShoresFireMarshalReviewLetter7. 13.22
11. MapleShoresDNRReviewLetter7. 13.22
12. MapleShoresConstructionPlan01. 20.23
13. MapleShoresPUDLanguageTermsinDeclaration01. 20.23
14. MapleShoresDevelopmentCosts12. 23.22
15. MapleShoresShorewoodFinalPlatApplication1. 23.23

Thefollowingareenhancementsorchangesmadetotheapplicationdocumentsabovesinceourlast
submittal. 

t



1. Allashtreeswillberemoved. 

Percitydirectionasecondsurveyoftreesonthepropertywasconducted. Thearborist
determinedanadditional25treesarediseasedordeadandshouldberemoved( 22ash
and3elm).The5remainingashtreeswillberemovedaswithtimetheytoowillbecome
diseased.Totalremainingtreeswillbe64. 

2. Potentialdisturbanceofcriticalrootzonesoftreeslocatedoutsidesiltfenceboundary. 

22treesontheplanarenowmarkedastwƒ
Thesetreesarelocated outsidethesiltfences.
Basedontheirtrunksizeandspeciessomeoftheircriticalroot zonesmaybenegativelyimpactedbyexcavatingworkinsidethesiltfenceareas.
Wewant toretainthesetreesifpossiblewhilestillachievinggradingrequirements.

Thesetreesofcriticalrootzone
wereidentifiedbyapplyinga1inchoftreetrunkradiusto1footradius.
Thosetreeswithrootszonesthatcrossedsiltfencelineswereputonthet

wƒ listtobeevaluatedaftersitegrading. 

3. 
Initiallyplanwastoplantvinesalongtheretainingwalltominimizeitsvisibility. 

Thelandscaperdidnotfeelvineswouldsurviveintheareaandhasrecommendedanative dogwoodbushbeplantedinstead. 

4. 
Seedingtheperimeterofthedevelopment. Abeelawnwillbeseededasanalternativetotraditionalsodorhydroseedingwhich
requiresirrigationandweeklymowinginperpetuity. Beelawnsarelawnsmadeupofturf
grassesblendedwithlowgrowingperennialsthatbloom.
Thistypeoflawnismaintainedat alengthoffourinchesorhighertoallowthegrowthofpollinatorfriendlygrassandplant
varietiesandencourageflowerblooming. Thenontraditionalfloweringlawncelebrates plantbiodiversityandbecomesameadowlikepollinatorhavenforfood,
cover,and
nesting.Researchhasshownthatlawnsthatareseededwithagrassandfloweringplant
mixturecanfeeddozensofspeciesofbeesthatwouldotherwisegohungry.
Aseed mixturewillbedeterminedbythelandscaperthatiscompliantwiththeShorewood
guidelines.Auniqueseedmixturemaybeusedundertreesinplaceofmulchtoallowfora

morenatural,

pollinatorfriendlylook. Lƒ9Ca
Anestimated3,425cubicyardsoffillmayneedtobeexported. Thisissignificantlyless
thanouroriginalapplication.Thesideroughlybalanceshowever,
theexportamount includesan2,
5000cubicyardallowanceshouldtheengineeringoftheretainingwall

requireafullsandbackfillwithsandreplacement.



ThefollowingpeopleparticipatedinthePUDapplicationdevelopmentandareavailabletoansweryour
questions. 

PaulCameronLizaCameron
95264976539526497653
Paul@Chamberlaincap.comLiza@Cameronres.com

TravisVanNesteSurveyorLeeElferingCivilEngineer
95268630557637800450
travis@vannestesurveying.comlelfering@elferingeng.com

SarahNotchLandscapeArchitectThomasWhalenCertArboristMN4217a
DesigningNatureTreeTopService, Inc
76347799097639723988
snotch@designingnatureinc. compaul@treetopclearing.com

KevinMillerProjectManagerRobertWilliamsAttorney
PWShttps://pwsmn.comBest&FlanaganLLP
61222138456123419706
kmiller@pwsmn.comrwilliams@bestlaw.com

Ifyouhaveanyquestionsorconcerns, pleasedonothesitatetocallLizaormyself. 

Respectfully, 

t





EasyLEDTechnology

EasyLEDRoundFlat
The EasyLED Bollards with choice ofoptics and lenses are designed
toreplace HID lighting systems upto wMH orHPS.These fixtures areL70 147,000Hours ideal for retail centers, industrial parks, schools and universities, public transit25° CBollards and airports, office buildings and medical facilities. 

Specifications andFeatures: 

Housing: 
Extruded Aluminum Housing with Flush Mounting Base & Vandal-Resistant Screws, Flat
Top, Internal Ballast Tray for Easy Maintenance. Bollards Can Be Cut toCustom Lengths
Upon Request. 

Listing & Ratings: 
CSA: Listed for Wet Locations, ANSI/UL1598, 8750; IP65 Sealed LED Compartment. 

Soft Shine Low Glare White Cone Reflector
Daytime ViewNighttime View Finish: 

Dome Top Shown for Visual Concept) Textured Architectural Bronze orBlack Powdercoat Finish Over aChromate Conversion
Coating. Custom ColorsAvailable Upon Request. 

Style: 
Clear Prismatic Borosilicate Glass Refractor, Specially Designed Cone Reflector or
Internal Louvers

Lens: 
Clear UV-Stabilized Polycarbonate Vandal-Resistant Lens orSoftLED LumaLens UV- 
Stabilized Polycarbonate Opal Vandal-Resistant Lens

Mounting Options: 
GlassLED Cone ReflectorLouvers
BFGShown withGlare ShieldBFL

BFR EasyLED LED: 
Aluminum Boards

Wattage: 
Array: 10w, System: 11.3w; (wHID Equivalent) 
Array: 14.5w, System: 17w; (70w HID Equivalent) 
Array: 22w, System: 23.8w; (wHID Equivalent) 

Driver: 
Electronic Driver, 120-277V, 50/60Hz or347V, 50/60Hz (15w Only); LessThan 20%THD
and PF>0.90. Standard Internal Surge Protection 2kV. 0-10V Dimming Standard for a

SoftLED LumaLensShown with "S3" Shown with GFCI Dimming Range of100% to10%; Dimming Source Current is150 Microamps. 
Opal Array LensSensor

Controls: 
Fixtures Ordered with Factory- Installed Motion Sensor Controls are Internally Wired for
Switching and/or 1-10V Dimming Within the Housing. Remote Direct Wired Interface
of1-10V Dimming isNot Implied and May Not BeAvailable, Please Consult Factory. 
Fixtures areTested with LEPG Controls and May Not Function Properly With Controls
Supplied By Others. Fixtures are NOTDesigned for Use with Line Voltage Dimmers. 

Warranty: 
5-Year Warranty for -40°Cto +40°CEnvironment. Dimensions

A
Diameter (D) See Page 4for Projected Lumen MaintenanceTable. 

Height (A) 

D

ProjectInformation: Certification & Listings: 
Project Name: Fixture Type: 

Complete Catalog #: Date: 

Comments: 

Rev. 021721



EasyLEDRoundFlat
L70 147,000Hours

25° CBollards
FU5KZ36SFOrderInformationExample:  

ModelOpticsWattageDriverCCTLensColorHeightOptions
W=Round Flat Top Bollard with Soft C=Type III* 1X10=10w U=120-277V3K=3000K ( Leave Blank)= Z=Bronze( Leave Blank)= SF=Single Fuse* 

Shine Low Glare White Cone Reflector F=Wide Beam 1X15=15w C=347V* 4K=4000K Clear Lens B=Black42" Standard Height DF=Double Fuse* 
Round Flat Top Bollard with LED Cone Spread 1X22=22w 5K=5000K L=SoftLED C=Custom 36=36" Height SP=Surge Protection

Reflector* 15w Model LumaLens Opal (Consult Factory)30=30" Height GF1=GFCI Outlet, 15A, 120V
Round Flat Top Bollard with Glass* BOFRWQ, Only UV-Stabilized GSB=180° Glare Shield, Black
Round Flat Top Bollard with Louvers BOFRLQ & Polycarbonate GSZ=180° Glare Shield, Bronze

BOFGQ only Array Lens* GSC=180° Glare Shield,Custom Color
Consult Factory) 

Type VWhite S3=Microwave Sensor with Dimming &  
Cone Reflector Remote Programming, 120-277V Only. See
Only P17121 Spec. Page for Details. 

BU=Battery Backup, 90Minutes* 

120-277V Models Only. 

Accessories & ReplacementParts: 
AccessoriesReplacement PartsMounting Accessories
Order Separately, Field Installed)( Order Separately, Field Installed) Order Separately, Field Installed) 

P17121Internal Microwave Sensor with Dimming & RemoteP17122Remote Programming Tool for P17121BOLAN4
Programming, 120-277V Only. See P17121 Spec. PageAnchor Bolts
for Details. 

BOLAN8
BOLPCReplacement Round UV-Stabilized Polycarbonate Vandal- Anchor Bolts

Resistant Lens
BOLAN12

BOLPCLLReplacement SoftLED LumaLens Opal UV-StabilizedAnchor Bolts
Polycarbonate Array Lens

P17122BOLAN15
BORBASE* Die Cast Base Plate with Powdercoat Finish Over aAnchor Bolts

Chromate Conversion Coating. 
BREBASE* Bollard Retrofit Base Kit Adapts New Bollards to Most

BOADP1Adapter Plate with Gaskets for Outlet Boxes. Fits LEPGExisting Bolt Patterns. Fits allLEPG Bollards. Die Cast with
Round Bollards. Die Cast with Bronze Powdercoat Finish. Powdercoat Finish, Hardware Included. 11½ Dia. x1½ H

For Replacement Battery Backup, see theLEPG LED Battery Backup
Specification Sheet. 

BOLANBREBASE* 

P17121BOLPC, BORBASEBOADP1Shown Mounted
BOLPCLL

Rev. 021721



EasyLEDRoundFlat
L70 147,000Hours

25° CBollards
PhotometricData

22U5K & BFRF22U5KBFGC22U5K
Type VType III

Grid infeet, Mounting Height = 3ft. Grid infeet, Mounting Height = 3ft. 

BFLF22U5KBFRWF22U5KL
Type VLumaLensType V
Grid infeet, Mounting Height = 3ft. Grid infeet, Mounting Height = 3ft. 

Rev. 021721



EasyLEDRoundFlat
L70 147,000Hours

25° CBollards
PhotometricPerformance

Wattage 10W 15W 20W
Catalog Logic)( 1X)( 1X15)( 1X22) 

Input Watts11.3W15.9W23.8W

OpticCCTDelivered Lumens

3000K7381, 0331,549

BRW & BFR 4000K8001, 1201,680
Cone Reflector

5000K8341, 1671,750C=Type IIIOptic
BUG RatingB0- U2-G1B1-U3-G1B1-U3-G1

3000K1,0371,4522,178

BW & BFR 4000K1,1251,5752,362
Cone Reflector

5000K1,1721,6412,461F=Type VOptic
BUG RatingB1- U3-G1B1-U3-G1B1-U3-G1

3000K7871, 1011,652

4000K8531, 1951,792B Glass
C=Type IIIOptic 5000K8891, 2451,867

BUG RatingB1- U3-G1B1-U3-G1B1-U3-G1

3000K7681, 0761,613

4000K8331, 1671,750B Glass
F=Type VOptic 5000K8681, 2151,823

BUG RatingB1- U3-G1B1-U3-G1B1-U3-G1

3000K5317441, 116

4000K5768071, 211B Louvers
F=Type VOptic Only 5000K6008411, 261

BUG RatingB0- U2-G0B1-U2-G1B1-U3-G1

ProjectedLumenMaintenance

Data shown for 5000 CCT Compare toMH

TM-21-11Input WattsInitial25, 000 Hrs50,000 Hrs100,000 HrsCalculated LED Life
L70 Lumen Maintenance @25°C / 77°F 1.000.950.900.80147,000

All wattages up toL70 Lumen Maintenance @50°C / 122°F 1.000.890.780.5567,000
and including 24w

L80 Lumen Maintenance @40°C / 104°F 1.000.920.850.7066,000

NOTES: 
1. Projected per IESNA TM-21-11. Data references the extrapolated performance projections for the 116mA base model ina25°Cambient, based on10,000 hours ofLED testing per IESNA LM-80-08.
2. Compare toMH box indicates suggested Light Loss Factor (LLF) tobe used when comparing toMetal Halide (MH) systems. 

Rev. 021721

































































MAPLE SHORES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

BYLAWS

SECTION1GENERAL

Thefollowing aretheBylaws (theÐBylawsÑ) oftheMapleShoresHomeowners
Association, aMinnesota nonprofit corporation (theÐAssociationÑ). TheAssociation isorganized
pursuant toMinnesota Statutes Chapter317A (theÐActÑ), andSection515B.3-101ofthe
Minnesota Common Interest Ownership Actforthepurposeofoperating andmanaging Maple
Shores, aplanned community created inHennepinCounty, Minnesota pursuant totheAct. The
termsusedintheseBylawsshallhavethesamemeaning astheyhaveintheDeclaration ofMaple
ShoresCommon InterestCommunity (asamended andrestated, theÐDeclarationÑ) andtheAct.  

SECTION 2MEMBERSHIP

2.1 OwnersDefined. AllPersonsdescribed asOwners inSection4oftheDeclaration
shallbeMembers. NoPersonshallbeaMembersolelybyreasonofholdingasecurity interest in
aUnit. APersonshallceasetobeaMemberatsuchtimeasthatPerson isnolongeranOwner.  
ThetermsMember andOwneraresometimes usedinterchangeably intheseBylaws.  

2.2 Registration ofOwnersandOccupants. AnOwnershall registerwiththeSecretary
oftheAssociation, inwriting, (i) thename, address, telephone numberandemailaddressofthe
OwnersandanyOccupants oftheUnit; (ii) thenatureofsuchOwnersinterestorestate ineach
Unitowned; (iii) theaddressatwhich theOwnerdesires toreceivenoticeofanymeetingofthe
Owners, ifotherthantheUnitaddress; (iv) whether theOwnerconsents toreceivenoticeby
electronic communication and, ifso, designation oftheemailaddressorotheravailable formof
electronic communication bywhichtheOwnerdesires toreceivenoticeinaccordance withSection
317A.450oftheAct; (v) thenameandaddressofanyMortgagee withrespect totheUnit; and (vi)  
thenameoftheOwnerentitled tocastthevoteallocated totheOwnerÓs Unit. EachOwnershall
haveacontinuing obligation toadvise theAssociation inwritingofanychanges intheforegoing
information.  

2.3 TransferofMembership. EachMembership isappurtenant totheUnitonwhichitis
basedandshall transferautomatically uponanyvoluntary orinvoluntary transferoftheownership
ofsuchUnit. Itshallbetheresponsibility ofeachOwner, uponbecoming anOwnerofaUnit, to
registerwiththeAssociation inthemanner provided intheforegoing section.  

SECTION 3VOTING

3.1 Entitlement. EachUnitintheProperty shallbeentitled toone (1) vote. However, no
voteshallbeexercisedastoaUnitwhiletheUnitisownedbytheAssociation.  

3.2 Authority toCastVote; Multiple Owners. AtanymeetingoftheOwners, anOwner
includedonthevoting registerpresented bytheSecretary inaccordance withSection4.6, orthe
holderofsuchOwnerÓs proxy, shallbeentitled tocastthevotewhichisallocated totheUnitowned

1



bytheOwner. Ifthere ismorethanoneOwnerofaUnit, onlyoneoftheOwnersmaycastthevote.  
IftheOwnersofaUnitfailtoagreeastowhoshallcastthevote, orfailtoregisterpursuant to
Section2.2, thevoteshallnotbecast.  

3.3 VotingbyProxy. AnOwnermaycastthevotewhichisallocated totheOwnerÓs
UnitandbecountedaspresentatanymeetingoftheOwnersbyexecuting awrittenproxynaming
anotherpersonentitled toactonthatOwnerÓs behalf, anddelivering thesametotheSecretary
before thecommencement ofanysuchmeeting. AllproxiesgrantedbyanOwnershallbeeffective
until theearliestofthefollowing events: (i) revocation bythegranting Ownerbywrittennoticeor
bypersonally attending andvotingatthemeeting forwhichtheproxyiseffective; (ii) thedate
specified intheproxy, ifany; or (iii) thetimeatwhichthegranting Owner isnolongeranOwner.  

3.4 VotingbyWrittenBallot. Theentirevoteonanyissue, except theelectionorremoval
ofdirectors, maybedetermined bywrittenballotsmailedtotheOwnersalongwithanoticeofthe
vote, subject tothefollowing requirements.  

3.4.1 Thenoticeofthevoteshall: (i) clearlystatetheproposedaction; (ii) indicate
thenumberofresponses neededtomeetthequorum requirements; (iii) statethepercentage
ofapprovals necessary toapprove eachmatterotherthanelectionofdirectors; and (iv)  
specify thetimebywhichaballotmustbereceivedbytheAssociation inordertobe
counted.  

3.4.2 Theballotshall: (i) setfortheachproposed action, and (ii) provide an
opportunity tovotefororagainsteachproposed action.  

3.4.3 TheBoardshallsetthetimeforthereturnofballots, whichshallnotbeless
thanfifteennormorethanforty-fivedaysafterthedateofmailingoftheballotstothe
Owners. TheBoardshallprovidenoticeoftheresultsofthevotetotheOwnerswithinten
daysaftertheexpirationofthevotingperiod.  

3.4.4 Approval bywrittenballotunderthisSection isvalidonlyif (i) thenumberof
votescastbyballotequalsorexceeds thequorum required tobepresentatameeting
authorizing theaction, and (ii) thenumberofapproval votesequalsorexceeds thenumber
ofvotesthatwouldberequired toapprove thematteratameetingatwhichthetotalnumber
ofvotescastwasthesameasthenumberofvotescastbyballot.  

3.5 VotingbyElectronic Means. Votingbyballotmayalsobeconducted byelectronic
communication aloneorincombination withmailed, writtenballots inaccordance withSection
3.4above. Votingbyelectronic communication mayonlybeusediftheapplicable Owner has
registered suchOwnerÓs consent thereto inaccordance withSection2.2aboveandSection
317A.447oftheAct. ConsentbyanOwner toreceivenoticebyelectronic communication inthe
manner designated underSection2.2constitutes consent toreceiveaballotbyelectronic
communications inthesamemanner.  

3.6 VoteRequired. Amajorityofthevotescastatanyproperly constituted meetingof
theOwners, orcastbywrittenballotorelectronic ballot inaccordance withSection3.4or3.5, shall
decideallmatters properly broughtbeforetheOwners, exceptwhereadifferent voteorvoting
procedure isrequiredbytheGoverning Documents ortheAct. Unlessotherwise expressly

2



indicated, thetermmajorityasusedhereinshallmeaninexcessoffiftypercentofthevotescastby
theOwnersvotinginaccordance withthevotingprocedures setforthinSection3andtheallocation
ofvotingpowersetforth intheDeclaration. Cumulative votingshallnotbepermitted.  

SECTION 4MEETINGS OFOWNERS

4.1 Place. AllmeetingsoftheOwnersshallbeheldatasuitableplacewithinHennepin
County, Minnesota, andconvenient totheOwners, asmaybedesignated bytheBoard inanynotice
ofameetingoftheOwners.  TheBoardshallhavetherighttodesignate thatanannualorspecial
meetingofOwnersmaybeheldsolelybyoneormoremeansofremotecommunication ifthe
requirements ofSection317A.450oftheActaremet.  

4.2 AnnualMeetings. AnannualmeetingoftheOwnersshallbeheldineachfiscalyear
onadate, andatareasonable timeandplace, designated bytheBoard. Ateachannualmeetingof
theOwners, (i) thepersons whoaretoconstitute theBoardshallbeelectedpursuant toSection6;  
ii) areportshallbemadetotheOwnersontheactivities andfinancial conditionoftheAssociation;  

and (iii) anyothermatterwhich isincluded inthenoticeoftheannualmeeting, andisaproper
subject fordecision bytheOwners, shallbeconsidered andacteduponatthemeeting.  During the
Declarant ControlPerioddescribed intheDeclaration, theDeclarant shallhavetherighttoappoint
allmembersoftheBoard.  

4.3 SpecialMeetings. SpecialmeetingsoftheOwnersmaybecalledbythePresident as
amatterofdiscretion. Following expiration orearlier termination oftheDeclarant ControlPeriod,   
SpecialmeetingsoftheOwnersshallbecalledbythePresident orSecretary withinthirtydays
following receiptofthewrittenrequestofamajorityofthemembersoftheBoardorofOwners
entitled tocastatleastthirtypercentofallthevotesintheAssociation. Themeetingshallbeheld
withinsixtydaysfollowing receiptoftherequest. Therequestshallstatethepurposeofthemeeting,  
andthebusiness transacted atthemeeting shallbeconfined tothepurposes statedinthenotice.   

4.4 NoticeofMeetings. Notlessthantwenty-one (21) normorethanthirty (30) daysin
advanceofanyannualmeetingoftheOwners, andatleastseven (7), butnomorethanthirty (30),  
daysinadvanceofanyspecialmeeting oftheOwners, theSecretary shallsend, toallPersons who
areOwnersasofthedateofsending thenotice, noticeofthetime, placeandagendaofthemeeting.  
ThenoticeshallbesentbyUnitedStatesmailorbyhanddeliveryorbyemailcommunication if
themember hasconsented toreceive thenoticebyelectronic communication, attheOwnersUnit
addressortosuchotheraddressastheOwner mayhavedesignated inwritingtotheSecretary. The
noticeshallalsobesenttotheMortgagee withrespect toaUnit, uponrequest, attheaddress
provided bytheMortgagee. AnyMortgagee shall, uponrequest, beentitled todesignate a
representative tobepresentatanymeeting.  

4.5 Quorum/Adjournment. ThepresenceofOwners inpersonorbyproxy, whohavethe
authority tocastinexcessoffiftypercent (50%) ofallthevotesintheAssociation shallbe
necessary toconstitute aquorumatallmeetingsoftheOwners forthetransaction ofanybusiness,  
exceptthatofadjourning themeeting toreconvene atasubsequent time. TheAssociation maynot
becounted indetermining aquorumastoanyUnitownedbytheAssociation. Anymeetingmay
beadjourned fromtimetotime, butuntilnolonger thanfifteen (15) dayslater, withoutnoticeother
thanannouncement atthemeetingasinitiallycalled. Ifaquorumispresentatthereconvened

3



meeting, anybusiness maybetransacted whichmighthavebeentransacted atthemeeting as
initially calledhadaquorum thenbeenpresent. Aquorum, havingoncebeenestablished ata
meetingorareconvened meeting, shallcontinue toexistforthatmeeting notwithstanding the
departure ofanyOwnerwhowaspresentwhenthequorumwasestablished.  

4.6 VotingRegister. TheSecretary shallhaveavailableatthemeeting alistoftheUnit
numbers, thenamesoftheOwners, thevoteattributable toeachUnitandthenameoftheperson (in
thecaseofmultiple Owners) authorized tocastthevote.  

4.7Agenda. TheagendaformeetingsoftheOwnersshallbeestablished bytheBoard,  
consistent withtheGoverning Documents, andshallbesenttoallOwnersalongwiththenoticeof
themeeting.  

4.8 OrderofBusiness. TheorderofbusinessatallannualmeetingsoftheOwnersshall
beasfollows:  

a. Rollcall.  
b. Proofofnoticeofmeetingorwaiverofnotice.  
c. Reading minutesofpreceding meeting.  
d. Reportofofficers.   
e. Reportofcommittees.  
f. Designation ofregulardateforannualmeetings (ifnecessary)  
g. ElectionofBoard.  
h. Unfinished business.  
i. Newbusiness.  
j. Openforum.  
k. Announcement ofdate, timeandplaceoftheorganizational meetingofnew

Board.  
l. Adjournment.  

SECTION 5ANNUAL REPORT

Afterexpiration orearlier termination oftheDeclarant ControlPeriod, theAssociation shall
prepareanannual report, acopyofwhichshallbeprovided toeachOwneratorpriortotheannual
meeting. Thereportshallcontain, ataminimum:  

5.1 CapitalExpenditures. Astatement ofanycapitalexpenditures inexcessoftwo
percentoftheAssociationÓs currentbudgetorfivethousand dollars ($5,000.00), whichever is
greater, approved bytheAssociation forthecurrentyearorsucceeding two (2) fiscalyears, and
copiesofpaidinvoices andacheck register report including checknumber, payee, amount and
description ofthepurpose foreachsuchexpenditure.   

5.2 Reserve Funds. Astatement oftheassociationÓs totalreplacement reserves, the
components oftheProperty forwhichthereserves aresetaside, andtheamountsofthereserves,  
ifany, thattheBoardhasallocated forthereplacement ofeachofthecomponents;  

5.3 Financial Statements. Acopyofthestatementofrevenues andexpenses forthe
Association slastfiscalyear, andabalance sheetandcheckregister report including checknumber,  
payee, amountanddescription ofthepurpose foreachsuchexpenditure asoftheendofsaidfiscal

4



year.  

5.4 LitigationandJudgments. Astatementofthestatusofanypending litigationor
judgments towhichtheAssociation isaparty.  

5.5 Insurance. Adetaileddescription oftheinsurance coverage providedbythe
Association, includingastatement astowhich, ifany, oftheitemsreferred toinSection515B.3-  
113(b) oftheActarecovered.  Evidenceofsuchcoverage andcopiesoftheapplicable policies
shallbemadeavailable bytheAssociation andemailedannually toOwnersuponrequest.  

5.6 StatusofAssessments. Astatement ofthetotalpastdueAssessments onallUnits,  
currentasofnotmorethansixtydayspriortothedateofthemeeting.  

SECTION 6BOARDOFDIRECTORS

6.1 NumberandQualification. TheaffairsoftheAssociation shallbegoverned bya
BoardofDirectors (theÐBoardÑ). TheBoardshallbecomposed ofthree (3) directors. Eachofthe
directors shallhavethesamerightsandobligations, exceptasotherwise provided bytheGoverning
Documents. Exceptasprovided herein, amajorityofthedirectors shallbeOwners, orofficersor
employees ofanOwner thatisalegalentityrather thananaturalperson, andnotwodirectorsmay
beOwnersofthesameUnit, oraffiliatesofthesameOwneriftheOwner isotherthananatural
person.  

6.2 TermofOfficeandElection. Theelectionandtermsofofficeofthemembersofthe
Boardshallbeasfollows:  

6.2.1 During theDeclarant ControlPeriod, theBoardshallconsistofthethree (3)  
directors designated intheArticlesofIncorporation, whoneednotbeOwners, andwho
shallserveuntilreplacedoruntiltheinitialorganizational meetingoftheOwnerswhich
shalloccuraftertheearliestof: (i) voluntary surrender ofcontrolbyDeclarant; (ii) after
conveyance toOwners otherthanDeclarant ofseventy-fivepercent (75%) ofthetotal
numberofUnitsauthorized tobeincluded inthePropertyor (iii) thedatefive (5) years
following thedateofthefirstconveyance ofaUnittoanOwnerother thanDeclarant.   
Notwithstanding theforegoing, theOwnersotherthanDeclarant shallhavetherightto
nominate andelectnotlessthanthirty-threeandone-thirdpercent (33.3%) oftheBoardat
ameetingoftheOwnerswhichshallbeheldwithinsixty (60) daysfollowing conveyance
byDeclarant offiftypercent (50%) ofthetotalnumberofUnitsauthorized tobeincluded
withintheProperty.  

6.2.2 Uponexpiration oftheDeclarant ControlPeriod, Declarant shallschedulea
meetingoftheOwnersatwhichtheBoardappointed bytheDeclarant shallresignandthe
Ownersshallelect three (3) directors.  Thecandidate receiving themostvotesshallbe
elected foratermofthree (3), thecandidate receiving thesecond-mostvotesshallbeelected
foratermoftwo (2) years, andthecandidate receiving thenextmostvotesshallbeelected
foratermofone (1) year. Eachtermofofficethereafter shallbetwo (2) yearsandshall
expireupontheelectionofasuccessor director attheappropriate annual meetingofthe
Owners; provided, thatadirectorshallcontinue inofficeuntilasuccessor iselected.  

5



6.2.3 Priortoeachannualmeeting, theOwnersofUnitsshallnominate anumber
ofnominees sufficient tofilltheexpiring termsofdirectors, orsuchgreaternumberof
nominees assaidOwnersdeemappropriate. Ownersentitled tocastvotesmustcasttheir
votesforasufficient numberofnominees tofilltheopendirectorpositions. Anumberof
nominees equal tothenumberofopendirector positions, andreceiving thegreatest numbers
ofvotes, shallbeelected, notwithstanding thatoneormoreofthemdoesnotreceivea
majorityofthevotescast. Atthefirstelection, unlessotherwise unanimously agreedbythe
electeddirectors, thenomineeornominees receiving thegreatest numbers ofvotesshallfill
thelonger terms. Adirectorappointed orelected tofillanuncompleted termshallserve
until thenatural termination ofthatterm, unless removed inaccordance withtheseBylaws.  
Alldirectors mustbeingoodfinancialandlegalstandingwiththeAssociation toremaina
directororbeelectedasadirector.  

6.3 Nominations. Following theDeclarant ControlPeriod, nominations forelection to
theBoardateachannualmeetingmaybemadebytheBoard, anominating committee appointed
bytheBoardoranOwner.Allnominations shallbeconsistent withtherequirements ofthisSection
6, andshallbemadeonlywiththeconsentofthenominee.  

6.4 Powers. TheBoardshallhaveallpowersnecessary fortheadministration ofthe
affairsoftheAssociation, andshallexercise fortheAssociation allpowersandauthority vestedin
ordelegated totheAssociation (andnotexpressly prohibited orreservedtotheOwners) bylawor
bytheGoverning Documents. ThepowersoftheBoardshall include, without limitation, thepower
to:  

6.4.1adopt, amendandrevokeRulesnotinconsistent withtheGoverning
Documents, asfollows: (i) regulating theuseoftheCommon Elements; (ii) regulating the
useoftheUnits, andtheconductofOwnersandOccupants, whichmayjeopardize the
health, safetyorwelfareofotherOwners andOccupants, whichinvolves noiseorother
disturbing activity, orwhichmaydamage theCommon ElementsorotherUnits; (iii)  
regulating orprohibiting animals; (iv) regulating changes intheappearance oftheCommon
Elements andconductwhichmaydamage theProperty; (v) regulating theexterior
appearance oftheProperty, including, forexample, balconies andpatios, window
treatments, signs, andotherdisplays regardless ofwhether insideaUnit; (vi) implementing
theGoverning Documents, andexercising thepowersgranted bythisSection; and (vii)  
otherwise facilitating theoperationoftheProperty;  

6.4.2 adoptandamendbudgets forrevenues, expenditures andreserves, levyand
collectAssessments, andforeclose Assessment liensincidental toitscollection efforts;  

6.4.3 hireanddischarge managing agentsandotheremployees, agentsand
independent contractors;  

6.4.4 subject tothelimitations setforthintheDeclaration, institute, defendor
intervene inlitigation oradministrative proceedings (i) initsownnameonbehalfofitself
ortwoormoreOwners onmattersaffecting theCommon Elementsorothermatters
affecting thePropertyortheAssociation, or (ii) withtheconsentoftheOwnersofthe
affectedUnits, onmattersaffectingonlythoseUnits;  

6



6.4.5makecontracts andincur liabilities;  

6.4.6 regulate theuse, maintenance, repair, replacement andmodification ofthe
Common Elements andtheUnits;  

6.4.7 causeimprovements tobemadeasapartoftheCommon Elements;  

6.4.8 acquire, hold, encumber andconveyinitsownnameanyright, titleorinterest
torealestateorpersonal property, subject totherequirements oftheActfortheconveyance
orencumbrance oftheCommon Elements;  

6.4.9 grantoramendeasements, leasesandlicenses through, overandunder the
Common Elements, forpublicandprivate roadways, utilitiesandotherpublicpurposes,  
andforpublicandprivatecable, internet, satelliteandotherelectronic communications
systems, andtograntoramendothereasements, leasesandlicenses through, overorunder
theCommon Elements if (i) expressly authorized bytheDeclaration orMCIOAor (ii)  
approved byamajorityvoteoftheOwnersother thanDeclarant;   

6.4.10 imposeandreceiveanypayments, feesorchargesfortheuse, rental,  
oroperation oftheCommon Elements (other thanLimitedCommon Elements) andfor
servicesoramenities provided toOwners;  

6.4.11 imposecharges forlatepaymentofAssessments and, afternoticeand
anopportunity tobeheard, levyreasonable finesforviolationsoftheGoverning
Documents, theRulesortheAct;  

6.4.12 borrowmoney, andencumber orpledgetheassetsoftheAssociation
assecurity therefor; provided, thatanyborrowings inanytwelvemonthperiodwhich
exceed, inaggregate, twentypercentoftheAssociationÓs thencurrentannualbudget, shall
requireapproval byamajority voteoftheOwnersother thanDeclarant;  

6.4.13 impose reasonable charges forthereview, preparation andrecording
ofamendments totheGoverning Documents, resaledisclosure certificates requiredby
Section515B.4-107oftheAct, statementsofunpaidAssessments, orfurnishing copiesof
Association records;  

6.4.14 provide fortheindemnification ofitsofficers, directors andcommittee
members, andmaintain directors andofficers liability insurance;  

6.4.15 provide forreasonable procedures governing theconductofmeetings
andtheelectionofdirectors;  

6.4.16 appoint, regulate anddissolve committees; and

6.4.17 exercise anyotherpowersconferred bylawortheGoverning
Documents, orwhicharenecessary andproper forthegovernance oftheAssociation.  

7



6.5 Meetings andNotices. AnannualmeetingoftheBoardshallbeheldpromptly
following eachannualmeetingoftheOwners. AteachannualmeetingoftheBoard, theofficersof
theAssociation shallbeelected.  

6.5.1 Uponexpiration oftheDeclarant ControlPeriod, Regular meetingsofthe
Boardshallbeheldatleastonaquarterly basis, atsuchtimesasmaybefixedfromtimeto
timebyamajorityofthedirectors, provided however thatascheduled quarterly meetingof
theBoardmaybewaiveduponunanimous approvalofthedirectors solongastheprior
quarterly meetingwasheld. Aschedule, oranyamended schedule, oftheregularmeetings
shallbeprovided tothedirectors, andpostedorpublished fortheinformation ofOwners,  
totheextent requiredbySection6.5.5.  

6.5.2 SpecialmeetingsoftheBoardshallbeheldwhencalled (i) bythePresident,  
or (ii) bytheSecretary withintendaysfollowing thewrittenrequestofamajorityofthe
directors. Noticeofanyspecial meeting shallbegiventoeachdirectornotlessthanthree
daysinadvance thereof, subject toSection6.5.5. Notice toadirectorshallbedeemedtobe
givenwhendeposited intheUnitedStatesmailpostage prepaid totheUnitaddressofsuch
director, orwhensentviaelectronic means totheaddressonfilewiththeAssociation, or
whenpersonally delivered, orallyorinwriting, byarepresentative oftheBoard.  

6.5.3 AnydirectormayatanytimewaivenoticeofanymeetingoftheBoardorally,  
inwriting, orbyattendance atthemeeting. Ifallthedirectors arepresentatameeting of
theBoard, nonoticeshallberequired, andanybusiness maybetransacted atsuchmeeting.  

6.5.4 Aconference amongdirectors byameansofcommunication throughwhich
alldirectorscansimultaneously heareachotherduringtheconference isaBoardmeeting,  
if (i) thesamenotice isgivenfortheconference aswouldberequired forameeting, and
ii) thenumberofdirectors participating intheconference isaquorum. Participation ina

meetingbythismeansispersonal presence atthemeeting.  

6.5.5 Exceptasotherwise provided inthisSectionorbylaw, meetingsoftheBoard
mustbeopentotheOwners. Totheextentpracticable, theBoardshallgivereasonable
noticetotheOwnersofthedate, time, andplaceofaBoardmeeting. Ifthedate, timeand
placeofmeetingsareprovided forintheGoverning Documents, announced ataprevious
meetingoftheBoard, posted inalocation accessible totheOwnersanddesignated bythe
Boardfromtimetotime, orifanemergency requires immediate consideration ofamatter
bytheBoard, noticeisnotrequired. Noticehasthemeaning giveninSection11.1.  
Notwithstanding theforegoing, meetingsmaybeclosedatthediscretionoftheBoardto
discuss thefollowing:  

6.5.5.1 personnel matters;  

6.5.5.2 pendingorpotential litigation, arbitration orotherpotentially
adversarial proceedings between Owners, between theBoardortheAssociation and
Owners, orothermatters inwhichanyOwnermayhaveanadversarial interest, if
theBoarddetermines thatclosing themeeting isnecessary todiscussstrategyorto
otherwise protect thepositionoftheBoardorAssociation ortheprivacyofan
OwnerorOccupant; or

8



6.5.5.3 criminalactivity arisingwithin thecommon interest
community iftheBoarddetermines thatclosing themeeting isnecessary toprotect
theprivacyofthevictimorthatopening themeetingwould jeopardize investigation
oftheactivity.  

Theminutesofandthedocumentation discussed orsubmittedatsuchclosedmeetingmay
bekeptconfidential andneednotbemadeavailable forrevieworcopying pursuant to
Section8.5. Nothing inthisSection imposesadutyontheBoardtoprovide special facilities
formeetings. Thefailure togivenoticeasrequiredbythisSectionshallnotinvalidate the
Boardmeeting oranyaction takenatthemeeting, butshallnotimpairtheOwnersÓ rights
toexercise otherremedies against thedirectors.  

6.6 Quorum andVoting. Amajorityofthedirectors constitutes aquorum forthe
transaction ofbusinessatanymeetingoftheBoard. Aquorum, onceestablished, continues toexist,  
regardlessofthesubsequent departure ofanydirector. Eachdirectorhasonevote. Thevoteofa
majorityofthedirectors presentatanymeetingatwhichaquorumispresent issufficient toadopt
anyaction. Proxies arenotpermitted.  

6.7 ActionTakenWithoutaMeeting. TheBoardshallhavetherighttotakeanyaction
intheabsenceofameetingwhichitcouldtakeatameetingwhenauthorized inawritingsignedby
allthedirectors; provided, thatacopyoftheproposed written actionisgiventoalldirectors for
reviewpriortoitssigning.  

6.8 Vacancies. AvacancyontheBoardduetoresignation, ordeathorsomeother
involuntary eventwhichrendersadirectorphysically ormentallyunabletoserve, shallbefilledby
apersonelectedwithinthirtydaysfollowing theoccurrence ofthevacancybyamajority voteof
theremaining directors, regardless oftheirnumber. Eachpersonsoelectedshallserveouttheterm
vacated.  

6.9 Removal. Adirectormayberemoved fromtheBoard, withorwithoutcause, bya
majority voteatanyannualorspecialmeetingoftheOwners; provided, (i) thatthenoticeofthe
meetingatwhichremoval istobeconsidered statessuchpurpose; (ii) thatthedirector tobe
removed hasarighttobeheardatthemeeting; (iii) thatanewdirector iselectedatthemeetingby
theOwners tofillthevacantposition causedbytheremoval; and (iv) thatthevoteincludea
majorityofthevotescastbyOwners. Adirectormayalsoberemoved bytheBoardifsuchdirector
i) hasmorethantwounexcused absences fromBoardmeetings and/orOwners meetings during

anytwelvemonthperiod, or (ii) ismorethansixtydayspastduewithrespect tothepaymentof
Assessments leviedagainst thedirectorÓs Unit.   

6.10 Compensation. Exceptasauthorized byavoteoftheOwners atameeting thereof,  
thedirectors shallreceivenocompensation fortheirservices insuchcapacity. Directors maybe
reimbursed forout-of-pocketexpenses incurred intheperformance oftheirduties. Adirectororan
entity inwhichthedirectorhasaninterestmay, uponapprovalbytheBoard, bereasonably
compensated underacontract forgoodsandservices furnished totheAssociation inacapacity
otherthanasadirector; provided (i) thatthecontract isapproved byamajorityvoteoftheBoard,  
excluding theinterested director, and (ii) thatthedirectorsinterest isdisclosed totheBoardprior
toapproval.  

9



6.11 Fidelity Bond. Fidelitybondsorinsurance coverage forunlawful takingof
Association fundsshallbeobtained andmaintained asprovided intheDeclaration onalldirectors
andofficersauthorized tohandle theAssociation sfundsorothermonetary assets.  

6.12 StandardsofConduct. Inthespiritoffairness, itisthedutyofeachmemberofthe
Boardtorepresent theentireMapleShorescommunity forthegoodofthecommunity asawhole.  
Accordingly, eachBoarddirectorshalldischarge thedutiesofthepositionofdirector ingoodfaith,  
inamanner thatthedirector reasonably believes tobeinthebestinterests oftheAssociation asa
whole, andwiththecareanordinarily prudentperson inalikepositionwouldexercise undersimilar
circumstances.  

SECTION 7OFFICERS

7.1 PrincipalOfficers. Theprincipal officersoftheAssociation shallbeaPresident, a
VicePresident, aSecretary andaTreasurer, allofwhomshallbeelectedbythedirectors. The
Boardmayfromtimetotimeelectsuchotherofficers anddesignate theirdutiesasintheir judgment
maybenecessary tomanage theaffairsoftheAssociation. Apersonmayholdmorethanoneoffice
simultaneously, except thoseofPresident andVicePresident. OnlythePresident andVice
President mustbemembersoftheBoard. OwnersofthesameUnit, oraffiliatesoftheOwnerif
theOwner isother thananaturalperson, maynotsimultaneously serveasofficersofthe
Association unlessunanimously electedbytheBoard.  

7.2 Election. TheofficersoftheAssociation shallbeelectedannuallybytheBoardatits
annualmeeting andshallholdofficeatthepleasureoftheBoard.  

7.3 Removal. Uponanaffirmative voteofamajority ofthemembersoftheBoard, any
officermayberemoved, withorwithout cause, andasuccessor elected, atanyregularmeetingof
theBoard, oratanyspecialmeetingoftheBoardcalledforthatpurpose.  

7.4 President. ThePresident shallbethechiefexecutiveofficeroftheAssociation, and
shallpresideatallmeetingsoftheBoardandtheAssociation. ThePresident shallhaveallofthe
powersanddutieswhicharecustomarily vested intheofficeofpresidentofacorporation, including
without limitation thedutytosupervise allotherofficersandtoexecuteallcontracts andsimilar
obligations onbehalfoftheAssociation. ThePresident shallhavesuchotherdutiesasmayfrom
timetotimebeprescribed bytheBoard.  

7.5 VicePresident. TheVicePresident shall taketheplaceofthePresidentandperform
thedutiesoftheofficewhenever thePresident shallbeabsentorunabletoact. TheVicePresident
shallalsoperformsuchotherdutiesasshallfromtimetotimebeprescribed bytheBoard.  

7.6 Secretary-Treasurer. TheSecretary-Treasurer isresponsible forrecording the
minutesofallmeetingsoftheBoardandtheAssociation. TheSecretary-Treasurer shallbe
responsible forkeepingcurrentbooksandrecordsoftheAssociation, including recordsshowing
theOwnersofUnits, togetherwiththeiraddressandcontact information, andshallgiveallnotices
requiredbytheGoverning Documents ortheActunlessdirected otherwise bytheBoard. The
Secretary-Treasurer shallberesponsible forAssociation fundsandsecurities andshallbe
responsible forkeeping theAssociationÓs financial books, Assessment rolls, andaccounts, and
filingtheAssociationÓs taxreturns.  TheSecretary-Treasurer shallsignallchecksandshallbe

10



responsible forthedepositofallmoniesandvaluable effects inthenameandtothecreditofthe
Association insuchdepositories asmayfromtimetotimebedesignated bytheBoard.  TheBoard
maydelegate theSecretary-TreasurerÓs administrative functions toamanageroragent.  

7.7 Compensation. Exceptasauthorized byavoteoftheOwners atameeting thereof,  
officersshallreceivenocompensation fortheirservices insuchcapacity. Officersmaybe
reimbursed forout-of-pocketexpenses incurred intheperformance oftheirduties. Anofficeror
anentity inwhichtheofficerhasaninterestmaybereasonably compensated underacontract for
goodsandservices furnished totheAssociation inacapacity otherthanasanofficer; provided
i) thatthecontract isapproved byamajority voteoftheBoard, excluding theinterested party, and
ii) thattheofficersinterest isdisclosed totheBoardpriortoapproval.  

7.8 Standards ofConduct. Inthespiritoffairness, itisthedutyofeachofficer to
represent theentireMapleShorescommunity forthegoodofthecommunity asawhole.  
Accordingly, eachAssociation officershalldischarge thedutiesofthepositionofofficer ingood
faith, inamanner thattheofficer reasonably believes tobeinthebest interestsoftheAssociation
asawhole, andwiththecareanordinarily prudentperson inalikepositionwouldexercise under
similarcircumstances.  

SECTION 8OPERATION OFTHEPROPERTY

8.1 Assessment Procedures. TheBoardshallannuallyprepare andapproveabudgetof
Common Expenses fortheAssociation andassesssuchCommon Expenses against theUnits
according totheirrespective allocations ofCommon Expense obligations assetforthinthe
Declaration andasfurtherprovided intheAct, subject toanylimitations contained inthe
Declaration ortheAct, andtothefollowing:  

8.1.1 SubjectDeclarantÓs alternate assessment rights,  Boardshall fixtheamount
oftheannualAssessment againsteachUnit, levytheAssessment andadvise theOwners in
writingoftheAssessment atleast thirtydayspriortothebeginning oftheAssociationÓs
fiscalyearwhenthefirstAssessment installment shallbedue. ThefailureoftheBoardto
timely levyanannualAssessment shallnotrelievetheOwnersoftheirobligation to
continue payingAssessment installments intheamount currently levied, aswellasany
increases subsequently levied.  

8.1.2 TheBoardmayamendthebudgetandAssessments, orlevyaspecial
Assessment orlimitedAssessment, atanytime. Thelevyshallbedeemedtooccuruponthe
datespecified intheresolution whichfixestheAssessment.  

8.1.3TheBoardmay (ormustincertaincases) levylimited Assessments against
onlycertainUnitsundertheDeclaration. SuchAssessments maybeincluded intheannual
Assessments leviedagainst theaffectedUnitsormaybeleviedseparately duringtheyear.  
SuchAssessments arenotannualorspecialAssessments withinthemeaningofthe
Governing Documents, andarenotsubject toanylimitations onthoseAssessments.  

8.1.4 Theannual budgetshall includeallcustomary andnecessary operating
expenses, ageneraloperating reserve, andanadequate reserve fundforreplacement ofthe
Common Elements andanypartsoftheUnitsthattheAssociation isobligated toreplace.  

11



8.1.5TheAssociation shall furnishcopiesofeachbudgetonwhich the
Assessment isbasedtoDeclarant, anOwnerortoanyMortgagee, uponrequestofsuch
Person.  

8.2 PaymentofAssessments. AnnualAssessments shallbedueandpayable inmonthly
orquarterly installments, asestablished bytheBoard, inadvanceonthefirstdayofeachmonthof
theyearorotherperiodforwhichtheAssessments aremade, andspecialAssessments orlimited
Assessments shallbeduewhendesignated bytheBoard. Exceptasprovided intheDeclaration, all
Ownersshallbeabsolutely andunconditionally obligated topaytheAssessments andnoOwneror
Occupant shallhaveanyrightofwithholding, offsetordeduction against theAssociation with
respect toanyAssessments, latecharges, interestorcostsofcollection, regardless ofanyclaims
allegedagainst theAssociation oritsofficersordirectors. AnyrightsorclaimsallegedbyanOwner
maybepursuedonlybyseparate action.  

8.3 Default inPaymentofAssessments. IfanyOwner doesnotmakepaymentonor
beforethedatewhenanyAssessment orinstallment thereof isdue, subject tosuchgraceperiods as
maybeestablished, theBoardmayassess, andtheOwnershallbeobligated topay, alatecharge
asprovided intheDeclaration foreachsuchunpaidAssessment orinstallment thereof, together
withallexpenses, including reasonable attorneysÓ feesandotherprofessional feesandcosts,  
incurredbytheBoardincollecting anysuchunpaidAssessment.  

8.3.1 IfthereisadefaultofmorethanthirtydaysinpaymentofanyAssessment,  
theBoardmayaccelerate anyremaining installments oftheAssessment uponpriorwritten
noticethereof totheOwner, asprovided intheDeclaration, andtheentireunpaidbalance
oftheAssessment andlatecharges shallbecomedueandpayableuponthedatestatedin
thenoticeunlessallpastdueamounts, latecharges, fines, reasonably attorneysÓ feesand
otherprofessional feesandcostsincurredbytheBoard, arepaidpriortosaiddate.  

8.3.2 TheBoardshalluseitsbesteffortstocollectallAssessments, togetherwith
anycharges, attorneysÓ feesandotherprofessional feesandcostsorexpenses relatingto
thecollection thereof. Inaddition, theBoardshallusecommercially reasonable effortsto
recoveranyandallcollection orcontingency feesorcostscharged totheAssociation bya
collection agencyorotherPersonactingonbehalfoftheAssociation incollecting any
unpaidAssessments.  

8.3.3 Uponwritten requestofanOwnerorEligibleMortgagee ofaUnit, noticeof
adefaultofmorethansixtydaysinpaymentofanyAssessment orinstallment thereofor
anyotherdefault intheperformance ofobligations bytheOwnershallbegiven inwriting
totheMortgagee orEligibleMortgagee ofsuchOwnersUnit.  

8.3.4 Therightsandremedies referred tohereinshallnotlimit theremedies
available totheAssociation undertheDeclaration orbylaw.  

8.4 Foreclosure ofLiensforUnpaidAssessments. TheAssociation hastherightto
foreclose alienagainstaUnitforAssessments imposedbytheAssociation, asmorefullydescribed
intheDeclaration andtheAct.  

12



8.5 Records. TheBoardshallcausetobekeptattheregistered officeoftheAssociation,  
andatsuchotherplaceastheBoardmaydetermine, recordsoftheactionsoftheBoard, minutesof
themeetingsoftheBoard, minutesofthemeetingsoftheOwners, namesoftheOwnersand
EligibleMortgagees, anddetailedandaccurate recordsofthereceiptsandexpenditures ofthe
Association. Withtheexception ofrecords thatmaybeprivileged information, allAssociation
records, including receiptsandexpenditures andanyvouchers authorizing payments, shallbe
available forexamination bytheOwnersandtheEligibleMortgagees uponreasonable noticeand
duringnormalbusiness hours. Separate accounts shallbemaintained foreachUnitsettingforththe
amountoftheAssessments against theUnit, thedatewhendue, theamountpaidthereonandthe
balance remaining unpaid.  

8.6 FinancialReview. TheBoardshallcausethefinancial recordsoftheAssociation to
bereviewed byanindependent certifiedpublicaccountant onanannualbasis, pursuant tothe
requirements ofSection515B.3-121oftheAct. Thereviewrequirement maybewaived, onan
annual basis, bythevoteofOwnersholdingatleastthirtypercentofthetotalvotesinthe
Association; however, theBoardmayrequire therevieworanauditnotwithstanding awaivervote.  
Thewaivermustbeapproved priortosixtydaysaftertheendoftheAssociationÓs fiscalyear. A
copyoftheAssociation sfinancial statements shallbedelivered toallMembers withinonehundred
eightydaysaftertheendoftheAssociation sfiscalyear, asrequiredbytheAct.  

8.7 Enforcement ofObligations. AllOwners andOccupants andtheirguestsare
obligated andboundtoobserve theprovisionsoftheGoverning Documents, theRulesandtheAct.  
TheAssociation mayimposeanyorallofthecharges, sanctions andremedies authorized bythe
Governing Documents, theRulesorbylawtoenforceandimplement itsrightsandtootherwise
enableittomanageandoperate theAssociation.  

8.8 Maintenance. TheBoardofshallprepareandapprove awrittenpreventative
maintenance plan, maintenance schedule, andmaintenance budget fortheCommon Elements that
theAssociation shall follow. TheBoardmayamend, modify, orreplaceanapproved preventative
maintenance planoranapproved maintenance schedule fromtimetotime. TheAssociation shall
provideallOwnerswithapapercopy, electronic copy, orelectronic accesstothepreventative
maintenance plan, themaintenance schedule, andanyamendments ormodifications toor

6replacements ofthepreventative maintenance planandthemaintenance schedule.  

SECTION 9AMENDMENTS

TheseBylawsmaybeamended, andtheamendment shallbeeffective, uponthesatisfaction
ofthefollowing conditions:  

9.1 Approval. Theamendment mustbeapproved byOwnerswhohaveauthority tocast
amajority ofthetotalvotesintheAssociation, inwritingoratadulyheldmeetingofthe
Owners; subject totheapprovalofEligibleMortgagees ifrequiredbytheDeclaration.  

9.2 Notice. Acopyoftheproposed amendment and, ifameeting istobeheld, noticeof
suchmeeting, shallbemailedbyU.S. mail, orhanddelivered, toallOwnersauthorized tocast
votes.  

9.3 Effective Date. Theamendment shallbeeffectiveonthedateofapproval bythe

13



required partiesandneednotberecorded.  

SECTION 10INDEMNIFICATION

TheAssociation shall, totheextent thealleged liability isnotcoveredbyinsurance,  
indemnify every individual acting inanyofficialcapacityonbehalfoftheAssociation, pursuant to
theprovisions ofMinnesota Statutes Section317A.521.  

SECTION 11MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 Notices. Unlessspecifically provided otherwise intheAct, theDeclaration orthese
Bylaws, allnoticesrequired tobegivenbyortotheAssociation, theBoard, ortheOwnersor
Occupants shallbeinwritingandshallbeeffective uponhanddelivery, oruponmailing ifproperly
addressed withpostage prepaidanddeposited intheUnitedStatesmail; except thatregistrations
pursuant toSection2.2shallbeeffectiveuponreceiptbytheAssociation.  

11.2 Severability. Theinvalidityorunenforceability ofanypartoftheseBylawsshallnot
impairoraffect inanymanner thevalidity, enforceability oreffectofthebalanceoftheseBylaws.  

11.3 Captions. Thecaptions hereinareinsertedonlyasamatterofconvenience andfor
reference andinnowaylimitorproscribe thescopeoftheseBylawsortheintentofanyprovision
hereof.  

11.4 Conflicts inDocuments. Intheeventofanyconflictamongtheprovisions oftheAct,  
theDeclaration, theseBylawsortheRules, theActshallcontrolunlessitpermitsoneormoreof
theGoverning Documents tocontrol. AsamongtheDeclaration, theseBylawsandtheRules, the
Declaration shallcontrol, andasbetween theseBylawsandtheRules, theseBylawsshallcontrol.  

11.5 Waiver. Norestriction, condition, obligation orprovision contained intheseBylaws
shallbedeemedtohavebeenabrogated orwaivedbyreasonofanyfailuretoenforce thesame,  
irrespective ofthenumberofviolationsorbreaches thereof whichmayoccur.  

11.6NoCorporate Seal. TheAssociation shallhavenocorporate seal.  

11.7FiscalYear. ThefiscalyearoftheAssociation shallbeasdetermined bytheBoard.  

Remainder ofpageintentionally leftblank; signature pagetofollow.\]  

14



Theundersigned certifies thattheseBylawswereadoptedbythefirstBoardofDirectors
ofMapleShoresHomeowners Association, aMinnesota nonprofit corporation, effectiveasofthe
datehereof.  

Dated: ______________  

Secretary
MapleShoresHomeowner Association

15



AboveSpaceReservedforRecordingData)  

COMMONINTERESTCOMMUNITYNO. _______  
PlannedCommunity)  

MAPLESHORES

DECLARATION

ThisDeclarationismadeintheCountyofHennepin, StateofMinnesota, onthis _______ dayof
2023, byChamberlainCapitalLLC, aMinnesotalimitedliabilitycompany (the

ÐDeclarantÑ), pursuanttotheprovisionsofMinnesotaStatutesChapter515B, knownastheMinnesota
CommonInterestOwnershipAct (theÐActÑ), forthepurposeofcreatingMapleShoresasaplanned
communityundertheAct.  

WHEREAS, DeclarantistheownerofinterestsincertainrealpropertylocatedinHennepin
County, Minnesota, legallydescribedinExhibitAattachedhereto, anddesirestosubmitsaidreal
propertyandallimprovements thereonandappurtenances thereto (collectivelytheÐPropertyÑ) totheAct
asaplannedcommunity; and

WHEREAS, DeclarantdesirestoestablishonthePropertyaplanforapermanentresidential
community tobeowned, occupiedandoperatedfortheuse, health, safetyandwelfareofitsresident
OwnersandOccupants, andforthepurposeofpreservingthevalue, structuralquality, andtheoriginal
architecturalcharacteroftheProperty; and

WHEREAS, thePropertyincludesrightspertainingtocertainshoreland, asthattermisdefined
inMinnesotaStatutesSection103F.205, andmaythereforebesubjecttocounty, township, ormunicipal
ordinancesorrulesaffectingthedevelopmentanduseofsuchshorelandarea; and

WHEREAS, thePropertyisnotsubjecttoanordinancereferredtoinSection515B.1-106ofthe
Act, governingconversionstocommoninterestownership, andisnotsubjecttoamasterassociationas
definedintheAct; and

1



NOW, THEREFORE, DeclarantmakesthisDeclarationandsubjectsthePropertytotheAct
underthenameÐMapleShoresÑ, consistingoftheUnitsreferredtoinSection2andCommonElements
referredtoinSection3, anddeclaringthatthisDeclarationshallconstitutecovenantstorunwiththe
Property, andthatthePropertyshallbeowned, used, occupied, andconveyedsubjecttothecovenants,  
restrictions, easements, liensandchargessetforthherein; allofwhichshallbebindinguponallPersons
owningoracquiringanyright, titleorinteresttherein, andtheirheirs, personalrepresentatives, successors
andassigns.  Forthispurposeandthosesetforthabove, whichareincorporatedasthoughfullysetforth
herein, Declarantherebydeclaresasfollows:  

SECTION1
DEFINITIONS

ThefollowingwordswhenusedintheGoverningDocumentsshallhavethefollowingmeanings
unlessthecontextindicatesotherwise):  

1.1 ÐAssessmentÑmeansanassessment leviedbytheAssociationpursuanttoSection6,  
includingannualAssessments, specialAssessmentsandlimitedAssessments.  

1.2 ÐAssociationÑmeansMapleShoresHomeownersAssociation, anonprofitcorporation
whichhasbeencreatedpursuanttoChapter317AofthelawsofthestateofMinnesota
andSection515B.3-101oftheAct, whosemembersconsistofallOwners.  

1.3 ÐAssociation MaintenanceAreasÑmeansthoseportionsoftheProperty, including
portionsofUnitsandDwellings, astowhichresponsibility forMaintenanceis
exclusivelyallocatedtotheAssociationasprovidedherein, eventhoughsuchportionsof
thePropertymaynotconstituteCommonElementsorLimitedCommonElementsofthe
Property.  AsfurtherdescribedinSection8below, theAssociationMaintenanceAreas
generallyinclude: (i) allportionsoftheUnitslocatedoutsideoftheDwellings, including
yards, landscaping, andhardscapedareas, includingtheDrivewayAreas; (ii) theexterior
surfaces, finishes, andcomponentsofeachDwelling, butnotincludingtheInterior
CourtyardAreaofsuchDwelling; (iii) utilitylinesrunningfromaDwellingtothepoint
ofconnectionwithpublicmains; and (iv) allotherportionsofthePropertylistedas
AssociationMaintenanceAreasinthisDeclarationortheRulesandRegulations.   

1.4 ÐBoardÑmeanstheBoardoftheDirectorsoftheAssociationasprovidedforinthe
Bylaws.  

1.5 ÐBuildingÑmeansanybuildingconstructeduponaUnitorUnits, asdepictedonthePlat
andcontainingaDwellingorDwellings.  

1.6 ÐBylawsÑmeanthebylawsgoverningtheoperationoftheAssociation, asamendedfrom
timetotime.  

1.7 ÐCommonElementsÑmeansallpartsofthePropertyexcepttheUnits, includingall
improvementsthereon.  TheCommonElementsarelegallydescribeduponExhibitC
attachedhereto.  

1.8 ÐCommonExpensesÑmeansallexpendituresmadeorliabilitiesincurredbyoronbehalf
oftheAssociationandincidenttoitsoperation, includingwithoutlimitation, the
AssociationÓscostsofMaintenanceoftheCommonAreasandtheAssociation
MaintenanceAreasoftheProperty, allocationstoreservesandthoseitemsotherwise

2



identifiedasCommonExpensesintheDeclarationorBylawsandallocatedtotheUnits
inaccordancewithSection4.2below.  

1.9 ÐDeclarantControlPeriodÑmeansthetimeperiodduringwhichDeclaranthasthe
exclusiverighttoappointthemembersoftheBoard, asdescribedinSection15.  

1.10 ÐDrivewayAreaÑmeans, foreachUnit, theportionofthePropertycontainingthe
improveddrivewayfortheUnitandlyingbetweentheexteriorlineoftheDwelling
withinsuchUnitandtheaccessdrivewithintheCommonElements.  TheDrivewayArea
includesaportionoftheUnituponwhichitissituated, asadesignatedAssociation
MaintenanceArea, andalsoincludesaportionoftheLimitedCommonElements
containingthedrivewayapronandallocatedtosuchUnitforsuchpurpose.  ADriveway
AreaconnectseachUnittotheaccessroadforingressandegresstotheRadissonRoad
publicrightofway.  

1.11 ÐDwellingÑmeanstheBuildingorportionofaBuilding, includingattachedgaragespace
withinsaidBuilding, lyingwithintheboundariesofaUnitanddesignatedandintended
foroccupancyasasinglefamilyresidence.  

1.12 ÐEligibleMortgageeÑmeansanyPersonthatownsafirst-prioritymortgageonanyUnit
andhasrequestedinwritingthattheAssociationnotifyitregardinganyproposedaction
whichrequiresapprovalbyaspecifiedpercentageofEligibleMortgagees.  

1.13 ÐGoverningDocumentsÑmeansthisDeclaration, andtheArticlesofIncorporationand
BylawsoftheAssociation, asamendedfromtimetotime, allofwhichshallgovernthe
useandoperationoftheProperty.  

1.14 ÐInteriorCourtyardAreaÑmeanstheat-gradeenclosedspacewithineachDwelling
locatedimmediately insidethefrontwalkentrancegateandsurroundedbyexteriorwalls
separatingitfromtheinteriorlivingareasandinteriorgarageareaofsuchDwelling.  An
InteriorCourtyardAreaincludestheexteriorwallsurfacematerialsandfinishesandthe
roofcurbingfeaturesandsolariumglassandotherroofassemblies, andthematerials, and
componentsoftheforegoingasthesamemaybeinstalledwithinsuchareaoraffixed
thereto.  

1.15 ÐLimitedCommonElementsÑmeansaportionoftheCommonElementsallocatedbythe
DeclarationorbyoperationofSection515B.2-109oftheActfortheexclusiveuseofone
ormore, butfewerthanall, oftheUnits.  

1.16 ÐMaintenanceÑmeansmaintenance, repair, andreplacement.    

1.17 ÐMemberÑmeansaPersonwhoisamemberoftheAssociationbyreasonofbeingan
Owner.  ThewordsÐOwnerÑandÐMemberÑmaybeusedinterchangeably inthe
GoverningDocuments.  

1.18 ÐOccupantÑ meansanyPersonorPersons, otherthananOwner, inpossessionofor
residinginaUnit.  

1.19 ÐOwnerÑmeansaPersonwhoownsaUnit, butexcludingcontractfordeedvendors,  
mortgagees, holdersofreversionary interestsinlifeestatesandothersecuredparties
withinthemeaningofSection515B.1-103(31) oftheAct.  ThetermÐOwnerÑincludes,  
withoutlimitation, contractfordeedvendeesandholdersofalifeestate.  

3



1.20 ÐPartyWallÑmeanstheinteriorsharedwallbetweentwoUnits.  

1.21ÐPersonÑmeansanaturalindividual, corporation, limitedliabilitycompany, partnership,  
limitedliabilitypartnership, trusteeorotherlegalentitycapableofholdingtitletoreal
property.  

1.22 ÐPlatÑmeanstherecordedplatdepictingthePropertypursuanttotherequirementsof
Section515B.2-1101(c) oftheAct, includinganyamendedorsupplementalPlatrecorded
fromtimetotime, inaccordancewiththeAct.  

1.23 ÐPropertyÑmeansalloftherealpropertysubjectedtothisDeclaration, noworinthe
future, includingtheUnitsandallotherstructuresandimprovements locatedthereon.  

1.24 ÐRulesandRegulationsÑmeanstheRulesandRegulationsoftheAssociationas
approvedfromtimetotimepursuanttoSection5.6.  

1.25 ÐSpecialDeclarantRightsÑmeansthoseexclusiverightsreservedtoDeclarantas
describedinSection15.  

1.26 ÐUnitÑshallmeanaphysicalportionoftheProperty, designatedforseparateownership,  
theboundariesofwhicharedelineatedonthePlatanddescribedinSection2.  

AnytermsusedintheGoverningDocuments, anddefinedintheActandnotinthisSection, shallhave
themeaningsetforthintheAct.  ReferencestoSectionnumbersrefertotheSectionsofthisDeclaration
unlessotherwiseindicated.  

SECTION2
DESCRIPTIONOFUNITSANDBOUNDARIES

2.1 Units.  Thereareseven (7) UnitsontheProperty.  AllUnitsarerestrictedexclusivelyto
residentialuse.  EachUnitconstitutesaseparateparcelofrealestate.  NoadditionalUnitsmaybecreated
bythesubdivisionorconversionofUnitspursuanttoSection515B.2-112oftheAct, andnoUnitsmay
beadded, exceptasprovidedinSection16. TheUnitidentifierforeachUnitshallbeitslotandblock
numbersandthesubdivisionnameasshownonthePlat.  

2.2 UnitBoundaries.  Thefront, rear, andsideboundariesofeachUnitshallbeitslotlinesas
designatedonthePlat.  TheUnitsshallhavenoupperorlowerboundaries.  SubjecttothisSectionand
Section3.2allspaces, fixtures, andimprovements locatedwithintheboundariesofaUnitarepartofthe
Unit.  

2.3 AppurtenantEasements.  TheUnitsshallbesubjecttoandbenefitedbytheeasements
describedinSection11.  

SECTION3
COMMONELEMENTS, LIMITEDCOMMONELEMENTSANDOTHERPROPERTY

3.1 CommonElements.  TheCommonElementsandtheircharacteristicsareasfollows:  

3.1.1 AllofthePropertynotincludedwithintheUnitsconstitutesCommonElements,  
includingbutnotlimitedto, forpurposesofillustration, thecurbsandasphaltoftheaccessdriveand
parkingareasandutilityinfrastructure lyingthereunder, thedrivewayapronsoftheindividual
driveways, thewetlandbufferandstormwaterpondingareas, andallotherimprovements, features,  

4



areas, rights, andappurtenancesbenefitingoraccruingtotheProperty, includingbutnotlimitedto
theappurtenanteasementforbeachbathingpurposesoveranduponLot11, RadissonInnAddition,  
whichrightsshallaccruetoandcompriseaportionoftheCommonElements, andshallnotaccrueto
theindividualUnitscreatedherein.  TheCommonElementslikewiseincludethosepartsofthe
PropertydesignatedasCommonElementsinthisDeclaration, onthePlat, orintheAct.  The
CommonElementsareownedbytheAssociationforthebenefitoftheOwnersandOccupants.  

3.1.2 TheCommonElementsshallbesubjectto (i) theeasementsandrightsdescribed
orreservedinthisDeclaration, thePlatandanyotherrecordedinstrument; (ii) therightsofOwners
andOccupantsinLimitedCommonElementsappurtenanttotheirrespectiveUnits; and (iii) theright
oftheAssociationtoestablishreasonableRulesandRegulationsgoverningtheuseoftheProperty.  

3.1.3 ExceptasotherwiseexpresslyprovidedintheGoverningDocuments, all
Maintenance, management, andoperationoftheCommonElementsshallbetheresponsibilityofthe
Association.  

3.1.4 CommonExpensesfortheMaintenance, managementandoperationofthe
CommonElementsshallbeassessedandcollectedfromtheOwnersinaccordancewithSection6.  

3.2 LimitedCommonElements.  TheLimitedCommonElementsarethosepartsofthe
CommonElementsdesignatedfortheexclusiveuseoftheOwnersandOccupantsoftheUnitstowhich
theyareallocated.  TherightstotheuseandenjoymentoftheLimitedCommonElementsare
automatically conveyedwiththeconveyanceofsuchUnits.  TheLimitedCommonElementsare
describedandallocatedtotheUnits, subjecttotherightsoftheAssociationassetforthinthis
Declaration, theBylawsortheAct, asfollows:  

3.2.1 ThoseareasanditemsdesignatedasLimitedCommonElementsonthePlatorby
theActareallocatedtotheUnitsasindicatedinthosedocuments.  

3.2.2 Chutes, flues, ducts, pipes, wires, conduitorotherutilityinstallation, bearing
walls, bearingcolumns, PartyWalls, oranyothercomponentsorfixtureslyingpartiallywithin
andpartiallyoutsidetheboundariesofaUnit, andservingonlythatUnit, areallocatedtotheUnit
whichtheyserve.  Anyportionofsuchinstallationsservingoraffectingthefunctionofthe
CommonElementsisapartoftheCommonElements, butisnotaLimitedCommonElement.  

3.2.3 AutilitiessystemservingonlyacertainUnitorUnits, andlocatedwhollyor
partiallyoutsidetheUnitÓsboundaries, isallocatedtotheUnitorUnitswhichitserves.  

SECTION4
ASSOCIATIONMEMBERSHIP: RIGHTSANDOBLIGATIONS

MembershipintheAssociation andtheallocationtoeachUnitofaportionofthevotesinthe
AssociationandaportionoftheCommonExpensesoftheAssociationshallbegovernedbythefollowing
provisions:  

4.1 Membership.  EachOwnershallbeaMemberoftheAssociationbyvirtueofUnit
ownership, andthemembershipshallbetransferredwiththeconveyanceoftheOwnerÓsinterestinsaid
Unit.  AnOwnerÓsmembershipshallterminatewhentheOwnerÓsownershipterminates.  Whenmore
thanonePersonisanOwnerofaUnit, allsuchPersonsshallbeMembersoftheAssociation, butmultiple
ownershipofaUnitshallnotincreasethevotingrightsallocatedtosuchUnitnorauthorizethedivision
ofthevotingrights.  MembershipintheAssociationismandatory.  

5



4.2 AllocationofVotingandCommonExpenses.  ThevotingpowerintheAssociationand
theCommonExpensesoftheAssociationareallocatedamongtheUnitsonthebasisofequality.   
Accordingly, eachUnitshallbeentitledtoone (1) voteintheAssociation, andeachUnitshallhavean
equalfractionalshareoftheCommonExpensesoftheAssociation, wherethenumeratorofthatfraction
isone (1) andthedenominator isthetotalnumberofUnitsontheProperty.  Certainexpensesmay,  
however, beassessedagainstacertainUnitorUnitspursuanttoSection6belowandasprovidedunder
Section515B.3-1151(e) oftheAct.    

4.3 AppurtenantRightsandObligations.  TheownershipofaUnitshallincludethevoting
rightsandCommonExpenseobligationsdescribedinSection4.2.  Saidrights, obligationsandinterests,  
andthetitletotheUnits, shallnotbeseparatedorconveyedseparately, andanyconveyance,  
encumbrance, judicialsaleorothertransferofanyallocatedinterestinaUnit, separatefromthetitleto
theUnit, shallbevoid.  Theallocationoftherights, obligationsandinterestsdescribedinthisSection
maynotbechanged, exceptinaccordancewiththeGoverningDocumentsandtheAct.  

4.4 AuthoritytoVote.  TheOwner, orsomenaturalpersondesignatedtoactasproxyon
behalfoftheOwner, andwhoneednotbeanOwner, maycastthevoteallocatedtosuchUnit, atmeetings
oftheAssociation.  However, iftherearemultipleOwnersofaUnit, onlyoneoftheOwnersorother
PersondesignatedpursuanttotheprovisionsoftheBylawsmaycastsuchvote.  Thevotingrightsof
OwnersaremorefullydescribedintheBylaws.  

SECTION5
ADMINISTRATION

TheadministrationandoperationoftheAssociationandtheProperty, includingbutnotlimitedto
theactsrequiredoftheAssociation, shallbegovernedbythefollowingprovisions:  

5.1 General.  TheoperationandadministrationoftheAssociationandthePropertyshallbe
governedbytheGoverningDocuments, theRulesandRegulations, andtheAct.  TheAssociationshall,  
subjecttotherightsoftheOwnerssetforthintheGoverningDocumentsandtheAct, beresponsiblefor
theoperation, managementandcontroloftheProperty.  TheAssociationshallhaveallpowersdescribed
intheGoverningDocuments, theAct, andthestatuteunderwhichtheAssociationisincorporated.  All
powerandauthorityoftheAssociationshallbevestedintheBoard, unlessactionorapprovalbythe
individualOwnersisspecificallyrequiredbytheGoverningDocumentsortheAct.  Allreferencestothe
AssociationshallmeantheAssociationactingthroughtheBoardunlessspecificallystatedtothecontrary.  

5.2 OperationalPurposes.  TheAssociationshalloperateandmanagethePropertyforthe
purposesof (i) administeringandenforcingthecovenants, restrictions, easements, liensandchargesset
forthintheGoverningDocumentsandtheRulesandRegulations, (ii) maintaining, repairingand
replacingthoseportionsofthePropertyforwhichitisresponsibleand (iii) preservingthevalueandthe
architecturalcharacteroftheProperty.  

5.3 BindingEffectofActions.  AllagreementsanddeterminationsmadebytheAssociation
inaccordancewiththepowersandvotingrightsestablishedbytheGoverningDocumentsortheActshall
bebindinguponallOwnersandOccupants, andtheirlessees, guests, heirs, personalrepresentatives,  
successorsandassigns, andallsecuredpartiesasdefinedintheAct.  

5.4 Bylaws.  TheAssociationshallhaveBylaws.  TheBylawsshallgoverntheoperationand
administrationoftheAssociation, andshallbebindingonallOwners, Occupantsandsecuredparties.  

6



5.5 Management.  TheBoardmaydelegatetoamanagerormanagingagentthemanagement
dutiesimposedupontheAssociationÓsofficersanddirectorsbytheGoverningDocumentsandtheAct.   
However, suchdelegationshallnotrelievetheofficersanddirectorsoftheultimateresponsibility forthe
performanceoftheirdutiesasprescribedbytheGoverningDocumentsandbylaw.  

5.6 RulesandRegulations.  TheBoardshallhaveexclusiveauthoritytoapproveand
implementsuchreasonableRulesandRegulationsasitdeemsnecessaryfromtimetotimeforthepurpose
ofoperatingandadministeringtheaffairsoftheAssociationandregulatingtheuseoftheProperty.  The
RulesandRegulationsshallnotbeinconsistentwiththeGoverningDocumentsortheActandshallnot
unreasonablydiscriminateasamongUnitsofdifferenttypesoruses.  Theinclusioninotherpartsofthe
GoverningDocumentsofauthoritytoapproveRulesandRegulationsshallbedeemedtobein
furtherance, andnotinlimitation, oftheauthoritygrantedbythisSection.  NeworamendedRulesand
RegulationsshallbeeffectiveonlyafterreasonablenoticethereofhasbeengiventotheOwners.  

5.7 AssociationAssets; SurplusFunds.  Allfundsandrealorpersonalpropertyacquiredby
theAssociationshallbeheldandusedforthebenefitoftheOwnersforthepurposesstatedinthe
GoverningDocuments.  SurplusfundsremainingafterpaymentoforprovisionforCommonExpenses
andreservesshallbecreditedagainstfutureassessmentsoraddedtoreserves, asdeterminedbythe
Board.  

SECTION6
ASSESSMENTS

6.1 General.  Assessments forCommonExpensesshallbedeterminedandassessedagainst
theUnitsbytheBoard, initsdiscretion; subjecttotherequirementsandproceduressetforthinthis
Section6andtherequirementsoftheBylaws.  AssessmentsforCommonExpensesshallincludeannual
AssessmentsunderSection6.2, andmayincludespecialAssessmentsunderSection6.3andlimited
allocationAssessmentsunderSection6.4.  AnnualandspecialAssessmentsshallbeallocatedamongthe
UnitspursuanttotheallocationssetforthinSection4.2above, subjecttothequalificationsprovidedin
thisSection.  

6.2 AnnualAssessments.  AnnualAssessmentsshallbeestablishedandleviedbytheBoard,  
subjecttothelimitationssetforthhereafter.  EachannualAssessmentshallcoveralloftheanticipated
CommonExpensesoftheAssociationforthatyear.  AnnualAssessmentsshallbepayableinthemanner
establishedbytheBoard.  AnnualAssessmentsshallprovidefor, amongotherthings, foranadequate
replacementreservefundfortheMaintenanceoftheCommonElementsandtheAssociationMaintenance
AreasandthosepartsoftheUnitsforwhichtheAssociationisresponsible.  

6.3 SpecialAssessments.  InadditiontoAnnualAssessments, andsubjecttothelimitations
setforthhereafter, theBoardmaylevyinanyAssessmentyearaspecialAssessmentagainstallUnitsand
allocatedequallyamongthempursuanttotheformulaprovidedinSection4.2above.  Special
Assessmentsshallbeusedforthepurposeofdefrayinginwholeorinpartthecostofanyunforeseenand
unbudgetedCommonExpensesandasfurtherprovidedinSection515B.3-1141(a) oftheAct.  

6.4 LimitedAssessments.  InadditiontoannualAssessmentsandspecialAssessments, the
Boardmay, atitsdiscretion, levyandallocatelimitedallocationAssessmentsamongonlycertainUnitsin
accordancewiththefollowingrequirementsandprocedures:  

6.4.1 AnyAssessmentassociatedwiththeMaintenanceofaLimitedCommonElement
shallbeassessedexclusivelyagainsttheUnitorUnitstowhichthatLimitedCommonElementis
assigned.  

7



6.4.2 AnyAssessmentorportionthereofbenefitingfewerthanalloftheUnitsmaybe
assessedexclusivelyagainsttheUnitorUnitsbenefited, andshallbeallocatedamongthoseUnits
i) equallyor (ii) basedupontheactualcostperUnit, asdeterminedbytheBoard.  

6.4.3 ThecostofinsurancemaintainedbytheAssociationwillgenerallybeassessed
onanequalbasis, butmaybeassessedinproportiontovalue, riskorcoverage, andthecostsof
utilities, ifanyassessedbytheAssociation, willgenerallybeassessedonanequalbasis, butmay
beassessedinproportiontousage, orotherreasonableallocation, allatthediscretionofthe
Board.  

6.4.4 ReasonableattorneysÓfeesandothercostsincurredbytheAssociationin
connectionwith (i) thecollectionofAssessments, or (ii) theenforcementoftheGoverning
Documents, theAct, ortheRulesandRegulations, againstanOwnerorOccupantortheirlessees
orguests, maybeassessedagainsttheOwnerÓsUnit.  

6.4.5 Fees, charges, latecharges, finesandinterestmaybeassessedpursuantto
Section515B.3-116(a) oftheActandasprovidedinSection12.  

6.4.6 AssessmentsleviedunderSection515B.3-1151(f) oftheActtopayajudgment
againsttheAssociationmaybeleviedonlyagainsttheUnitsexistingatthetimethejudgment
wasentered, inproportiontotheirCommonExpenseliabilities.  

6.4.7 IfanydamageorlosstotheCommonElementsoranotherUnitiscausedbythe
actoromissionofanyOwnerorOccupant, ortheirlesseesorguests, theAssociationmayassess
thecostsofrepairingthedamageorremedyingthelossorexclusivelyagainsttheOwnerÓsUnit
totheextentanyportionofthelossisnotcoveredbyinsurancemaintainedbytheAssociationor
bytheOwnerorOccupant; provided, thatanyinsurancedeductiblepayablebytheAssociation
maybeassessedagainsttheOwnerandtheUnitoftheOwnerresponsibleforthedamage.  In
additiontoanychargespayableundertheDeclaration, theAssociationmayalsoassesstheOwner
andtheOwnerÓsUnitforfinesthatmaybeapplicableundertheRulesandRegulations.   

6.4.8 IfanyAssessmentorinstallmentofanAssessmentbecomesmorethanthirty (30)  
dayspastdue, theAssociationmay, uponten (10) dayswrittennoticetotheOwner, declarethe
entireamountoftheAssessment immediatelydueandpayable.  

6.4.9 IfCommonExpenseliabilitiesarereallocatedforanypurposeauthorizedbythe
Act, Assessmentsandanyinstallment thereofnotyetdueshallberecalculatedinaccordancewith
thereallocatedCommonExpenseliabilities.  

6.4.10 AnAssessmentagainstfewerthanalloftheunitsmustbeleviedwithinthree (3)  
yearsaftertheeventorcircumstances formingthebasisfortheassessment, orshallbebarred.  

LimitedallocationAssessments leviedunderSection6.4may, attheBoardÓsdiscretion, beassessedas
partof, orinadditionto, otherAssessments leviedunderSection6.    

6.5 ReplacementReserves. TheAssociationshallincludeinitsannualbudgetsreplacement
reservesprojectedbytheBoardtobeadequate, togetherwithpastandfuturecontributionstoreplacement
reserves, tofundthereplacementofthosecomponentsoftheUnitsandCommonElements, the
Associationisobligatedtoreplacebyreasonofordinarywearandtearorobsolescence, subjecttothe
following:  

6.5.1 Theamountannuallybudgetedforreplacementreservesshallbeadequate,  
togetherwithpastandfuturecontributionstoreplacementreserves, toreplacethecomponentsas
determinedbasedupontheestimatedremainingusefullifeofeachcomponent; providedthat

8



portionsofreplacementreservesneednotbesegregatedforthereplacementofspecific
components.  

6.5.2 Theannualbudgetneednotincludereservesforthereplacementof (i)  
componentsthathavearemainingusefullifeofmorethanthirty (30) years, or (ii) components
whosereplacementwillbefundedbyalimitedAssessmentpursuanttoSection6.4, oraspecial
AssessmentpursuanttoSection6.3.  

6.5.3 Thereplacementreservefundsshallbemaintainedinanaccountoraccounts
separatefromoperatingfunds. Noneofthereplacementreservefundsshallbeusedorborrowed
fromtofundoperatingexpenses. TheAssociationmay, however, pledgethereplacementreserves
assecurityforaloantotheAssociation.  

6.5.4 Theadequacyofthereplacementreservesshallbereevaluatedatleasteverythird
yearafterrecordingofthisDeclaration.  

6.5.5 AfterterminationoftheDeclarantControlPeriod, andsubjecttoapprovalby: (i)  
theBoard, and (ii) Owners, otherthanDeclarantoritsaffiliates, ofUnitstowhichfifty-one
percent (51%) ofthevotesintheAssociationareallocated, theAssociationneednotannually
assessforreplacementreservestoreplacethosecomponentswhosereplacement isplannedtobe
paidbyspecialAssessmentpursuanttoSection6.3orbylimitedAssessmentpursuanttoSection
6.2. Theapprovalprovidedforintheprecedingsentenceshallbeeffectivefornomorethanthe
AssociationÓs currentandthreefollowingfiscalyears, subjecttomodificationorrenewalby
approvalof: (i) theBoard, and (ii) Owners, otherthanDeclarantoritsaffiliates, ofUnitstowhich
fifty-onepercent (51%) ofthevotesintheAssociationareallocated.  

SolongastheBoardactsingoodfaithindetermining, assessing, andcollectingareservebelievedbythe
BoardatthetimeitisassessedtobeadequatetocoverthisobligationoftheAssociation, theBoardshall
havenoresponsibility foritsdecisionif, withthepassingoftimeoroccurrenceofunforeseeableevents
beyondtheBoardÓscontrol, itshouldbedeterminedthattheamountofreservesisnotadequatetocover
thereplacementofthosepartsofthePropertywhichtheAssociationisobligatedtomaintain, repair, or
replace.  

6.6 WorkingCapitalFund.  Thereshallbeestablishedaworkingcapitalfundtomeet
unforeseenexpendituresortopurchaseadditionalequipmentorservicesduringtheAssociationÓs
beginningyearsofoperation.  TheBoardshallincludeineachsubsequentannualbudgetareasonable
amountofworkingcapital, basedupontheanticipatedneedsoftheAssociationfortheyearinquestion.   
UpontheinitialsaleofeachUnitbyDeclarant, thePersontowhomtheUnitisconveyedshallcontribute
aone-timepaymentequaltotwo (2) monthlyinstallmentsoftheestimatedannualAssessmentforthe
Unit, tobepaidatthetimeofclosingofsaleoftheUnit.  Thecontributionstothisfundareinadditionto
theregularmonthlyinstallmentsofAssessments.  FundsshallnotbeusedtodefrayanyofDeclarantÓs
expenses, reservecontributions, orconstructioncosts, ortomakeupanybudgetdeficitsduringthe
DeclarantControlPeriod.  However, upontheclosingoftheinitialsaleofaUnit, Declarantmay
reimburseitselffromfundscollectedfromthepurchaserattheclosingforanypriorcontributionsmade
byDeclaranttotheworkingcapitalfundwithrespecttosuchUnit.    

6.7 LiabilityofOwnersforAssessments.  TheobligationofanOwnertopayAssessments
shallcommenceatthelaterof (i) atthetimewhichtheOwneracquirestitletotheUnit, or (ii) thedue
dateofthefirstAssessment leviedagainsttheUnit, subjecttothealternativeAssessmentprogram
describedinSection6.8.  TheOwneratthetimeanAssessmentispayablewithrespecttotheUnitshall
bepersonallyliablefortheshareoftheCommonExpensesassessedagainstsuchUnit.  Suchliability

9



shallbejointandseveralwheretherearemultipleOwnersoftheUnit.  Theliabilityisabsoluteand
unconditional, subjectonlytoSection6.8.  NoOwnerisexemptfromliabilityforpaymentof
Assessmentsbyrightofset-off, bywaiverofuseorenjoymentofanypartoftheProperty, byabsence
fromorabandonmentoftheUnit, bywaiverofanyotherrights, orbyreasonofanyclaimagainstthe
Associationoritsofficers, directorsoragents, orfortheirfailuretofulfillanydutiesundertheGoverning
DocumentsortheAct.  TheAssociationmayinvokethecharges, sanctionsandremediessetforthin
Section12, inadditiontoanyremediesprovidedelsewhereintheGoverningDocuments, theRulesand
Regulations, orbylaw, forthepurposeofenforcingitsrightshereunder.  

6.8 DeclarantÓsLiabilityforAssessments.  PursuanttoSection515B.3-1151oftheAct, the
DeclarantÓsliabilityforAssessmentsshallbesubjecttothefollowinglimitations.  

6.8.1 Notwithstanding anythingtothecontraryintheGoverningDocuments, ifan
AssessmentforCommonExpenseshasnotbeenleviedbytheAssociation, theDeclarantshall
payallCommonExpenses, includingthepaymentofthereplacementreservecomponentofthe
CommonExpensesforallUnitsincompliancewith515B.3-1151(a)(1).  

6.8.2 Notwithstanding anythingtothecontraryintheGoverningDocuments, ifan
AssessmentforCommonExpenseshasbeenleviedbytheAssociation, Declarantmayelectthat
itsliabilityforsuchAssessment, andthecorrespondingAssessment lienagainsttheUnitsowned
bytheDeclarant, belimitedto:  

6.8.2.1 Payingwhendueanamountequaltothefullshareofthereplacement
reservesallocatedtoUnitsownedbytheDeclarant, assetforthintheAssociationÓs
budget, asprovidedinSection515B.3-1151(a)(2)(iv) oftheAct; and

6.8.2.2 PayingwhendueallaccruedexpensesoftheAssociationinexcessofthe
aggregateAssessmentspayablewithrespecttotheUnitsownedbyPersonsotherthanthe
Declarant.  

However, theAlternateCommonExpenseplandescribedaboveshallnotaffect
DeclarantÓsobligationtomakeupanyoperatingdeficitpursuanttoSection515B3.-1151(a)(2)(v)  
oftheAct.  

6.8.3 TheDeclarantÓsreducedAssessmentobligationshallapplytoeachUnitowned
byDeclarantatthetimethatanyAssessmentisleviedagainsttheUnitandshallterminateupon
terminationoftheDeclarantControlPeriodunlessterminatedearlierpursuanttoSection515B.3- 
1151(a)(2)(iii) oftheAct.  

6.9 AssessmentLien.  TheAssociationhasalienonaUnitforanyAssessment leviedagainst
thatUnitfromthetimetheAssessmentbecomesdue.  IfanAssessment ispayableininstallments, thefull
amountoftheAssessmentisalienfromthetimethefirstinstallmentthereofbecomesdue.  Fees, charges,  
latecharges, finesandinterestchargesimposedbytheAssociationpursuanttoSection515B.3- 
102(a)(10), (11), and (12) oftheActareliens, andareenforceableasAssessments, underthisSection6.   
RecordingofthisDeclarationconstitutesrecordnoticeandperfectionofanylienunderSection6, andno
furtherrecordationofanynoticeoforclaimforthelienisrequired.  Thereleaseofthelienshallnot
releasetheOwnerfrompersonalliabilityforalloutstandingAssessmentsdueandowing, unlessagreedto
inwritingbytheAssociation.  

6.10 ForeclosureofLien; Remedies.  AlienforAssessmentsmaybeforeclosedagainstaUnit
underthelawsoftheStateofMinnesota (i) byactionor (ii) byadvertisement inalikemannerasa
mortgagecontainingapowerofsale.  TheAssociation, oritsauthorizedrepresentative, shallhavethe
powertobidinattheforeclosuresaleandtoacquire, hold, lease, mortgageandconveyanyUnitso

10



acquired.  TheOwnerandanyotherPersonclaiminganinteresttotheUnit, bytheacceptanceorassertion
ofanyinterestintheUnit, grantstotheAssociationapowerofsaleandfullauthoritytoaccomplishthe
foreclosure.  TheAssociationshall, inadditiontoitsotherremedies, havetherighttopursueanyother
remedyatlaworinequityagainsttheOwnerwhofailstopayanyAssessmentorchargeorlatecharge
againsttheUnit.  

6.11LienPriority; Foreclosure.  AlienforAssessments ispriortoallotherliensor
encumbrancesonaUnitexcept (i) liensandencumbrances recordedbeforetheDeclaration; (ii) anyfirst
mortgageontheUnit; and (iii) liensforrealestatetaxesandothergovernmentalAssessmentsorcharges
againsttheUnit.  Notwithstanding theforegoing, if (1) afirstmortgageonaUnitisforeclosed, (2) the
firstmortgagewasrecordedonorafterthedateofrecordingofthisDeclaration, and (3) noOwner
redeemsduringtheOwnerÓsperiodofredemptionprovidedbyMinnesotaStatutes, Chapters580, 581or
582, thentheholderofthesheriffÓscertificateofsalefromtheforeclosureofthefirstmortgageshalltake
titletotheUnitsubjecttounpaidAssessmentsforCommonExpensesleviedpursuanttothisSection6
andSections515B.3-1151(a), (e)(1-3), (f) and (i) oftheActwhichbecamedue, withoutacceleration,  
duringthesix (6) monthsimmediatelyprecedingthefirstdayfollowingtheendoftheOwnerÓsperiodof
redemption.  

6.12 VoluntaryConveyances; StatementofAssessments.  InavoluntaryconveyanceofaUnit
thebuyershallnotbepersonallyliableforanyunpaidAssessmentsandotherchargesmadebythe
AssociationagainstthesellerorsellerÓsUnitpriortothetimeofconveyancetothebuyer, unless
expresslyassumedbythebuyer.  However, thelienofsuchAssessmentshallremainagainsttheUnit
untilreleased.  Anysellerorbuyershallbeentitledtoastatement, inrecordableform, fromthe
AssociationsettingforththeamountoftheunpaidAssessmentsagainsttheUnit, includingall
AssessmentspayableintheAssociationÓscurrentfiscalyear, whichstatementshallbebindingonthe
Association, sellerandbuyer.  

SECTION7
RESTRICTIONS ONUSEOFPROPERTY

AllOwnersandOccupants, andallsecuredparties, bytheiracceptanceorassertionofaninterest
intheProperty, orbytheiroccupancyofaUnit, covenantandagreethat, inadditiontoanyother
restrictionswhichmaybeimposedbytheActortheGoverningDocuments, theoccupancy, use,  
operation, alienationandconveyanceofthePropertyshallbesubjecttothefollowingrestrictions:  

7.1 General.  ThePropertyshallbeowned, conveyed, encumbered, leased, usedand
occupiedsubjecttotheGoverningDocumentsandtheAct, asamendedfromtimetotime.  Allcovenants,  
restrictionsandobligationssetforthintheGoverningDocumentsareinfurtheranceofaplanforthe
Property, andshallrunwiththePropertyandbeaburdenandbenefittoallOwnersandOccupantsandto
anyotherPersonacquiringorowninganinterestintheProperty, theheirs, personalrepresentatives,  
successorsandassigns.  

7.2 SubdivisionProhibited.  ExceptasprovidedinSection15, noUnitoranypartofthe
CommonElementsmaybesubdividedorpartitionedwithoutthepriorwrittenapprovalofallOwnersand
allEligibleMortgagees, andinfullcompliancewithSection515B.2-112oftheAct.  

7.3 ResidentialUse.  TheUnitsshallbeusedbyOwnersandOccupantsandtheirguests
exclusively forprivate, singlefamilyresidentialpurposes, andnotfortransient, hotel, commercial,  
businessorothernon-residentialpurposes, exceptasprovidedinSection7.4.  

11



7.4 BusinessUseRestricted.  Nobusiness, trade, occupationorprofessionofanykind,  
whethercarriedonforprofitorotherwise, shallbeconducted, maintainedorpermittedinanyUnit, except
asfollows:  

7.4.1 AnOwnerorOccupantresidinginaUnitmaymaintainahomeoccupationin
suchUnitandhandlemattersrelatingtosuchhomeoccupationbytelecommunications or
correspondencetherefrom; providedthatsuchuses (i) areincidentaltotheresidentialuse; (ii) do
notinvolvephysicalalterationoftheUnitvisiblefromtheexterior; (iii) areincompliancewith
allgovernmental laws, ordinancesandregulations; and (iv) donotinvolveanyobservable
businessactivitysuchassigns, advertisingdisplays, orregulardeliveries, pedestriantrafficor
vehiculartraffictoorfromtheUnitbycustomers, vendorsoremployees.  

7.4.2 TheAssociationmay, butisnotobligatedto, maintainofficesonthePropertyfor
managementandrelatedpurposes.  

7.4.3 Declarantmaymaintainoffices, modelUnits, salesfacilitiesandotherbusiness
facilitiesonthePropertyinconnectionwiththeexerciseofitsSpecialDeclarantRights.  

7.5 RestrictionsonRentingorLeasingUnits.  TheUnitsareprimarilyintendedtobeOwner- 
occupied. WhileitisrecognizedthatOwnersmaywishtoleasetheirUnitsormaybeinvoluntarily
subjecttocircumstances thatrequirethemtoleasetheirUnits, itisnonethelessdeemedtobeinthebest
interestsoftheProperty, theAssociationandtheOwnersthattherentingorleasingofUnitstothird- 
partiesishighlydiscouragedandshallbestrictlyprohibitedexceptasfollows:  

7.5.1 ForpurposesofthisSection, aÐNon-OwnerOccupiedUnitÑisaUnitthatis
leased, rented, orisotherwiseoccupiedasaresidencebyanaturalpersonwhoisnottheOwner
oftheUnit, orisownedbyanentity (suchasanLLC, corporation, LLP, LLLPortrust), and
occupiedbysomeoneotherthanthepersonholdingmajoritycontrolofthatentity. Non-Owner
OccupiedUnitsarenotallowed, regardlessofwhetherconsiderationispaidinconnectionwith
theoccupancy, exceptasotherwiseprovidedherein.  

7.5.2 Nomorethanone (1) UnitmaybeaNon-OwnerOccupiedUnitatanyonetime
theÐRentalCapÑ). TheNon-OwnerOccupiedUnitshallbeeligibleforleasingandis

hereinafterreferredtoasaÐLeasableUnitÑorhavingÐLeasableUnitStatus.ÑOncetheRental
Capisreached, noadditionalNon-OwnerOccupiedUnitsshallbealloweduntiltheNon-Owner
OccupiedUnitÓsstatusasaLeasableUnitterminatesinaccordancewiththeprovisionsofSection
7.5.4belowandtheRentalCapisnolongermet.  

7.5.3 NotwithstandingtheRentalCap, thefollowingUnitsshallbeexemptfromthe
RentalCapandsuchUnitsshallhaveLeasableUnitStatusunderthedescribedcircumstances: (i)  
aUnitownedbyaninstitutional lenderbyreasonofforeclosureordeedinlieuofforeclosure
fromandafterthedatewhenthelenderobtainstitletotheUnit; providedthattheUnitisbeing
activelymarketedandislistedforsale; (ii) aUnitownedbytheAssociation; (iii) aUnitowned
byDeclarant; and (iv) aUnitoccupiedbymembers(s) oftheimmediatefamilyoftheOwner (a
parent, stepparent, child, stepchild, grandparent, grandchild, orsiblingoftheOwner), by
roommatesresidingwiththeOwner, byserviceproviderswhoprovideservicesofanature
involvingovernightstays (e.g., housesitters, dogsitters, homehealthcareworkersandthelike),  
orbybonafideguestsoftheOwnersolongastheUnitisbeingsimultaneously occupiedbythe
Owner..  

7.5.4 ANon-OwnerOccupiedUnitÓsstatusasaLeasableUnitshallautomatically
terminateattheearliestofthefollowingevents: (i) theUnitisconveyedtoanewOwner, (ii) the

12



UnitbecomesOwner-occupied, or (iii) thecurrentleaseexpiresorterminates. TheBoardshall
maintainalistofUnitshavingLeasableUnitStatusandshallpromptlyrespondtoinquiriesasto
whetheraNon-OwnerOccupiedUnitisavailableforLeasableUnitStatussubjecttotheRental
Cap. Insuchevent, theBoardwillacceptapplicationsinaccordancewiththeproceduressetforth
inSection7.5.5belowonafirstcome, firstservedbasisuntilsuchtimeasanapplicationhas
beenapprovedandtheRentalCaphasbeenreached.  

7.5.5 AnyOwnerwhowishestoleasetheOwnerÓsUnitasaNon-OwnerOccupied
UnitshallsubmittotheBoardanapplicationwhichshallincludethefollowing: (i) alessee
informationformapprovedbytheBoard; (ii) acopyofaproposedleaseagreementconforming
withtherequirementsofSection7.5.7below; (iii) anadministrative feereasonablydeterminedby
theBoardtocoverthecostofreviewingandprocessingtheapplication; and (iv) suchother
relevantinformationastheBoardmayreasonablyrequestsubjecttoapplicablelaw.  

7.5.6 FollowingproperapplicationbytheOwner, theBoardshallpromptlydetermine
whethertheOwnerÓsUnitmayqualifyasaNon-OwnerOccupiedUnitforLeasableUnitStatus
undertheRentalCapandshallnotifysaidOwnerinwritingiftheapplicationhasbeenapproved.  
Ifapproved, theOwnerandtheproposedlesseeidentifiedintheapplicationmustenterintoa
writtenleaseonmateriallysimilartermsandformcontainedintheOwnerÓsapprovedapplication
andconformingwiththerequirementsofthisSection7.5, andprovideacopyofthesametothe
Boardwithinthirty (30) calendardaysafterreceiptofsuchapprovalnotice. Ifaleaseisnot
enteredintoorafully-executedcopyofthesameisnotprovidedtotheBoardwithinsuchtime
period, theOwnerÓsapplicationshallbedeemeddeniedandanewapplicationmustbesubmitted
totheBoard.  

7.5.7 Anypermittedleaseauthorizedhereundershallcomplywithapplicablelawandbe
subjecttoreasonableregulationbytheAssociationandthefollowingconditions: (i) noUnitshall
beleasedorotherwiseusedforhotelortransientpurposes, including, withoutlimitation, Airbnb,  
VRBOandthelike; (ii) aUnitmustbeleasedinitsentiretyandmaynotbesubleased; (iii) the
leaseshallbeinwritingonsuchformorcontainingsuchaddendumastheAssociationmay
provide; (iv) thetermoftheleaseshallnotexceedtwelve (12) monthsinduration, shallnotbe
subjecttoextensiontheparties, oreitherofthem, andshallbesubjecttosuchotherterm
limitationsorregulationsastheRulesandRegulationsmayimpose; (v) theleaseshallnotcontain
anautomaticrenewalprovision; and (vi) theleaseshallprovidethatitissubordinateandsubject
totheGoverningDocuments, theRulesandRegulationsandtheAct, andthatanyfailureofthe
lesseetocomplywiththetermsofsuchdocumentsshallbeadefaultunderthelease. The
AssociationmayimposesuchreasonableRulesandRegulationsasmaybenecessaryto
implementnon-discriminatoryproceduresfortheleasingofUnits, consistentwiththisSection
andapplicablelaw, includingbutnotlimitedto (x) arequirementforaspecificleaseformor
leaseaddendumtobeattachedtoeachUnitleasetoassurethattherightsandauthorityofthe
AssociationandOwnersandOccupantsarerecognized, and (y) arequirementforthescreening
oflesseesthroughalicensedscreeningorganization; providedthatsuchscreeningshallnot
violatefederal, stateorlocaldiscrimination laws.  

7.6 Parking.  ParkingontheProperty, theuseofdrivewaysandgarageareaswithinUnitsand
theaccessroadandparkingstallswithintheCommonElements, andthetypesofvehiclesandpersonal
propertypermittedthereonshallberegulatedbytheAssociationthroughRulesandRegulationsandin
accordancewithapplicablelaw, includingwithoutlimitationtherightoftheAssociationtotowillegally
parkedvehiclesortoremoveunauthorizedpersonalproperty.  Nogaragestallorgaragespaceattachedto
aUnitshallbeconvertedtootherusesorusedforstorageorotherpurposeswhichwouldpreventthe
parkingoftwo (2) automobilesinsaidgarage.  

13



7.7 Animals.  Domestichousepets, suchasdogs, cats, fish, birdsandthelikearepermitted,  
subjecttoRulesandRegulationsadoptedbytheBoardandapplicablelaw, includingbutnotlimitedto
theregulationsandlicensingrequirementssetforthinTitle700oftheCodeofOrdinancesoftheCityof
Shorewood, asamended (theÐCityCodeÑ). Notwithstanding theforegoing, thefollowingregulations
shallapply:  

i) noanimalmaybebred, keptormaintainedforbusinessorcommercialpurposes
anywhereontheProperty;   

ii) apetmustbehousedandmaintainedexclusivelywithintheOwnerÓsDwelling,  
exceptwhenunderthedirectcontroloftheOwnerorotherresponsibleperson; outdoorpet
houses, shelters, orenclosuresofanytypeareprohibitedontheProperty, andnopetmaybeleft
unattendedoutdoorsforanyperiodoftimeorforanyreason;   

iii)  UnitOwnersshallbeobligatedtocollectanddisposeofinaproperreceptaclewithin
theOwnerÓsUnitsuchsolidpetwasteasmaybeleftontheProperty, andshallberesponsible to
payforanydamagetothePropertycausedbypetsforwhichtheyareresponsible, includingbut
notlimitedtodamagetoturforlandscaping featurescausedbysuchpetÓsbehaviororwaste.   

iv) anyrepeatedorprolongeddisturbancebyapet, suchasnoise, odor, wasteor
threateningornuisanceactivity, willbecauseforimpositionofafineontheUnitOwners
housingthepetand/ortheremovaloftheoffendingpetfromtheProperty.  Decisionsbythe
Boardconcerningtheremovalofapetshall, uponwrittenrequestoftheaffectedOwner, be
submittedtoavoteoftheOwnersatameetingoftheAssociationscheduledforsuchpurpose,  
providedthattheOwnerrequestingthemeetingshallpaytheAssociationforthecostofcalling
andholdingsuchmeeting.    

v) ÐDangerousAnimalsÑandÐPotentiallyDangerousAnimalsÑdefinedunderChapter
701.16oftheCityCodeorequivalentstatestatute, areprohibitedandshallnotbepermittedupon
thePropertyunderanycircumstances;  

vi) UnitOwnersshallberesponsibleforanypersonalinjury, propertyloss, ordamageto
thePropertycausedbytheirpet, andshallindemnify, defend, andholdharmlesstheAssociation,  
itsofficersanddirectors, andotherOwnersandOccupantsagainstallloss, claims, injury, or
liabilityarisingoutofanyactofsuchpet; and

vii) neithertheGoverningDocumentsnorRules & Regulationsshallprohibitthe
keepingofaqualifiedÐserviceanimalÑorotherassistanceanimalinviolationofapplicablelaw,  
providedthattheserviceorassistanceanimalshallbesubjecttothesamebehavioralrules
applicabletootherpets.  

7.8 QuietEnjoyment; InterferenceProhibited.  AllOwnersandOccupantsandtheirguests
shallhavearightofquietenjoyment intheirrespectiveUnits.  ThePropertyshallbeoccupiedandusedin
suchamanneraswillnotcauseanuisance, norundulyrestrict, interferewith, orimpedetheuseandquiet
enjoymentofthePropertybyotherOwnersandOccupantsandtheirguests.  

7.9 CompliancewithLaw.  NouseshallbemadeofthePropertywhichwouldviolateany
then-existingmunicipalcodesorordinances, orstateorfederallaws, norshallanyactorusebepermitted
whichcouldcausewasteontheProperty, causeamaterialincreaseininsuranceratesontheProperty, or
otherwisecauseanyunusualliability, healthorsafetyrisk, orexpense, fortheAssociationoranyOwner
orOccupant.  

14



7.10 ArchitecturalApproval.  ExceptasexpresslypermittedbythisSection7.10, andexcept
forAlterationsmadebyDeclarantinconsiderationofitsinitialsaleofaUnit, nochanges, modifications,  
improvements, repairsorreplacementsofanytype, temporaryorpermanent, structural, aestheticor
otherwise, includingbutnotlimitedto, anystructure, building, addition, deck, balcony, awning, patio,  
fence, wall, enclosure, window, exteriordoor, solarpanel, exteriorlighting, securitycamera, sign, antenna
orsignaltransmissiondevice, display, decoration, colorchange, plantingsincludingtrees, beds, and
shrubbery, beddingandgroundcover, materialtopographical, landscapingorhardscapingchange, norany
otherexteriorimprovementtooralterationofanyDwelling, Building, AssociationMaintenanceArea, or
anypartofaUnitwhichisvisiblefromtheexterioroftheDwelling (collectivelyreferredtoas
ÐAlterationsÑ), shallbecommenced, made, erected, ormaintainedinaUnitunlessanduntiltheplansand
specificationsshowingthenature, kind, shape, dimensions, color, materialsandlocationsofsaid
AlterationsshallhavebeenapprovedinwritingbytheBoardoranarchitectural reviewcommittee
appointedbyit.  Notwithstanding theforegoing, DeclarantÓspriorwrittenconsentshallalsoberequired
forAlterationsuntilDeclarantnolongerownsanyunsoldUnit.    

7.10.1. TheBoardmayappoint, superviseanddissolveanarchitecturalcontrol
committee, andspecificallydelegatetoitpartorallofthefunctionswhichtheBoardexercises
underthisSection, inwhichcasereferencestotheBoardshallrefertothearchitecturalcontrol
committeewhereappropriate.  AfileoftheBoardandarchitecturalcontrolcommitteeresolutions
approvingallAlterationsshallbemaintainedpermanentlyaspartoftheAssociationÓsrecords.  

7.10.2. TheBoardhasauthoritytoestablishapplicationandreviewproceduresand
criteriaforapprovalofproposedAlterations, andshallbethesolejudgeofwhethersuchcriteria
aresatisfied, subjecttoapplicablebuildingandzoningcodesandsuchothergovernmental
restrictionsasmayaffecttheProperty.    

7.10.3. ThefollowingproceduresshallgovernrequestsforAlterationshereunder:  

i)  Awrittenprojectdescription, detailedplansandspecifications, andrelated
informationasrequestedbytheBoardandsupplementedbytheOwnerfromtime
totime, informandcontentacceptabletotheBoard, shallbesubmittedtothe
Boardatleastsixty (60) dayspriortotheprojectedcommencementof
construction.  NoAlterationsshallbecommencedpriortowrittenapprovalfrom
theBoard.  

ii)  TheBoardshallgivetheOwnerwrittennoticeofapprovalordisapprovalof
theproposedAlterationswithinsixty (60) daysaftertheBoardÓsreceiptofall
applicationmaterialsandsupplementsthereto. If, duringsaidsixty (60)Îday
period:  

a) theBoardprovidesnoticeofdisapproval, thentheproposed
Alterationrequestshallbedeemeddenied. Or;  

b)  theBoardfailstoprovidenoticeofapprovalordisapproval, thenthe
AlterationrequestshallbedeemeddeniedandtheproposedAlterationsshallnot
beconstructedupontheUnit, providedhoweverthattheOwnershallhavea
periodoften (10) daysfollowingexpirationofsaidsixty (60)-dayperiodto: (1)  
requestawrittenresponsefromtheBoardarticulatingitsbasisfordenialofthe
Application, or (2) resubmittheAlterationrequesttotheBoardforre- 
consideration.  IftheOwnerfailstorequestOr;  

15



c)  theBoarddeliversnoticeofapprovalandconditionsthereto, ifany,  
thentheOwner, Association, anddesignatedcontractor, oranyofthem, shall
promptlyproceedtoobtainallpermits, approvals, andconsentsasmaybe
requiredtolocateandmaintaintheapprovedAlterationsupontheUnit, and,  
withintwelve (12) monthsorfewerfromthedatetheBoardapprovedthe
Alterations, tocausetheconstructionandcertifiedcompletionofallsuch
Alterationsinconformancewiththeapprovedplansandspecificationsandsuch
conditionstoapprovalasmaybeimposedtherein.   

7.10.4. CriteriaforapprovalofAlterationsshallincludeandrequire, ataminimum: (i)  
substantialuniformityofcolor, size, location, typeanddesigninrelationtoexisting
improvementsandtopography; (ii) comparableorbetterqualityofmaterialsasusedinexisting
improvements; (iii) easeofMaintenance; (iv) adequateprotectionoftheProperty, the
Association, OwnersandOccupantsfromliabilityandliensarisingoutoftheproposed
Alterations, whichmayincludearequirementforconstructionoftheproposedAlterationsbythe
AssociationorsuchcontractorastheBoardmaydesignateorapprove; and (v) compliancewith
applicablelawsandsuchreasonableconditionsastheBoardmayimposeinitsdiscretion.  

7.10.5. ThepurposeoftherequirementsestablishedbytheBoardshallbe (i) topreserve
thearchitecturalstyleandthequalityandthevalueoftheProperty, and (ii) toprotectthe
AssociationandtheOwnersfromundueliabilityarisingoutoftheAlterationsoranyconstruction
activityinconnectiontherewith.  

7.10.6. AlterationsnecessaryfortheuseandenjoymentofaUnitasprovidedunder
Section515B.2-113(b) oftheActshallbeapproved, providedhoweverthatsuchAlterationsshall
besubjecttothesameapplicationandreviewproceduresapplicabletootherAlterationsas
providedherein.  

7.10.7. NoAlterationshallencroachuponanotherUnitortheCommonElements,  
providedhoweverthatapprovalofsuchAlterationunderthisSection7.10shallcreatean
appurtenanteasementforsuchencroachmentpursuanttoSection11.4belowandinthemanner
providedfortherein.  

7.10.8. Notwithstanding anythingtothecontraryinthisSection7.10andsubjecttothe
termsofSubsection7.10.9(iv) below, improvementsconstructedwithintheInteriorCourtyard
AreaofaDwellingbyoratthebehestoftheUnitOwnershallnotbedeemedAlterationsfor
purposesofthisSection7.    

7.10.9. ExceptforAlterationsconstructedbytheAssociation: (i) theOwnerofaUnit
uponwhichAlterationsareconstructedshallbesolelyresponsiblefortheconstructionstandards
andspecificationsrelatingtosuchAlterations, andfortheconstructionwork; (ii) theOwner, and
nottheAssociation, isresponsiblefordeterminingwhethersuchAlterationsareincompliance
withapplicablebuildingandzoninglawsandsuchothergovernmental restrictionsasmayaffect
theProperty; (iii) theOwnershallholdharmless, indemnifyanddefendtheAssociation, its
officersanddirectors, fromandagainstanyexpenses, claims, damages, lossesorotherliabilities,  
includingwithoutlimitationattorneysÓfeesandcostsoflitigation, arisingoutof (a) any
Alterationwhichviolatesanygovernmental laws, codes, ordinancesorregulations; (b) any
AlterationwhichresultsintheattachmentorencumbranceofmechanicsÓormaterialprovidersÓ
liensagainstthePropertyoranypartofit; (c) theinadequacyofspecificationsforconstructionof
theAlterations; or (d) defectsintheconstructionoftheAlterations; and (iv) notwithstanding
anythingtothecontraryinthisSection7, thedutiesandindemnificationobligationspertainingto
Alterationssetforthinclauses (i) Î (iii) ofthisSubsection7.10.9shallapplyinthesamemanner

16



toimprovementsconstructedwithintheInteriorCourtyardAreaofaUnitbyoratthebehestof
theUnitOwner.  

7.11 TimeSharesProhibited.  Thetimeshareformofownership, oranycomparableformof
lease, occupancyrightsorownershipwhichhastheeffectofdividingtheownershiporoccupancyofa
Unitintoseparatetimeperiods, isprohibited.  

7.12 EmergencyAccesstoUnits.  Incaseofemergency, allUnitsaresubjecttoentry, without
noticeandatanytime, byanofficerormemberoftheBoard, bytheAssociationÓsmanagementagentsor
anypublicsafetypersonnel.  EntryisalsoauthorizedforMaintenancepurposesunderSections8and11
andforenforcementpurposesunderSection12.  

SECTION8
MAINTENANCEANDREPAIR

8.1 MaintenancebyAssociation. TheAssociationshallprovideforallMaintenanceofthe
CommonElementsandAssociationMaintenanceAreaswithintheProperty, andforperformanceofall
maintenanceobligationsassignedtotheAssociationinthisDeclarationortheRulesandRegulations, or
otherwisearisingundercertainuseagreements, declarations, andrestrictioninstrumentsaffectingthe
Property, includingbutnotlimitedtothePublicRestrictions, StormwaterManagementAgreement,  
DevelopmentAgreement, referencedinSection11below.   

Forthepurposeofpreservingthearchitecturalcharacter, quality, anduniformstandardsforappearanceof
theProperty, theAssociationshallprovidefor:  

i) ExteriorMaintenanceoftheDwellingwithineachUnit, exclusiveofthe
InteriorCourtyardAreawithinsaidDwelling.  Forpurposesofillustration,  
theprovidedMaintenanceshallinclude, withrespecttotheexteriorportionof
eachDwellingdesignatedasanAssociationMaintenanceArea, Maintenance
of: exteriorroofingandroofsystems, roofmembranes, soffits, fascia, gutters,  
downspouts, exteriorsiding, buildingsurfacesandfinishes, decorative
masonrywalls, privacywalls, exteriorstairs, decksandrailings, frontwalk
entrancegates (excludinghardware), entrydoors (excludinghardware),  
garagedoors (excludinghardwareandmechanicalcomponents), air
conditioningequipment, glassandwindowframes, foundations, foundation
wallsandfoundationmembranes, structuralmembers, housenumbers,  
mailboxes, andpainting.  

ii) Maintenanceofexteriorgreenspaceandsoftscapeareaswithinthoseportions
ofUnitsdesignatedasAssociationMaintenanceAreas, includingwatering,  
mowing, andseasonal lawnandlandscapingcareofyards, turfareas,  
landscapingandtopographical features, groundcover, plantings, beds, bed
edgingandbedcover, annualandperennialbedsandblooms, andtreesand
shrubbery.  

iii) MaintenanceandsnowremovalfromtheDrivewayAreaandfrontwalkway
areaforeachrespectiveUnit, andsnowremovalfromtheaccessdriveand
parkingareaswithintheCommonElements.   

TheAssociationshallhaveeasementsdescribedinSection11andelsewhereinthisDeclarationandin

17



theActtofacilitateperformanceitsobligationsunderthisSection8.  TheAssociationshallhavetheright
toenterintoajointmaintenancecontractwithoneormorepartiesoradjoiningpropertyownersiftheBoard
determinesdoingsoisinthebestinterestsoftheAssociation, Owners, andProperty.   

8.2 OptionalMaintenancebyAssociation.  InadditiontotheMaintenancedescribedin
Section8.1, theAssociationmay, withtheapprovalofamajorityofvotescastinpersonorbyproxyata
meetingcalledforsuchpurposes, undertaketoprovideadditionalMaintenanceobligationstotheUnitsor
Buildings.  Notwithstanding, theAssociationmay, uponreasonablenotice, electtoperformMaintenance
ofmechanical, structural, orothercomponentswithinaUnitorDwelling, includingthesewer, wateror
utilitylinesbetweenaDwellingandthepointofconnectiontothepublicmains, andassessthecosts
againsttheUnit, ifthefailureorimpairmentofthecomponentcouldresultindamagetotheCommon
ElementsorotherUnitsortheDwellingstherein, impairthefunctionofanycommonoperatingsystem,  
orcreateahealthorsafetyhazard.  Notwithstanding anythingtothecontraryinthisDeclaration, inthe
eventtheAssociationundertakesadditionalMaintenanceresponsibilities pursuanttothisSection, the
definitionofÐAssociationMaintenanceAreasÑshall, withoutfurtheraction, beautomaticallyamendedto
includethesubjectofsuchadditionalMaintenance.  

8.3 MaintenancebyOwner.  ExceptfortheexteriorMaintenanceofDwellingsrequiredtobe
providedbytheAssociationunderSection8.1or8.2andasotherwiseprovidedinthisDeclaration, all
MaintenanceofDwellings, specifically includingMaintenanceoftheInteriorCourtyardAreaofsuch
Dwelling, shallbethesoleresponsibilityandexpenseoftheUnitOwnerthereof. However, theOwners
andOccupantsshallhaveadutytopromptlynotifytheAssociationofdefectsinordamagetothoseparts
ofthePropertywhichtheAssociationisobligatedtomaintain. TheAssociationmayrequirethatany
exteriorMaintenancetobeperformedbytheOwnerbeaccomplishedpursuanttospecificuniformcriteria
establishedbytheAssociation, initsreasonablediscretion. TheAssociationmayalsoundertakeany
exteriorMaintenancewhichtheresponsibleOwnerfailstoorimproperlyperforms, andchargeandassess
theUnitforthecostthereof. SuchcostshallbeapersonalobligationoftheOwnerandalienagainstthe
Owner'sUnit.  

8.4 PreventativeMaintenancePlan.  TheBoardshallprepareorcausetobeprepared, and
thereaftertheAssociationshallabideby, awrittenPreventativeMaintenancePlanfortheCommon
Elements, whichshallbeupdatedandamendedfromtimetotime.  AcopyofthePreventative
MaintenancePlanshallbeprovidedtoallOwners.  

8.5 DamageCausedByOwner.  Notwithstandinganyprovisiontothecontraryinthis
Section, if, inthejudgmentoftheAssociation, theneedforMaintenanceofanypartofthePropertyis
causedbythewillfulornegligentactoromissionofanOwnerorOccupant, ortheirguests, orbya
conditioninaUnitwhichtheOwnerorOccupanthaswillfullyornegligentlyallowedtoexist, the
Associationmaycausesuchdamageorconditiontoberepairedorcorrected (andentertheyardarea
ofuponanyUnittodoso), andthecostthereofmaybechargedandassessedagainsttheUnitofthe
Ownerresponsibleforthedamage. SuchcostshallbeapersonalobligationoftheOwnerandassessedas
alienagainsttheOwner'sUnit.   

8.6 EasementsforMaintenance, RepairandReplacement.  EachUnitandtheCommon
ElementsandLimitedCommonElementsaresubjecttonon-exclusiveappurtenanteasementsinfavorof
theAssociationforMaintenanceandreconstructionoftheUnits, CommonElements, LimitedCommon
Elements, andAssociationMaintenanceAreasassetforthinSection11.6below.  

8.7 PartyWalls.  ThefollowingshallapplywithrespecttoPartyWalls:  

18



8.7.1 RepairandMaintenance. TheOwnersoftheUnitswhichshareaPartyWallshall
beresponsiblefortheMaintenanceofsaidPartyWallinequalproportions; provided (i) thatany
MaintenancenecessaryduetotheactsoromissionsofacertainOwnerorOccupantsharing
suchPartyWallshallbepaidforbysuchOwner, and (ii) thattheAssociationmaycontractfor
andsupervisetherepairofdamagecausedbyanOwnerorOccupantandassesstheOwnersfor
theirrespectivesharesofthecosttotheextentnotcoveredbyinsurance. Suchcostshallbea
personalobligationoftheOwnerandalienagainsttheOwner'sUnits).  

8.7.2 DestructionbyFireorOtherCasualty. IfaPartyWallisdestroyedordamaged
byfireorothercasualty, anyOwnerwhohasuseofthePartyWallmay, withtheconsentofthe
Association, restoreit, andtheotherOwnershallpromptlyreimbursetheOwnerwhorestored
thePartyWallforhisorhershareofthecostofrestoration thereof; provided, however, thatthe
costofrestorationresultingfromdestructionorothercasualtyresultingfromtheactsor
omissionsofcertainOwnersshallbethefinancialresponsibilityofsuchOwners, andthe
AssociationmayassesstheresponsibleOwnersfortheirshareofthecosts, withoutprejudiceto
therightofanOwnertorecoveralargercontributionfromtheotherOwner. Insuranceclaims
shallbemadepromptlyfollowinganycasualty.  

8.7.3 Weatherproofing. NotwithstandinganyotherprovisionofthisSection, any
Ownerwho, byhisorhernegligentorwillfulact, causesorallowsaPartyWalltobeexposedto
theelementsshallbearthewholecostoftherepairsnecessaryforprotectionagainstsuch
elements.  

8.7.4 RighttoContributionRunsWithLand. TherightofanyOwnertocontribution
fromanyotherOwnerunderthisSectionshallbeappurtenanttotheUnitandshallpasstosuch
Owner'sassignsandsuccessors intitle.  

8.7.5 Arbitration. IntheeventofanydisputearisingconcerningaPartyWall, andif
thesameisnotresolvedwithinthirty (30) daysoftheeventcausingthedispute, themattershall
besubmittedtobindingarbitrationundertherulesoftheAmericanArbitrationAssociation,  
uponthewrittendemandoftheAssociationoranyOwnerwhoseDwellingsharestheparty
wall. Eachpartyagreesthatthedecisionofthearbitratorsshallbefinalandconclusiveofthe
questionsinvolved. Thefeesofthearbitratorsshallbesharedequallybytheparties, buteach
partyshallpayitsownattorneys' feesandothercostsincurredinsaidarbitration.  

SECTION9
INSURANCE

9.1 RequiredCoverage.  TheAssociationshallobtainandmaintain, ataminimum, amaster
policyorpoliciesofinsuranceinaccordancewiththeinsurancerequirementssetforthintheActandthe
additionalrequirementssetforthherein, issuedbyareputableinsurancecompanyorcompanieslicensed
todobusinessinthestateofMinnesota, asfollows:  

9.1.1 Propertyinsuranceinbroadformcoveringallrisksofphysicallossinanamount
equaltoonehundredpercent (100%) oftheinsurableÐreplacement costÑoftheProperty,  
exclusiveof: (i) deductiblesand (ii) land, footings, excavationandotheritemsnormallyexcluded
fromcoverage (butincludingallbuildingserviceequipmentandmachinery).  TheAssociation
may, butisnotrequiredto, insuretheimprovementsandbettermentsasreferredtoinSection
515B.3-113(b) oftheAct.  Thepolicyorpoliciesshallcoverpersonalpropertyownedbythe
Association.  ThepolicyorpoliciesshallalsocontainÐInflationGuardÑandÐAgreedAmountÑ
endorsements, ifreasonablyavailable.  Suchpolicyorpoliciesshallincludesuchadditional

19



endorsements, coveragesandlimitswithrespecttotheforegoingandotherhazardsasmaybe
requiredfromtimetotimebytheregulationsoftheFederalNationalMortgageAssociation
ÐFNMAÑ), theFederalHomeLoanMortgageCorporation (ÐFHLMCÑ), theFederalHousing

Administration (ÐFHAÑ) ortheSecretaryofVeteranÓsAffairs (ÐVAÑ), ifrequiredbyoneofsuch
agenciesasapreconditiontotheirpurchase, financing, insuringorguaranteeofamortgageona
Unit.  TheBoardmayalso, onbehalfoftheAssociation, enterintobindingwrittenagreements
withamortgagee, orinsurer, guarantor, orservicerofamortgage, obligatingtheAssociationto
keepcertainspecifiedcoveragesorendorsements ineffect.  

9.1.2 Comprehensivegeneralliabilityinsurancecoveringtheuse, operationand
MaintenanceoftheCommonElementsandAssociationMaintenanceAreas, withminimumlimits
ofOneMillionDollars ($1,000,000.00) peroccurrence, againstclaimsfordeath, bodilyinjury
andpropertydamage, andsuchotherrisksasarecustomarilycoveredbysuchpoliciesfor
projectssimilarinconstruction, locationandusetotheProperty.  Thepolicyshallcontaina
ÐseverabilityofinterestÑendorsementwhichshallprecludetheinsurerfromdenyingtheclaimof
anOwnerorOccupantbecauseofnegligentactsoftheAssociationorotherOwnersor
Occupants.  WithrespecttotheUnits, thepolicyshallincludeadditionalendorsements, coverages
andlimitsnecessarytocomplywiththethen-currentregulationsofFNMA, FHLMC, FHAor
VA, ifrequiredbyoneofsuchagenciesasapreconditiontothepurchase, financing, insuringor
guaranteeofamortgageonaUnit.  

9.1.3 Fidelitybondorinsurancecoverageagainstdishonestactsonthepartof
directors, officers, managers, trustees, employeesorpersonsresponsibleforhandlingfunds
belongingtooradministeredbytheAssociation, asselectedbytheBoardorrequiredbythe
regulationsofanyfinancing-relatedinstitutionasapreconditiontothepurchase, financing,  
insuringorguaranteeofamortgageonaUnit.  Thefidelitybondorinsuranceshallnamethe
Associationasthenamedinsured, shallcomplywiththethen-currentregulationsofFNMA,  
FHLMC, FHAorVA, ifrequiredbyoneofsuchagenciesasapreconditiontothepurchase,  
financing, insuringorguaranteeofamortgageonaUnit, andshallbewritteninanamountequal
tothegreaterof (i) theestimatedmaximumofAssociationfunds, includingreserves, inthe
custodyoftheAssociationormanagementagentatanygiventimewhilethebondorpolicyisin
force; or (ii) asumequaltothree (3) monthsÓaggregateAssessmentsonallUnitsplusreserves.   
Anappropriateendorsement tothepolicytocoveranypersonswhoservewithoutcompensation
shallbeaddedifthepolicywouldnototherwisecovervolunteers, orawaiverofdefensebased
upontheexclusionofpersonsservingwithoutcompensationshallbeadded.  

9.1.4 WorkersÓCompensation insuranceasapplicableandrequiredbylaw.  

9.1.5 DirectorsÓandofficersÓliabilityinsurancewithsuchreasonablelimitsand
coveragesastheBoardshalldeterminefromtimetotime.  

9.1.6 SuchotherinsuranceastheBoardmaydeterminefromtimetotimetobeinthe
bestinterestsoftheAssociationandtheOwners.  

9.2 Premiums; Improvements; Deductibles.  ExceptasprovidedinSections6.4.3andthis
Section9, allinsurancepremiumsshallbeassessedandpaidasanannualAssessment.  Ifimprovements
andbettermentstotheUnitsorDwellingsarecovered, anyincreasedcostmaybeassessedagainstthe
Unitsaffected.  TheBoardshalldeterminetheamountofallinsurancedeductibles.  TheAssociationmay,  
inthecaseofaclaimfordamagetoaUnitorUnits, (i) paythedeductibleamountasaCommonExpense;  
ii) assessthedeductibleamountagainsttheUnitsaffectedinanyreasonablemanner; or (iii) requirethe

OwnersoftheUnitsaffectedtopaythedeductibleamountdirectly.  TheAssociationÓsdecisionastowho
shallbechargedwithpayingthedeductibleamountmay, butneednot, bebasedonfault.  

20



9.3 LossPayee; InsuranceTrustee.  AllinsurancecoveragemaintainedbytheAssociation
shallbewritteninthenameof, andtheproceedsthereofshallbepayableto, theAssociation (ora
qualifiedinsurancetrusteeselectedbyit) astrusteeforthebenefitoftheOwnersandsecuredparties,  
includingmortgageholders, whichsufferloss.  TheAssociation, oranyinsurancetrusteeselectedbyit,  
shallhaveexclusiveauthoritytonegotiate, settleandcollectuponanyclaimsorlossesunderany
insurancepolicymaintainedbytheAssociation.  

9.4 RequiredPolicyProvisions.  AllpoliciesofpropertyinsurancecarriedbytheAssociation
shallprovidethat:  

9.4.1 EachOwnerandsecuredpartyisaninsuredPersonunderthepolicywithrespect
toliabilityarisingoutoftheOwnerÓsinterestintheCommonElementsormembershipinthe
Association.  

9.4.2 TheinsurerwaivesitsrighttosubrogationunderthepolicyagainstanyOwners
orOccupantsandmembersoftheirrespectivehouseholds, andagainsttheAssociationandits
officersanddirectors.  

9.4.3 Thecoverageshallnotbevoidedorconditionedupon (i) anyactoromissionof
anOwner, additionalinsuredorsecuredparty, unlessactingwithinthescopeofauthorityon
behalfoftheAssociation, or (ii) anyfailureoftheAssociationtocomplywithanywarrantyor
conditionregardinganyportionofthePropertyoverwhichtheAssociationhasnocontrol.  

9.4.4 Ifatthetimeofalossunderthepolicythereisotherinsuranceinthenameofan
ownercoveringthesamepropertycoveredbythepolicy, theAssociationÓspolicyisprimary.  

9.5 Cancellation; NoticeofLoss.  Propertyinsuranceandcomprehensive liabilityinsurance
policiesmaintainedbytheAssociationshallprovidethatthepoliciesshallnotbecanceledorsubstantially
modified, foranyreason, withoutatleastthirtydayspriorwrittennoticetotheAssociationandtoall
securedpartiesholdingfirstmortgagesonUnits.  

9.6 RestorationinLieuofCashSettlement.  Propertyinsurancepoliciesmaintainedbythe
Associationshallprovidethat, despiteanyprovisionsgivingtheinsurertherighttoelecttorestore
damageinlieuofacashsettlement, suchoptionshallnotbeexercisable (i) withoutthepriorwritten
approvaloftheAssociation (oranyinsurancetrustee) or (ii) wheninconflictwithprovisionsofany
insurancetrustagreementtowhichtheAssociationmaybeaparty, oranyrequirementoflaw.  

9.7 OwnerÓsPersonalInsurance.  EachUnitOwnerisencouragedtoobtainadditional
personalinsurancecoverage (commonlyknownasÐgapcoverageÑoranÐHO6Ñpolicy) athisorherown
expensecoveringfireandothercasualtytotheinteriorandinteriorcourtyardareasoftheUnit, personal
propertyandtheOwnerÓspersonal liability.  InsurancepoliciesmaintainedbyOwnersarewithout
contributionasagainsttheinsurancepurchasedbytheAssociation, exceptastodeductibleamountsor
otheritemsnotcoveredundertheAssociationÓspolicies.  

SECTION10
RECONSTRUCTION, CONDEMNATION ANDEMINENTDOMAIN

10.1 Reconstruction.  Theobligationsandproceduresfortherepair, reconstructionor
dispositionofthePropertyfollowingdamageordestructionthereofshallbegovernedbytheAct.  Any
repairorreconstructionshallbecommencedassoonaspracticableafterthecasualtyandshallbe
substantiallyinaccordancewiththeplansandspecificationsofthePropertyasinitiallyconstructedand
subsequently improvedupon.    

21



10.2 CondemnationandEminentDomain.  IntheeventofatakingofanypartoftheProperty
bycondemnationoreminentdomain, theprovisionsoftheActshallgovern; provided, (i) thatthe
Associationshallbetheattorney-in-facttorepresenttheOwnersinanyrelatedproceedings, negotiations,  
settlementsoragreements; and (ii) thatanyawardsorproceedsshallbepayabletotheAssociationforthe
benefitoftheOwnersandthemortgageesoftheirUnits.  HoldersofmortgagesonUnitsshallbeentitled
topriorityforcondemnationawardsinaccordancewiththeprioritiesestablishedbytheActandthe
GoverningDocuments, astheirinterestsmayappear.  

10.3 Notice.  TheAssociationshallgivewrittennoticeofanycondemnationproceedingsor
substantialdestructionofthePropertytotheEligibleMortgageesentitledtonoticeunderSection14.10.  

10.4 AssociationÓsAuthority.  Inallcasesinvolvingreconstruction, condemnation, eminent
domain, terminationorliquidationoftheMapleShorescommoninterestcommunity, theAssociation
shallhavetheauthoritytoactonbehalfoftheOwnersinallproceedings, negotiationsandsettlementof
claims.  AllproceedsshallbepayabletotheAssociationtoholdanddistributeforthebenefitofthe
Ownersandsecuredparties, astheirinterestsmayappear, inaccordancewiththeAct.  

SECTION11
EASEMENTS

11.1 Access.  EachUnit, itsOwners, Occupants, lessees, guestsandotherinviteesshallbethe
beneficiaryofaperpetual, non-exclusiveeasementforaccesstoandfromapublicroadwayonandacross
thoseportionsoftheCommonElementsdesignatedforuseasroadways, walkways, orparkingareas,  
subjecttoanyrestrictionssetforthintheGoverningDocumentsortheRulesandRegulations.  

11.2 UseandEnjoyment.  EachUnitshallbethebeneficiaryofperpetual, non-exclusive
easementsforuseandenjoymentoftheCommonElements, includingtheeasementforbeachbathing
purposesoverLot11, RadissonInnAddition, andforuseandenjoymentofanyLimitedCommon
ElementsallocatedtotheUnit, subjecttosuchrestrictionsandconditionsasmaybesetforthinthe
GoverningDocumentsortheRulesandRegulations.  

11.3 StructuralSupport.  EachUnitandtheCommonElementsshallbesubjecttoandthe
beneficiaryofperpetual, non-exclusiveeasementsforstructuralsupportinallwalls, columns, joists,  
girdersandotherstructuralcomponents locatedinorpassingthroughanotherUnitortheCommon
Elements.  

11.4 Encroachments.  EachUnitandtheCommonElements, andtherightsoftheOwnersand
Occupantstherein, shallbesubjecttoanexclusiveeasementforencroachmentsinfavoroftheadjoining
Units, forencroachmentscausedbytheconstructions, reconstruction, repair, shifting, settlementor
movementofanypartoftheProperty, andforimprovementswhichareaddedincompliancewithSection
7.  IfthereisanencroachmentbyaUnit, oranapprovedAlterationtoaUnit, uponanotherUnitorthe
CommonElements, asaresultofanyoftheaforementioned causes, anappurtenanteasementforthe
encroachment, fortheuseandenjoymentofanyencroachingUnitorAlteration, andfortheMaintenance
thereof, shallexist.  However, withrespecttoimprovementsorAlterationsaddedpursuanttoSection7,  
noeasementshallexistunlesstheproposedAlterationshavebeenapprovedandconstructedasrequired
bythisDeclaration.  Sucheasementsshallcontinueforaslongastheencroachmentexistsandshallnot
affectthemarketabilityoftitle.  

11.5 DrainageEasements. EachUnitandtheCommonElementsshallbesubjecttoandthe
beneficiaryofperpetual, non-exclusiveeasementsforstormwaterdrainageoverandacrosssuchareasto

22



thosepartsofthePropertywhicharedesigned, improved, orgradedforstormwatercollectionorthe
managementthereof.    

11.6 Maintenance, Repair, ReplacementandReconstruction.  EachUnit, andtherightsofthe
OwnersandOccupantsthereof, shallbesubjecttotherightsoftheAssociationtoanon-exclusive,  
appurtenanteasementthroughtheUnitsforthepurposesofMaintenanceandreconstructionofthe
PropertyandAssociationMaintenanceAreas, andsuchimprovementslocatedwithintheUnitsand
utilitiesservingtheUnits, asandtotheextentnecessarytofulfilltheAssociationÓsobligationsunderthe
GoverningDocumentsandRulesandRegulations.  EachOwnerandOccupantofaUnitshallaffordto
theAssociationanditsmanagementagentsandemployees, atreasonabletimesanduponreasonable
notice, accessto, over, andacrosssaidUnitandtheDwellingandAssociationMaintenanceAreastherein
forMaintenancepurposes.  

11.7 Utilities.  ThePropertyshallbesubjecttonon-exclusive, appurtenanteasementsinfavor
ofallpublicutilityprovidersandothercomparableserviceprovidersfortheinstallation, use,  
Maintenanceofallutilities, suchasnaturalgas, electricity, cableTVandotherelectronic
communications, water, sewer, irrigationandsimilarservices, andmeteringandcontroldevices, which
existorareconstructedaspartofthedevelopmentoftheProperty, orwhicharereferredtointhePlator
otherwisedescribedinthisDeclarationorotherrecordedinstruments.  EachUnitandtherightsofthe
OwnersandOccupantsthereof, shallalsobesubjecttoanon-exclusive, appurtenanteasementinfavorof
theotherUnits, forallsuchutilitiesandservices.  Utilitiesandrelatedservicesorsystemsshallbe
installed, used, maintainedandrepairedsoasnottointerferewiththeuseandquietenjoymentofthe
UnitsbytheOwnersandOccupants, noraffectthestructuralorarchitectural integrityoftheProperty.  

11.8 DevelopmentAgreementandPublicRestrictions. ThePropertyissubjecttoa
DevelopmentAgreementbyandbetweentheDeclarantandtheCity, andsuchotherrecordedagreements,  
declarations, orrestrictions withtheCity, thepublic, orsuchpublicagencyasDeclarantmayassume,  
grant, ordeclarewithrespecttotheProperty (theÐPublicRestrictionsÑ).  ThePublicRestrictionsare
bindinguponthePropertyandtheOwnersandOccupantsandcontainvariousrestrictionsand
requirementswithrespecttothedevelopmentanduseoftheProperty, includingbutnotlimitedtothe
CityÓsapproveddevelopmentstandardsandengineeringguidelinesandspecificationslistedonExhibitC
heretoandincorporatedherein.  

11.9 EmergencyAccesstoUnits.  Incaseofemergency, allUnitsandLimitedCommon
ElementsaresubjecttoaneasementinfavoroftheAssociationforaccess, withoutnoticeandatanytime,  
byanofficerormemberoftheBoard, bytheAssociationÓsmanagementagentsorbyanypublicsafety
personnel.  TheBoardmayrequirethatanOwnerorOccupantleavekeystotheUnitwithanotherOwner
ofhisorherchoice, ortomakeotherarrangementssubjecttoapprovaloftheBoard, whichapprovalthe
Boardmayprovideinitssoleandabsolutediscretion, andtoadvisethemanageroftheBoardofthe
location(s) ofthekeys, soastoallowaccessforemergencieswhentheOwnerorOccupantisabsentfor
extendedperiods.  

11.10 ProjectSigns.  InadditiontotherightsprovidedtotheDeclarantinSection15, the
AssociationandDeclarantshallhavetherighttoerectandmaintainmonumentsignsidentifyingthe
Property, andrelateddecorativeimprovements, ontheCommonElements.  ThosepartsofthePropertyon
whichmonumentsignsorrelateddecorativeimprovementsarelocatedshallbesubjecttoappurtenant,  
exclusiveeasementsinfavoroftheAssociationortheDeclarant, asapplicable, forthecontinuinguseand
Maintenanceofsaidsignsandimprovements.  Inexercisingitsrightsundersaideasements, the
AssociationortheDeclarant, asapplicable, shalltakereasonablecaretoavoiddamagingthe
improvementsorthePropertyandshallrepairanydamagecausedbysuchactions.  

23



11.11 OtherRecordedEasements.  ThePropertyshallbesubjecttoandbenefitfromanyandall
easementsofrecord.  

11.12 DeclarantEasements.  ThePropertyshallbesubjecttoanon-exclusiveeasementinfavor
oftheDeclaranttohaveanduseeasements, foritself, itsemployees, contractors, representatives, agents
andprospectivepurchasersthroughandovertheCommonElementsforthepurposeofexercisingits
SpecialDeclarantRightspursuanttoSection15.  

11.13 ScopeandNon-Interference.  TheeasementssetforthinthisSection11shallrunwiththe
land, shallbeappurtenanttothePropertyandthebenefitedUnits, shallsupplementandnotlimitany
easementsdescribedelsewhereinthisDeclarationorrecorded, andshallincludereasonableaccesstothe
easementareasthroughtheUnitsandtheCommonElementsforpurposesofMaintenanceand
reconstruction.  Allpersonsexercisingeasementrightsshalldosointhemannerprovidedandsubjectto
restrictionsandconditionscontainedintheGovernmentDocumentsorRulesandRegulations, ina
reasonablemannersoasnottomateriallyinterferewiththeoperationofthePropertyandshallbe
financiallyliableforallcostsofrepairofanypartofthePropertywhichisdamagedbytheexerciseofthe
easementrights.  NoPersonshallimpair, obstructorcausedamagetoanyeasementarea, or
improvementsorequipmentinstalledtherein.  Notwithstanding anythinginthisDeclarationtothe
contrary, noOwnerorOccupantshallbedeniedreasonableaccesstohisorherUnitortherighttoutility
servicesthereto. AnyrecordedeasementbenefitingorburdeningthePropertyshallbeconstruedina
mannerconsistentwith, andnotinconflictwith, theeasementscreatedbythisDeclaration.  

SECTION12
COMPLIANCEANDREMEDIES

EachOwnerandOccupant, andanyotherPersonowningoracquiringanyinterestinthe
Property, shallbegovernedbyandcomplywiththeprovisionsoftheAct, theGoverningDocuments, the
RulesandRegulations, andsuchamendmentstoeachasmaybemadefromtime, andthedecisionsofthe
Association.  AfailuretocomplyshallentitletheAssociationtothereliefsetforthinthisSection, in
additiontotherightsandremediesauthorizedelsewherebytheGoverningDocumentsandtheAct.  

12.1 EntitlementtoRelief.  LegalreliefmaybesoughtbytheAssociationagainstanyOwner,  
orbyanOwneragainsttheAssociationoranotherOwner, toenforcecompliancewiththeGoverning
Documents, theRulesandRegulations, theActorthedecisionsoftheAssociation.  However, noOwner
maywithholdanyAssessmentspayabletotheAssociation, nortakeoromitotheractioninviolationof
theGoverningDocuments, theRulesandRegulationsortheAct, asmeasuretoenforcesuchOwnerÓs
position, orforanyotherreason.  

12.2 Remedies.  Inadditiontoanyotherremediesorsanctions, expressorimplied,  
administrative, legalorinequity, theAssociationshallhavetheright, butnottheobligation, toimplement
anyoneormoreofthefollowingactionsagainstOwnersandOccupantsand/ortheirguests, whoviolate
theprovisionsoftheGoverningDocuments, theRulesandRegulationsortheAct:  

12.2.1 Commencelegalactionfordamagesorequitablereliefinanycourtofcompetent
jurisdiction.  

12.2.2 Imposelatechargesofuptothegreaterof $20, or15% oftheamountpastdue,  
foreachpastdueAssessmentorinstallmentthereof, andimposeinterestatthehighestrate
permittedbylawaccruingbeginningonthefirstdayofthemonthaftertheAssessmentor
installmentthereofwasdue.  

24



12.2.3 Intheeventofdefaultofmorethanthirty (30) daysinthepaymentofany
Assessmentorinstallmentthereof, allremaininginstallmentsofAssessmentsassessedagainstthe
UnitownedbythedefaultingOwnermaybeacceleratedandshallthenbepayableinfull, unless
theoriginaldelinquentAssessmentorinstallment(s) thereof, andallattorneysÓfees, costsof
collectionsandlatechargesarepaidinfullpriortotheeffectivedateoftheacceleration.  Notless
thantendaysadvancewrittennoticeoftheaccelerationshallbegiventothedefaultingOwner.  

12.2.4 Imposereasonablefines, penaltiesorchargesforeachviolationoftheAct, the
GoverningDocumentsortheRulesandRegulations, andforcontinuingviolations.  

12.2.5 SuspendtherightsofanyOwnerorOccupantandtheirgueststouseany
CommonElementamenities; provided, thatthesuspensionofuserightsshallnotapplyto
LimitedCommonElementsorthoseportionsoftheCommonElementsprovidingutilitiesservice
andaccesstotheUnit.  SuchsuspensionsshallbelimitedtoperiodsofdefaultsbysuchOwners
andOccupantsintheirobligationsundertheGoverningDocumentsorRulesandRegulations,  
andforuptothirty (30) daysthereafter, foreachviolation.  

12.2.6 RestoreanyportionsofanyCommonElements, UnitorLimitedCommon
Elementsdamagedoraltered, orallowedtobedamagedoraltered, byanOwnerorOccupantor
theirguestsinviolationoftheGoverningDocumentsorRulesandRegulations, andtoassessthe
costofsuchrestorationagainsttheresponsibleOwnersandtheirUnits.  

12.2.7 EnteranyUnitorLimitedCommonElementinwhichaviolationofthe
GoverningDocuments, theAct, theRulesandRegulations, orthelawsofthestateofMinnesota
existswhichislikelytoimmediatelyandmateriallyaffectthehealthandsafetyoftheother
OwnersorOccupants, ortheirguests, orthesafetyorsoundnessofanyUnitorotherpartofthe
PropertyorthepropertyoftheOwnersorOccupants, andtosummarilyabateandremove, atthe
expenseoftheoffendingOwnerorOccupant, anystructure, thingorconditionintheUnitor
LimitedCommonElementswhichiscausingtheviolation; provided, thatanyimprovements
whichareapartofaUnitmaybealteredorremovedonlypursuanttoacourtorderorwiththe
agreementoftheOwnerorOccupant.  

12.2.8 ForecloseanylienarisingundertheprovisionsoftheGoverningDocumentsor
underlaw, inthemannerprovidedbytheAct.  

12.3 RightstoHearing.  Exceptforemergencies, beforetheimpositionofanyoftheremedies
authorizedbySection12.2anditssub-sections, theBoardshall, uponwrittenrequestoftheviolator,  
granttotheviolatoranopportunityforafairandequitablehearingascontemplatedbytheAct.  The
violatorshallbegivennoticeofthenatureoftheviolationandtherighttoahearing, andatleastten (10)  
dayswithinwhichtorequestahearing.  ThehearingshallbescheduledbytheBoardandheldwithin
thirty (30) daysofreceiptofthehearingrequestbytheBoard, andwithatleastten (10) daysÓprior
writtennoticetotheviolator.  Iftheviolatorfailstotimelyrequestahearingortoappearatthehearing,  
thentherighttoahearingshallbedeemedwaivedandtheBoardmaytakesuchactionasitdeems
appropriate.  ThedecisionoftheBoardandtherulesfortheconductofhearingsestablishedbytheboard
shallbefinalandbindingonallparties.  TheBoardÓsdecisionshallbedeliveredinwritingtotheviolator
withinten (10) daysfollowingthehearing.  

12.4 LienforAssessments, Charges, Etc.  AnyAssessments, charges, fines, expenses,  
penaltiesorinterestimposedunderthisSectionshallbealienagainsttheUnitoftheOwnerorOccupant
againstwhomthesameareimposedandthepersonalobligationofsuchOwnerorOccupantinthesame
mannerandwiththesamepriorityandeffectasAssessmentsunderSection6.  Thelienshallattachasof
thedateofimpositionoftheremedy, butshallnotbefinalastoviolationsforwhichahearingisheld

25



untiltheBoardmakesawrittendeterminationdispositiveoftheissue.  Allremediesshallbecumulative,  
andtheexerciseof, orfailuretoexercise, anyremedyshallnotbedeemedawaiveroftheAssociationÓs
righttopursueanyothers.  

12.5 CostsofProceedingandAttorneysÓFees.  Withrespecttoanycollectionmeasures, or
anymeasuresoraction, legal, administrative, equitableorotherwise, whichtheAssociationtakesto
enforcetheprovisionsoftheAct, theGoverningDocumentsorRulesandRegulations, whetherornot
finallydeterminedbyacourtorarbitrator, theAssociationmayassesstheUnitownedbytheviolatorwith
anyexpensesincurredinconnectionwithsuchenforcement, includingbutwithoutlimitationfinesor
chargespreviouslyimposedbytheAssociation, reasonableattorneysÓfees, andinterest (atthehighestrate
allowedbylaw) onthedelinquentamountsowedtotheAssociation.  Suchexpensesshallalsoinclude
anycollectionorcontingencyfeesorcostschargedtotheAssociationbyacollectionagencyorother
PersonactingonbehalfoftheAssociationincollectinganydelinquentamountsowedtotheAssociation
byanOwnerorOccupant.  Suchcollectionorcontingency feesorcostsshallbethepersonalobligationof
theOwnerandshallbealienagainsttheOwnerÓsUnit.  

12.6 LiabilityforActsofOwnersandOccupants.  AnOwnershallbeliablefortheexpenseof
anyMaintenanceofthePropertyrenderednecessarybysuchOwnerÓsactsoromissions, orbythatof
OccupantsorguestsintheOwnerÓsUnit, totheextentthatsuchexpenseisnotcoveredbytheproceedsof
aninsurancepolicycarriedbytheAssociationorsuchOwnerorOccupant.  However, anyinsurance
deductibleamountand/orincreaseininsuranceratesorpremiumsresultingfromtheOwnerÓsactsor
omissionsmaybeassessedagainsttheOwnerresponsibleandagainstthatOwnerÓsUnit.  

12.7 EnforcementbyOwners.  TheprovisionsofthisSectionshallnotlimitorimpairthe
independentrightsofotherOwnerstoenforcetheprovisionsoftheGoverningDocuments, theRulesand
Regulations, ortheAct, asprovidedtherein.  

SECTION13
AMENDMENTS

13.1 ApprovalRequirements.  ExceptforamendmentsbyDeclarantpursuanttoSections15
and16, thisDeclarationmaybeamendedonlybyapprovalof:  

13.1.1 TheBoard;  

13.1.2 OwnersofUnitswhichareallocatedatleastsixty-sevenpercent (67%) ofthe
totalvotesintheAssociation;  

13.1.3 ThePercentageofEligibleMortgagees (basedupononevoteperUnitfinanced)  
requiredbySection14astocertainamendmentsreferencedbysaidSection; and,  

13.1.4 DeclarantastocertainamendmentsasprovidedinSection13.3.  

13.2 Procedures.  ApprovaloftheOwnersmaybeobtainedinwritingoratameetingofthe
AssociationdulyheldinaccordancewiththeBylaws.  ConsentsofEligibleMortgagees, ifrequired, shall
beinwritingorasotherwiseprovidedbylaw.  Anyamendmentshallbesubjecttoanygreater
requirements imposedbytheAct.  AnaffidavitbytheSecretaryoftheAssociationastotheoutcomeof
thevote, ortheexecutionoftheforegoingstatementsorconsents, shallbeadequateevidencethereoffor
allpurposes, includingbutnotlimitedtotherecordingoftheamendment.  

13.3 ConsenttoCertainAmendments.  SolongasDeclarantownsaUnit, DeclarantÓswritten
consentshallberequiredforanyamendmenttotheGoverningDocumentsorRulesandRegulations

26



whichdirectlyorindirectlyaffectDeclarantÓsrightsorobligationsundertheGoverningDocuments, the
RulesandRegulations, ortheAct, includinganyamendments, modificationsordeletionsofortothe
bindingarbitrationprovisioninSection17.10below.  

13.4 TerminationandLiquidation.  TheterminationoftheMapleShorescommoninterest
communityandthedistributionofanyproceedstherefrom, shallbegovernedbytheAct.  Any
distributionoffundsshallbebaseduponthevalueoftheUnitsasdeterminedbytheirrelative
replacementvalueforpropertyinsurancepurposes, andshallbemadetoOwnersandsecuredparties, as
theirinterestsmayappear, asprovidedintheAct.  

SECTION14
RIGHTSOFELIGIBLEMORTGAGEES

NotwithstandinganythingtothecontraryintheGoverningDocuments, butsubjecttotheActor
otherlaws, EligibleMortgageesshallhavethefollowingrightsandprotections:  

14.1 ConsenttoCertainAmendments.  SubjecttoDeclarantÓsrightsunderSection15, the
writtenconsentofEligibleMortgageesrepresentingatleastfifty-onepercent (51%) oftheUnitsthatare
subjecttofirstmortgagesheldbyEligibleMortgagees (basedupononevoteperUnitfinanced) shallbe
requiredforanyamendmenttotheGoverningDocumentswhichcausesanychangeinprovisions
includingthefollowing: (i) votingrights; (ii) increasesinAssessmentsovertwenty-fivepercent (25%);  
iii) Assessment liens; (iv) reductionsinreservesforMaintenanceoftheCommonElements; (v)  

responsibility forMaintenance; (vi) reallocationofinterestsintheCommonElementsorLimited
CommonElements, orrightstotheiruse; (vii) redefinitionofanyUnitboundaries; (viii) convertibilityof
UnitsintoCommonElementsorviceversa; (ix) expansionorcontractionofthePropertyortheaddition,  
annexation, orwithdrawalofpropertytoorfromtheProperty; (x) hazardorfidelityinsurance
requirements; (xi) impositionofrestrictionsontheleasingofUnits; (xii) impositionofanyrestrictionson
anyOwnerÓsrighttosellortransfertheOwnerÓsUnit; (xiii) adecisionbytheAssociationtoestablish
self-managementwhenprofessionalmanagement isineffectasrequiredpreviouslybytheGoverning
DocumentsoranEligibleMortgagee; (xiv) restorationorrepairoftheProperty (afterahazarddamageor
partialcondemnation) inamannerotherthanthatspecifiedintheGoverningDocuments; (xv) anyaction
toterminatethelegalstatusofthePropertyaftersubstantialdestructionorcondemnationoccurs; or (xvi)  
anyprovisionsthatexpresslybenefitEligibleMortgagees, orinsurersorguarantorsofmortgages.  

14.2 ConsenttoCertainActions,  SubjecttoDeclarantÓsrightsunderSection15, thewritten
consentofEligibleMortgageesrepresentingatleastsixty-sevenpercent (67%) oftheUnitsthatare
subjecttofirstmortgagesheldbyEligibleMortgagees (basedupononevoteperUnitfinanced) shallbe
requiredto (i) abandonorterminatetheMapleShorescommoninterestcommunitypursuanttotheAct;  
ii) changetheallocationsofvotingrights, CommonExpenseobligationsorinterestsintheCommon

Elements; (iii) partitionorsubdivideaUnitexceptaspermittedbySection16andbystatute; (iv)  
abandon, partition, subdivide, encumberorsellanyCommonElements; or (v) usehazardinsurance
proceedsforotherthantherepair, replacementorreconstructionoftheProperty, exceptasotherwise
providedbylaw.  

14.3 ConsenttoSubdivision.  NoUnitmaybepartitionedorsubdividedwithoutpriorwritten
approvaloftheOwnerandEligibleMortgageethereof, andtheAssociation.  

14.4 NoRightofFirstRefusal.  TherightofanOwnertosell, transferorotherwiseconveyhis
orherUnitshallnotbesubjecttoanyrightoffirstrefusalorsimilarrestrictionsimposedbyanEligible
Mortgagee.  

27



14.5 PriorityofLien.  AnyPersonwhocomesintopossessionofaUnitbyforeclosureofa
firstmortgageonaUnit, orbydeedorassignmentinlieuofforeclosureofthefirstmortgageonaUnit,  
takestheUnitfreeofanyclaimsforunpaidAssessmentsoranyotherchargesorliensimposedagainstthe
UnitbytheAssociationwhichhaveaccruedagainstsuchUnitpriortotheacquisitionofpossessionofthe
UnitbysaidPerson: (i) exceptasprovidedinSection6.10andtheAct; and (ii) exceptthatanyun- 
reimbursedAssessmentsorchargesmaybereallocatedamongallUnitsinaccordancewiththeirinterests
intheCommonElements.  

14.6 PriorityofTaxesandOtherCharges.  Alltaxes, Assessmentsandchargeswhichmay
becomelienspriortothefirstmortgageunderstatelawshallrelateonlytotheindividualUnitsandnotto
thePropertyasawhole.  

14.7 PriorityforCondemnationAwards.  NoprovisionsoftheGoverningDocumentsshall
giveanOwner, oranyotherparty, priorityoveranyrightsoftheEligibleMortgageeoftheUnitpursuant
toitsmortgageinthecaseofadistributiontosuchOwnerofinsuranceproceedsorcondemnation awards
forlossestooratakingoftheUnitand/ortheCommonElements.  TheAssociationshallgivewritten
noticetoallEligibleMortgageesofanycondemnationoreminentdomainproceedingaffectingthe
Propertypromptlyuponreceiptofnoticefromthecondemningauthority.  

14.8 RequirementsforManagement Agreements.  Thetermofanyagreementforprofessional
managementofthePropertymaynotexceedtwo (2) years.  Anysuchagreementmustprovideata
minimumforterminationwithoutpenaltyorterminationfeebyeitherparty, (i) withcauseuponthirty
30) dayspriorwrittennotice, and (ii) withoutcauseuponninety (90) dayspriorwrittennotice.  

14.9 AccesstoBooksandRecords/Audit.  EligibleMortgageesshallhavetherighttoexamine
thebooksandrecordsoftheAssociationuponreasonablenotice, foraproperpurposeandduringnormal
businesshours, andtoreceivefreeofcharge, uponwrittenrequest, copiesoftheAssociationÓsannual
reportsandotherfinancialstatements.  Financialstatements, includingthosewhichareaudited, shallbe
availablewithinonehundredeighty (180) daysaftertheendoftheAssociationÓsfiscalyear.  FNMA, or
anyinstitutionalguarantororinsurerofamortgageloanagainstaUnitmayrequirethat, atitsown
expense, anauditoftheAssociationÓsfinancialstatementsbemadefortheprecedingyear, inwhichcase
theAssociationshallcooperateinhavinganauditmadeandacopygiventotherequestingparty.  

14.10 NoticeRequirements.  UponwrittenrequesttotheAssociation, identifyingthenameand
addressoftheholder, servicer, insurer, orguarantorofamortgageonaUnit, andtheUnitnumberor
address, theholder, insurer, servicerorguarantorshallbeentitledtotimelywrittennoticeof:  

14.10.1Acondemnation lossoranycasualtylosswhichaffectsamaterialportionofthe
PropertyortheUnitsecuringthemortgage;  

14.10.2Asixty (60) daydelinquencyinthepaymentofAssessmentsorchargesowedby
theOwnerofaUnituponwhichtheEligibleMortgageeholdsamortgage;  

14.10.3Alapse, cancellationormaterialmodificationofanyinsurancepolicymaintained
bytheAssociation; and,  

14.10.4Aproposedactionwhichrequirestheconsentofaspecifiedpercentageof
EligibleMortgagees.  

SECTION15
SPECIALDECLARANT RIGHTS

28



DeclarantherebyreservesexclusiveandunconditionalauthoritytoexercisethefollowingSpecial
DeclarantRightswithinthemeaningofSection515B.1-103(33b) oftheActforaslongasitholdsrights
inaUnit, orforsuchshorterperiodasmaybespecifically indicated:  

15.1 CompleteImprovements.  TocompleteimprovementsindicatedonthePlat, plannedby
theDeclarantconsistentwiththedisclosurestatementandauthorizedbythemunicipality inwhichthe
Propertyislocated, andtohaveanduseeasementsforitselfanditsemployees, agentsandcontractors
throughandovertheCommonElementsforsuchpurposes.  

15.2 Subdivide, Combine, orConvertUnits.  TosubdivideorcombineUnits, orconvertUnits
intoCommonElements, LimitedCommonElementsand/orUnitspursuanttoSection515B.2-112ofthe
Act.  

15.3 MaintainSalesFacilitiesandOffices.  Tomaintainandusesalesoffices, management
offices, signsadvertisingtheProperty, andmodels, andtohaveanduseeasementsforitselfandits
employees, agentsandinviteesthroughandovertheCommonElementsforsuchpurposes.  

15.4 Signs.  ToerectandmaintainsignsandothersalesdisplaysofferingUnitsforsaleor
lease, onanyUnitownedbyDeclarantandontheCommonElements.  

15.5 Easements.  Tohaveanduseeasementsforitself, itsemployees, agents, contractors,  
representatives, agents, prospectivepurchasersandinviteesthroughandovertheCommonElementsfor
thepurposeofexercisingitsSpecialDeclarantRights.  

15.6 AlternateCommonExpensePlan.  PursuanttoSection515B.3-1151(a)(2) oftheAct,  
Declarant isauthorizedtoelectandutilizetheAlternateCommonExpensePlandescribedinSection
6.8.2ofthisDeclaration.  

15.7 ControlofAssociation.  ToappointandremovethemembersoftheBoardpursuantto
Section515B.3-103oftheAct, untiltheearliestof: (i) voluntarysurrenderofcontrolbyDeclarant; (ii)  
afterconveyancetoOwnersotherthanDeclarantofseventy-fivepercent (75%) ofthetotalnumberof
UnitsauthorizedtobeincludedinthePropertyor (iii) thedatefive (5) yearsfollowingthedateofthefirst
conveyanceofaUnittoanOwnerotherthanDeclarant.  Notwithstanding theforegoing, theOwnersother
thanDeclarantshallhavetherighttonominateandelectnotlessthanthirty-threeandone-thirdpercent
33.3%) oftheBoardatameetingoftheOwnerswhichshallbeheldwithinsixty (60) daysfollowing

conveyancebyDeclarantoffiftypercent (50%) ofthetotalnumberofUnitsauthorizedtobeincluded
withintheProperty.  

15.8 GrantCommonElementsLicenses.  TograntlicensestosuchCommonElementrightsor
amenitiesifDeclarantshallsodetermine, initsdiscretion, pursuanttoSection515B.2-109(e) oftheAct.  

15.9 ReviewandApproveExteriorImprovements.  Therighttoreview, andapproveor
disapprovetheexteriordesign, materials, size, sitelocation, andotherexteriorfeaturesofbuildingsor
otherstructures, landscaping, andotherexteriorimprovementsupontheProperty, andanymodifications,  
alterations, orremovalthereof.  

SECTION16
COMBINATIONOFUNITSANDRELOCATION OFBOUNDARIES

16.1 RightsofDeclarantandAssociation.  AUnitorUnitsownedexclusivelybythe
DeclarantortheAssociationmaysubdivide, combineorconvertsuchUnitorUnits.  TheDeclarantor
Association, asapplicable, shallhavetheauthoritytounilaterallyprepare, executeandrecord, atits

29



expense, anAmendmenttoDeclarationandanamendedPlat.  Theamendmentshallcomplywith
subdivision515B.2-112(d)(2-5) oftheAct, andshallbelimitedtothoseprovisionsnecessaryto
accomplishthesubdivision, combinationorconversionunlesstheconsentoftheOwnersofUnits
requiredtoamendtheDeclarationisobtained.  

SECTION17
MISCELLANEOUS

17.1 InterpretationofDeclaration.  ThisDeclaration issetforthtocomplywiththe
requirementsoftheAct.  IntheeventofanyconflictbetweenthisDeclarationandtheprovisionsofthe
Act, theprovisionsoftheActshallcontrol.  TheprovisionsoftheDeclarationshallbeliberallyconstrued
toeffectuateitspurposeofcreatingauniformplanfortheownershipandoperationofthisresidential
plannedcommunity.  

17.2 Severability.  Ifanyterm, covenantorprovisionofthisinstrumentoranyexhibitattached
heretoisheldtobeinvalidorunenforceable foranyreasonwhatsoever, suchdeterminationshallnotbe
deemedtoalter, affectorimpairinanymannerwhatsoeveranyotherportionofthisDeclarationorthe
exhibitsattachedhereto, whichexhibitsareincorporatedwithintheDeclaration.  

17.3 Construction.  Whereapplicable, themasculinegenderofanywordusedhereinshall
meanthefeminineorneutralgender, orviceversa, andthesingularofanywordusedhereinshallmean
theplural, orviceversa.  ReferencestotheAct, oranysectionthereof, shallbedeemedtoincludeany
statutesamendingorreplacingtheAct, andthecomparablesectionsthereof.  

17.4 TenderofClaims.  Intheeventthatanyincidentoccurswhichcouldreasonablygiverise
toademandbytheAssociationagainstDeclarantforindemnificationpursuanttotheAct, theAssociation
shallpromptlytenderthedefenseoftheactiontoitsinsurancecarrier, andgiveDeclarant (i) written
noticeofsuchtender; (ii) writtennoticeofthespecificnatureoftheaction, and (iii) anopportunityto
defendagainsttheaction.  

17.5 Notices.  UnlessspecificallyprovidedotherwiseintheGoverningDocumentsortheAct,  
allnoticesrequiredtobegivenbyortotheAssociation, theBoard, theAssociationofficers, orthe
OwnersorOccupantsshallbeinwritingandshallbeeffectiveuponhanddelivery, ormailingifproperly
addressedwithpostageprepaidanddepositedintheUnitedStatesmail; exceptthatregistrationspursuant
theBylawsshallbeeffectiveuponreceiptbytheAssociation.  

17.6 ConflictsamongDocuments.  Intheeventofanyconflictamongtheprovisionsofthe
Act, theDeclaration, theBylaws, theRulesandRegulations, theActshallcontrolunlessitpermitsthe
GoverningDocumentstocontrol.  AsamongtheDeclaration, theBylaws, andtheRulesandRegulations,  
theDeclarationshallcontrol.  AsbetweentheBylawsandtheRulesandRegulations, theBylawsshall
control.  

17.7 MinorRevisions.  TheDeclarantreservestherighttomakeminor, non-materialchanges
totheDeclarationandBylawsinordertocomplywiththerequirementsofitsMortgagees, theOfficeof
theRegistrarofTitlesofHennepinCounty, andanychangeintheAct.  

17.8 DurationofCovenants.  Thecovenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, liensand
chargescontainedinthisDeclarationshallbeperpetual, subjectonlytoterminationasprovidedinthis
DeclarationandtheAct.  

17.9 MinnesotaLawtoGovern.  ThisDeclarationshallbeconstruedanenforcedin
accordancewiththelawsoftheStateofMinnesota.  

30



17.10 BINDINGARBITRATION PROVISION.  Toprovideanexpeditedmeansofdispute
resolutionformattersnotresolvedbyapplicablestatutorydisputeresolutionprovisions, anyandall
claimsarisingbetweenanOwnerorOccupantandDeclarant, andanyandallclaimsarisingbetweenthe
AssociationandDeclarant, suchassertions, claimsorcausesofactionpertainingtotheconditionofa
Unit, oftheProperty, oralloranyportionoftheCommonElements, includingtheLimitedCommon
Elements, includingbutnotlimitedtoclaimsarisingfromconstructionordesigndefects, shallbe
resolvedsolelyandexclusivelybybindingarbitrationinaccordancewiththerulesandregulationsofthe
AmericanArbitrationAssociation, providedthatdisputesarisingunderawarrantyprogram, ifapplicable,  
shallberesolvedasprovidedwithinthetermsofsuchwarrantyprogram.  THISPROCESSINVOLVES
WAIVEROFAJURYTRIAL.  BYEXECUTINGTHISDECLARATIONANDBYACCEPTINGA
DEEDTOANYPORTIONOFTHEPROPERTY, RESPECTIVELY, DECLARANT, OWNERSAND
THEASSOCIATIONAGREETOBEBOUNDBYTHEPROVISIONSOFTHIS17.10.  

Theremainderofthispageintentionally leftblank. Signaturepagetofollow.\]  

31



INWITNESSWHEREOF, theundersignedhasexecutedthisinstrumentinaccordancewiththe
requirementsoftheAct.  

CHAMBERLAIN CAPITALLLC.,   
aMinnesotalimitedliabilitycompany.   

By: ______________   
Its:  _________  

STATEOFMINNESOTA )  
ss.  

COUNTYOFHENNEPIN )  

Theforegoinginstrumentwasacknowledged beforemeonthis ____ dayof _________, 2023, by
the _____________ ofChamberlainCapitalLLC., aMinnesotalimitedliabilitycompany, on

behalfofthecompany.  

NotaryPublic

THISINSTRUMENTWASDRAFTEDBY:  
BEST & FLANAGANLLP (RQW)  
60SouthSixthStreet, Suite2700
Minneapolis, MN55402
612) 339-7121

32



EXHIBITA
TO

DECLARATION

LegalDescriptionofProperty

Lots1-8, inclusive, Block1, MapleShores, HennepinCounty, Minnesota.  

Togetherwithallrights, hereditaments, andappurtenances thereto, includingbutnotlimitedtoan
easementforbeachbathingpurposesoverLot11, RadissonInnAddition.  

33



EXHIBITB
TO

DECLARATION

CommonElements

Lot8, Block1, MapleShores, HennepinCounty, Minnesota.  

Togetherwithallrights, hereditaments, andappurtenances thereto, includingbutnotlimitedtoan
easementforbeachbathingpurposesoverLot11, RadissonInnAddition.  

34



EXHIBITC
TO

DECLARATION

PublicRestrictions

ThePropertyshallbesubjecttoCityCodeandthePublicRestrictionsnotedinSection11.8above,  
includingtheapproveddevelopmentstandardsandengineeringguidelinesandspecificationssetforthin
CityofShorewoodResolution22-078andCityofShorewoodResolution22-079, asapplicable.  

35



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-034

ARESOLUTION APPROVING AFINALPLATFORMAPLESHORES
FORPROPERTY LOCATEDAT20430RADISSON ROAD

ANDFOURADJACENT VACANT PROPERTIES

WHEREAS, Chamberlain Capital, LLC. (the “Applicant”), hassubmittedarequest forafinalplatofthe
MapleShoresPUDundertheShorewood CityCodeandunderChapter462ofMinnesota Statutes; and

WHEREAS, theproperty islegallydescribed as:  

Lot24, Radisson InnAddition, andTractsA, B, C, D, H, I, J, andK, Registered LandSurveyNo730,  
allinHennepin County, Minnesota (the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, thefinalplatisconsistent withthepreliminary platandthePUDconceptanddevelopment
planspreviously approvedfortheproject; and

WHEREAS, adevelopment andPUDagreement hasbeenpreparedaspartofthefinalplatapplication.  

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA AS
FOLLOWS:  

1. TheplatofMapleShoresfor7lotsforsingle-familyhomesand2outlotsisherebyapproved
according totheplansandmaterialssubmitted January23, February7and8, andMarch15, 2023,  
the “Plans”) subjecttotheconditions listedbelow.  

2. Theapproval isspecifically conditioned uponthetermsandconditions contained inthe
Development andPUDAgreement forthesubdivision.    

3. TheMayorandCityAdministrator areherebyauthorized toexecutetheDevelopment andPUD
Agreement onbehalfoftheCityCouncil andstaffareherebyauthorized toexecutethefinalplan
approval.  

4. Thefinalplat, development andPUDagreement andallrelateddocuments listedbelow, shallbe
requiredtobefiledwithHennepin County.  

5. Priortoreleaseofthesubdivision forrecording thefinalplat, theApplicant shallsubmitthe
information andrevisedplansconsistent withtheregulations inCityCode, thePUDConceptand
Development Stageapprovalsandasfollows:  
a. Revisedhomeowner association (HOA) documents thatincludedisclosures onthemaximum

impervious surfacecoverageperlotandlanguage addressing maintenance ofthewetland
buffersandsignage, stormwater features, aswellasprohibitions onaccessory buildingsand
storageofrecreation vehiclesorequipment outsidethehome.  

b. Executed easements andagreements, including: 1) conservation easements overthewetlands
andwetlandbuffers, 2) astormwatermaintenance agreement; and3) thedevelopment and
PUDagreement.    

c. Paymentoffeesandsubmission ofthefinancialguarantees asrequiredbythedevelopment and
PUDagreement.  



d. Arevisedconstruction management planthatincludestheallowedconstruction hours.  Thecity
reserves therighttoprohibitconstruction parkingontheprivatedriveduringconstruction to
ensureadequate accessofemergency vehicles.  

e. Allpermitsrequiredbyotheragencies, including theExcelsiorFireDistrict.  
f. RevisedplansconsistentwiththeEngineer’sMemodatedMarch16, 2023; andasfollows:  

1) Revisethetreepreservation plantoshowthelocationoftreepreservation fencingand
indicateremovaloftree165locatedintheright-of-way.  Tobeconsidered saved, noactivity
ispermittedwithinthedriplineoftree.    

2) Revisethelandscaping planto: 1) addadditional treesinthecommonareaswherethey
wouldn’tobstructthestormwater; 2) provideaplantschedulewiththesizeofalltreesat
plantingconsistent withthetreepreservation policy; 3) indicatethegroundcoverproposed
throughout thedevelopment andthedisturbed portionsofthepublicright-of-way; and4)  
anyproposed seedmixesthatwouldbeusedtoreestablish thedisturbedportionsof
wetlandbuffers, ifapplicable.  

3)  Revisethegradingplantoidentify: a) thelocationofwetlandbuffermonuments ateachlot
lineandasthebufferchangesdirectionandb) whichbuffermonuments wouldbeused, the
City’sorthewatershed’s.  

6. Priortoissuanceofanybuildingpermits, theApplicantshallsubmitorcomplete thefollowing:  
a. Theapplicantshallsubmitasoils/geotechnical reportfromalicensedprofessional engineer

permits thatindicates thesoilspresentonthesiteandbroughtinareadequate tosupportthe
construction ofthebuildingsandotherimprovements.    

b. Theapplicantshallsubmitrecordedcopiesofalldocuments, suchastheplat, development
agreement, maintenance agreement, separate easements, HOAdocuments, etc.    

c. Install thewetlandbuffermonuments, exceptforthepermitforthemodelhome.  
d. Install thepublicimprovements asdirected intehdevelopment andPUDagreement.  

7. Thesiteshallremainincompliance withthecity’streepreservation policyuntilallconstruction is
complete.    

8. Eachlotshallremainatorbelowtheamountofimpervious surfacecoverage indicatedontheSite
PlandatedJanuary23, 2023.  

9. Theproposed subdivision signshallnotbeinstalledcloserthanfivefeettothepublicright-of-way
andotherwise consistent withthesignregulations andtheconditions inthedevelopment
agreement.  

10. Thefinalplatshallexpire in180daysiftheApplicant hasnotrecorded thefinalplatatHennepin
County.  TheApplicant mayrequestanextension totheapprovalsubjecttotherequirements of
Section1202.03Subd. 2. f. (3).    

thAdoptedbytheCityCouncilofShorewood, Minnesota this27 dayofMarch, 2023.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



CityCouncilMeetingItem

ItemTitle/Subject:   Planning Commission WorkProgram 2023
6DMeetingDate:  March27, 2023

Preparedby:   JasonCarlson, PlanningTechnician
Reviewedby:   MarieDarling, PlanningDirector

Background: ThePlanningCommission reviewedandaccepted theattachedworkprogramfor
2023. Asanadditiontothisschedule, whentheComprehensive Planisformallyapproved, the
Citywillneedtoinitiaterezonings andotherzoningamendments toimplement the
Comprehensive Plan.  Thedatesoftheseamendments arenotyetincludedbelowasstaffis
uncertainwhentheMetropolitan Councilwillact. Pleasereviewtheattachedworkprogram.   
TheCityCouncilmayadd, amendordeleteanyoftheitemsintheworkprogram.   

Tentative2023WorkProgram
Springof2023 (April - June)  

DevelopmentApplications
SignCodeamendmentrelatedtocontentneutrallanguage (Discussion/PublicHearing).  

Summerof2023 (July  - September – October)  
DevelopmentApplications
AmendmentstoCUPsandSitePlanapplicationadministrationtoaddinadditionalreview
standards.  
TelecommunicationAmendmentstoZoningRegulationstoupdateregulationsbasedonseveral
federalchanges (Discussion/PublicHearing).  

Winterof2023/24 (November -January)  
DevelopmentApplications
Reviewpotentialamendmentstotreepreservationordinanceandpolicytoreflectcurrent
practicesandchangesbasedonEAB
Subdivisionregulationsupdate (ParkDedication, PrematureSubdivision, Variance, etc.).  The
chapterhashadfewamendmentsorupdatessinceitsadoptionin1987.    

Otherfuturecodeamendments:  
ReviewAmendmentstoimpervioussurfacecoverage/stormwaterregulations
Discussion/PublicHearing), gradingissues, escrowlanguage, certificateofoccupancyinZoning

Regulations.    
Exteriorstorage
PUDAmendmentProcedures
Fences
FoodTrucks
Nonconforminguses, structures, andlots
HomeOccupationPermit/Licenses

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CityCouncilMeetingItem

ItemTitle/Subject:   MillStreetTrailUpdate
9A.1MeetingDate:  March27, 2023

Preparedby:   MarieDarling, PlanningDirectorandAndrewBudde, CityEngineer
Reviewedby:   MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   DesignOptions1and2

Background:  
StaffhasbeenworkingwithHennepin CountyandtheCityofExcelsior since2018tomove
forwardontheMillStreettrailcorridor.  PriortoCovid-19, apublicopenhousewasheldand
theCityofExcelsiorcompleted theirfeasibilitystudy (Shorewood feasibilitystudywas
completed in2013).    

Withinthelastyear, stafffromalltheaffectedagencieshaveagainbeenmeetingtomovethis
project forward.  AttheMarch14ParkCommission Meeting, theHennepin CountyProject
Managercameandpresented thetwoattachedoptionsforthetrailcorridordesign.  Thetrail
withbikeableshoulders wouldmostcloselymatchtheCarverCountytrailcorridor tothesouth,  
andwouldallowforbikecommuters andclubstobikeon-street, withpedestrians andmore- 
cautious bikersusingthetrail.    

Thetrailoptionwithbikeable shoulders wouldhavefewerproperty impacts, butwouldnot
allowforseparatebikeableareason-street.    

Generally, theParkCommission wasfavorable toproviding theoptionswiththeon-street
optionsforbikecommuters andclubs.    

Bothoptionswillbepresented inAprilatpublicevents, apop-upeventonApril11from5:30- 
7:30p.m. atExcelsiorElementary SchoolandanopenhouseatSt. John’sCatholicChurchon
April20from5:00-7:00p.m.  

Afterthesemeetings, thefinalplanswillbecompleted andonefinalroundofpublic
engagements willoccur, likelyinJune/July.  Hennepin CountywillthenbebacklikelyinJulyat
theParkCommission andCityCouncil formunicipal consenttotheproject.  

Shorewood staff isalsoscopingtheadditionofwatermain alongMillAveincoordination with
thetrailproject. Historically therehasbeenmanyrequests forthedesiretoconnect to
municipalwaterinthisarea.   

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.    



Financial orBudget Considerations:  TheCIPshowstheMillStreettrailprojectproceeding forward
withrightofwayacquisition in2024 (estimated costsof $168,540) andconstruction in2025 (estimated
costsof $905,172).   TheCityhasalsobudgeted $2,200,000in2025fortheadditionofwatermain.   

Action Requested: Noactionatthistime, buttheCityCouncil couldprovide informal
comments.  






	Agenda
	2A Minutes 03-13-23 Work Session
	2B Minutes 03-13-23 CC Reg Mtg 
	2C Verified Claims
	2D Mangold Group Contract Renewal
	2E Change Order Strawberry Lane Project
	2F Change Order Birch Bluff Road Project
	2G Permanent Appointment of LEO/Shop Tech
	2H Accept Resignation & Approve Recruitment
	5A Minutes 03-14-23 Park Comm Mtg
	5B Park Commission Work Program
	6A Minutes Planning Comm Mtg
	6B Variance to side-yard setback
	6C Maple Shores
	6D Planning Commission Work Program
	9A.1 Mill Street Trail Update



